Notice & Agenda — Mississippi Valley Library District
Board of Trustees Meeting
September 18, 2023 at 6:30 PM

On-Site at the Blum House, 414 W. Main St., Collinsville, IL 62234
Via Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/i/83736996015?pwd=WEdabXJrZFBhZ3BTSnpOUjlyTDFZQT09

N

W

6.

7.

Public Hearing — FY2024 Budget & Appropriations Ordinance

Call to Order and Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Public Input

Public comment policies as approved and included in the Board of Trustees Bylaws can be found online
at https://mvid.org/pdf/2021/MVLD%20Bylaws%20as%200f%209.20.2021.pdf

Adjournment

Regular Monthly Board of Trustees Meeting

Call to Order and Roll Call
Public Input
Public comment policies as approved and included in the Board of Trustees Bylaws can be found online
at https://mvid.orq/pdf/2021/MVLD%20Bylaws%20as%200f%209.20.2021.pdf
Friends of the Library Updates
Trustee Comments
Consent Items
a. Approval of Minutes —Regular Board Meeting of August 21, 2023
Communications
Administrative Reports
Finances
i. August 2023 Expenses by Vendor, Profit & Loss, and Funds Balances
ii. Gift Fund Transactions
iii. FY 2023 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
iv. Profit & Loss Previous Year Comparison
e. Committee Reports
i. Finance
ii. Personnel
iii. Fundraiser
iv. Decennial Committee on Local Government Efficiency Act
1. Next Meeting — October 23, 2023
Unfinished Business
a. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding a Grant from the Agency for Community Transit for
Transportation Needs for Patrons of the MVLD
b. Decennial Committee — Appointment of Member of the Public
New Business
a. Discussion and Action on Ordinance 24-01: FY2024 Budget & Appropriations Ordinance

o o0 o



Discussion and Action on Ordinance 24-02: FY2024 Building & Maintenance Ordinance
Review of FY2023 lllinois Public Library Annual Report
Review of Serving Our Public 4.0 Chapter 11
e. Review of Closed Session Minutes — none
8. Closed Session
a. Closed session, if necessary, for any lawful exemption pursuant to Section 2(c) of the lllinois
Open Meetings Act
9. Action for Items Discussed in Closed Session
a. Action(s), if necessary, for any lawfully exempt matter discussed in closed session
10. Adjournment

o0 o

The Mississippi Valley Library District is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act.
Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order
to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility
of the meeting or the facilities, are required to contact the library administrator (618-344-1112) promptly to
allow the Mississippi Valley Library District to make reasonable accommodations for those patrons.



MINUTES of the MISSISSIPPI VALLEY LIBRARY DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING

DATE: August 21, 2023
TIME: 6:30 PM
PLACE: Fairmont City Library, Fairmont City, [L

Call to Order
Jeanne Lomax, President, called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM.

Roll Call
Trustees present:

Jeanne Lomax, President
Ginny York, Vice-President
Cathy Kulupka, Treasurer
Lisa McCormick, Secretary
Kathy Murphy, Trustee
Ana Romero-Lizana, Trustee
Mark Schusky, Trustee

Trustees absent:
Also present:

Kyla Waltermire, Executive Director, via Zoom
Matt Harris, Assistant Director

Pledge of Allegiance

Public Input
Michael Treece, Jr. expressed his concerns regarding what he felt was York and Lomax’s
personal bias.

Sharon Autenrieth was concerned because she believed some members of the board were
pushing a conservative agenda.

Ted Crail spoke regarding his believe in the first amendment and that libraries are for everyone.

Cynthia Klein expressed her positive experiences with the library but has concerns regarding
some of the newest library board members. See attached written input.

Dorothy Joyce voiced her concerns about the removal of bookmarks from the library and the
board’s discussion regarding adding a new lawyer.

DeeAnna Beckham representing Parents for Change, is concerned about her belief that some of
the board will discriminating against people that are different.

1



Friends of the Library

Book sale on August 18 and 19 went very well. They are tentatively looking at December
for next book sale.

They offered to pay for digital marquee component that failed. The part has been
replaced.

Trustee Comment

None

Consent Items
A motion to approve Consent Items in their entirety was made by Schusky and seconded by

York.

Approval of Minutes — July 17, 2023 regular meeting minutes reviewed; approved with

minor update.

Communications: None

Administrative Reports

Executive Director:

- Waltermire announced a new clerk hire, Bee Brown. She is working out very well.

- Waltermire indicated that staffing is currently very tight. Due to illness and unfilled
positions, the Collinsville Library offered curbside service only the evening of August
21.

Assistant Director:

- Harris reported that the Back to School Bash at Fairmont City was a huge success with
the daily door count of over 870 for that day and that number did not account for the
patrons that did not enter the library.

Finances — Finances reviewed.
- No update

Committee Reports

- Murphy enquired about the outstanding fines on the balance sheet. Waltermire
explained that those fines are a running total from the beginning of reporting
outstanding fines. The fines are for unreturned or damaged items. If a patron owes
more than $75, their information will be turned over to a collection agency.

- Decennial Committee’s next meeting is scheduled for October 23, 2023 at 5:30.

A roll call vote was taken on the motion to approve consent items:

Cathy Kulupka — Yes
Jeanne Lomax — Yes

Lisa McCormick - Yes
Kathy Murphy - Yes

Ana Romero-Lizana - Yes
Mark Schusky - Yes



Ginny York - Yes
Yes- 7, No — 0, Abstained — 0, Absent — 0

Motion carried.

Unfinished Business

a.

b.

Repairs & Updates to the Blum House (Collinsville Library Foundation) — No update.

Eagle Scout Project — The project was finished the first weekend of August. The brick
area in front of the museum has doubled in size.

Disposal of Short Street Lot

- Waltermire requested guidance from the board on if she should continue to pursue
selling the Short Street lot. The board agreed that she should continue but that it was
low priority.

- Lomax said that she would reach out to a realtor.

Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Legal Representation for the MVLD

- Discussion occurred regarding whether the MVLD should continue with one lawyer or
go with two lawyers. If two lawyers, then one would be the current lawyer, who
specializing in library law, and the second would be a local lawyer to address local issues
that fall outside library law.

- Lomax expressed concern with the current lawyer and previous legal advice he
provided to the library. She felt his advice was setting the library up for legal issues.

- Waltermire explained that current attorney, Phil Lenzini, is part of the Heyl Royster law
firm and, while Lenzini is in Peoria, the firm has an office in Edwardsville. In the past
Waltermire has used Lenzini’s firm for issues outside of library law.

- Kulupka stated that if there was a lawsuit against the library, there would be ample time
to hire an attorney with appropriate expertise if the current law firm didn’t have the
expertise.

- Waltemire responded that if the library was sued then we would probably have to hire
an expert regardless.

Romero-Lizana moved and Kulupka seconded to continue with the current MVLD
primary lawyer.

A roll call was taken on the motion:

Cathy Kulupka — Yes
Jeanne Lomax — No

Lisa McCormick - Yes
Kathy Murphy - Abstained
Ana Romero-Lizana - Yes
Mark Schusky - Yes
Ginny York — No

Yes- 4, No — 2, Abstained —1, Absent — 0

Motion carried.



e. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding a Grant from the Agency for Community
Transit for Transportation needs for patrons of the MVLD
- Miriam Bell from the Agency for Community Transit (ACT) spoke to the board
regarding possible grant opportunities.
- Waltermire enquired if grant money can be used to put in a bike rack in front of the
building and Bell indicated that a bike rack is a viable grant project.
- Waltermire requested advice about obtaining a grant since the library is not a 501c¢3.
Bell indicated that grant money may be available for special taxing districts within
Madison County, such as the MVLD. The ACT board does grant exemptions and
encouraged Waltermire to apply.

New Business

a. Decennial Committee Meeting — Appointment of Member of the Public
- Waltermire has had trouble contacting one of the public members to confirm the next
meeting. Romero-Lizana volunteered to contact the member and inform him of the next
meeting.
- If the public member does not respond, another public member will be appointed at the
next Board meeting.

b. Designation of Whistleblower Auditing Official
- Lomax appointed herself to serve in this role.

c. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Recipient(s) of Board Email Account’s
Messages
- The Board’s email address is an alias which redirects to other, real email accounts. In
the past email messages were redirected to the Board President’s email account. It was
decided to continue with the process and emails will be directed to the current
President’s email account.

d. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Public Attendance at Board Meetings via

Online Digital Services(s)

- Remote access to board meetings was turned off due to being “Zoom bombed” in a
previous meeting.

- McCormick explained that a certain security feature was turned off for that meeting due
to members of the public having issues with meeting passwords during the prior few
meetings.

- It was decided by the board to allow Zoom meeting attendance for members of the
public, with appropriate security measures in place, and to inform remote attendees that
they may need to try multiple times to gain access.

e. Discussion and Possible Action Regarding Bylaws Update
- Due to an update to 5 ILCS 120/7, it was recommended to modify Remote Attendance
by Individual Members Bylaw to include unexpected childcare obligations as one of the
approved reasons for Board members to attend remotely.
- Order of Business was updated to reflect the addition of “Friends of the Library” and
“Trustee Comments” as ongoing agenda items. These items are already in effect on
agendas; the revision would align the bylaws with current practice.

4



- As part of the Order of Business conversation, Lomax discussed listing specific
exemptions under Closed Session. Waltermire shared that, after Lomax had brought
this up in conversation with her previously, she contacted the Public Access Counselor
(PAC) at the Illinois Attorney General’s office to see if the PAC had recommended
wording to use. The PAC attorney explained that public bodies do not need to provide
the reasons why they will go into closed session on a meeting agenda in order to hold a
closed session at that meeting, so long as a topic is already given notice on the agenda,
the specific closed session exemption is cited as part of the motion to enter closed
session, and the exemption is included in the meeting’s minutes.

Schusky motioned and Murphy seconded to approve the bylaws updates.
A roll call was taken on the motion:

Cathy Kulupka — Yes
Jeanne Lomax — Yes

Lisa McCormick - Yes
Kathy Murphy - Yes

Ana Romero-Lizana - Yes
Mark Schusky - Yes
Ginny York — Yes

Yes- 7, No — 0, Abstained — 0, Absent —- 0
Motion carried.

f. Review of Serving Our Public 4.0 Chapter 10 — No discussion.

Closed Session — None.

Adjournment
A motion was made by Romero-Lizana and seconded by Kulupka to adjourn.

A voice vote was taken on the motion.

Cathy Kulupka — Yes
Jeanne Lomax — Yes

Lisa McCormick - Yes
Kathy Murphy - Yes

Ana Romero-Lizana - Yes
Mark Schusky - Yes
Ginny York — Yes

Yes- 7, No — 0, Abstained — 0, Absent — 0

Motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 8:11 PM.



08/21/2023
Dear Library Staff and Board,

I am writing this letter to relate my positive experiences with the Mississippi Valley Library District and
with other nearby libraries along with my current concerns. | have been a resident of Collinsville for 34
years. | have utilized libraries as an adult in the following ways:

1} As a previously newly married person (33 years ago), a full-time student, and a full-time
employee, we had little monies for many extravagances, so we often rented movies at the
Collinsville Library, which was within walking distance of our home at that time.

2) | finished my undergrad degree and became a special education teacher. | often used the
educational resources of the library to complement my meager resources at the specialized
school for students with social/emotional disorders where | taught. These included some of my
favorite National Geographic educational videos by David Attenborough and the PBS series such
as Keep Your Eyes on the Prize. My high school students thoroughly enjoyed such works, and it
sparked a lot of in-depth conversations, journaling and writing of papers by students (most of
whom were living in children’s home) who tended not to have had the best educational
experiences. At one time the Collinsville Library also had math and science (MASH) kits which
teachers could check out to use in their classrooms. These were also a big hit with my students.

3} Asa parent, | often made use of the toddler story times and we especially enjoyed the summer
programs as my daughter aged.

4) My daughter also participated in a teen reading club in which the students were allowed to pick
the book of their choice. 1 later read some of these prize-winning books and was impressed with
the overall quality of some of the historical fiction and/or coming of age books they chose with
guidance from the librarian. These teens were allowed to keep these books as it was part of a
highly successful grant written by library staff.

5) I 'must admit I sometimes used the library as a quasi-babysitter when we participated in what |
called “the library tour”. I have been a home visitor for a dozen years and | cover two counties. |
was not always comfortable leaving my adolescent daughter home alone all day. | would make
my home visits and drop her off at varying nearby libraries in between visits. She loved it.

6) As a developmental therapist who works with young children under the age of 3 with delays and
disabilities, | know how valuable a resource a library can be for families and individuals, so |
often meet clients at the Collinsville Library (and have previously done so at the Fairmont
Library) and introduce my clients to the local libraries, their resources, and their programs.

I highlight my positive experiences above as | want all individuals and families to be able to have such
experiences. Like many others here tonight, | want the library to continue to be an enjoyable place and a
“refuge” (as both Dee Anna and Traci expressed last month). | began attending the library board
meetings in June. | have been incredibly impressed with the Library Director, the Assistant Director and
their varying expertise related to the necessary routine and other operations needed to keep the library
district functioning, along with the supportive programming for a wide variety of demographics. | ani
also in admiration of the other library staff and experienced board members present for the monthly
meetings. However, | must admit | have concerns regarding some of the newest board members who
seem to have difficulties with supporting the library’s mission statement along with following Robert’s



rules of order. 1am curious if there has been a policy review with the newest board members? Do they
understand the American Library Association guidelines? My understanding is that board members are
meant to be good stewards of the building, funding, and personnel policies. Do the newest members
understand their roles in supporting these objectives? Have they signed off on possible paperwork in
which they agree to support the library’s mission? It is also my understanding that part of the librarian’s
job is to manage collections and obtain materials. There appears to certainly be an overreach/crossover
by a few board members who do not seem to understand their roles in supporting the library’s everyday
functions rather than acting on their own personal grievances (difficulties with previous lawyer) and
pulling materials, such as simple bookmarks, promoting an ALA program.

If a board member (s) finds a rainbow offensive or considers it to be part of a social agenda, will they
continue to confiscate information left by various organizations that use a rainbow as part of their
emblem? | am a Developmental Therapist who works in Early Intervention specifically with infants and
toddlers with delays and disabilities. Some of our community outreach information highlights rainbows.
Western illinois University’s Provider Connections is responsible for awarding my professional certificate
and uses the rainbow to highlight the diversity amongst the children and the families we serve. A few
board members have made it clear that they do not like gay people being served by the library. Does
this then extend to people of certain color, ethnicities, genders, or neurodivergence/those with
disabilities? | certainly hope this type of discrimination is stopped immediately. The board should
certainly be supporting ALL members of their community along with their fellow board members. |’
heard a board member stress that they do not like that “a social agenda was being pushed” with simple
bookmarks and that somehow their rights were being violated.

I find it highly self-centered for members to highlight their very specific personal religious and political
beliefs and/or personal difficulties with a lawyer. Does the library really need a new lawyer or was this
brought up to appease one’s resentment? It also appears the lawyer is a member of an organization,
The Federalist Society and from what | can gather this society is an organization that claims to be
constitutional but states that book banning is reasonable. Why would the library hire someone who is
the anti-thesis of what they represent? i truly hope that our newest board members will realize that, for
them to do a good job, the job they were elected to do, it is necessary for them to become much more
community- minded and leave the egos at the door. The American Public Library is very much a social
institution which ideally consists of people from ALL walks of life. Let’s end the egocentric obstructive
behavior tonight and move forward. | look forward to hearing that board members will receive the
proper training to prevent further discrimination. 1 appreciate your consideration in reading this letter
and listening to my valid concerns.

Sincerely,
.-'/

3

&Fr AAd . 7 / — )
K_/.’:?L/ /Q‘,_ /-,{,41 _, ,-% ). ‘5473':5/
Cynthia Klein-Webb, M.S. ED

Rainbow Developmental Support Services.



M21A0POS=MG - N« . 82%m

X Illinois General Assembly ~ Full Text of HB...
@ ilga.gov

AN ACT Curicer NLNng” Lutdl guver e,

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Illinois,
represented in the General Assembly:

Section 5. The Illinois tLibrary System Act is amended by
changing Sections 1 and 3 and by adding Section 8.7 as follows

(75 ELCS 10/1) (from Ch. 81, par. 111)

Sec. 1. Because the state has a financial responsibility
in promoting public education, and because the public Library
is a vital agency serving all levels af the educational
process, it is hereby declared to be the policy of the state t
encourage’ the improvement of free public libraries and to
encourage cooperation among all types of libraries in
promoting the sharing of library resources,_including digital
resources. In keeping with this policy, provision is hereby
made for a program of state grants designed to establish,
develop and 6perate 3 network of library systems covering the
entire state.

It is further declared to be rhe policy of the State to
encourage and protect the freedom of libraries and library
Systems to acquire materials withou xterna imitation
1o be protected against attempts to ban, remove, or otherwise
restrict access to books or other materials.

(Source: P.\A. 83-411.)




Report for August 2023

Kyla Waltermire, Executive Director

Building and Grounds Updates

The replacement threshold plate for Collinsville’s main door is ordered, as is a sturdier door and frame
for Fairmont City’s boiler room.

Maintenance Technician Zeke Pennington is working on replacing the ceiling, as well as removing the
wallpaper and repainting, in the children’s women’s restroom.

Ryder Saak completed work on the historical museum’s donor bricks wall the weekend of August 5-6.
The work was done for Ryder’s Eagle Scout project.

Circulation and Collection Updates

The library received student data from the school district so that library staff can begin working on
creating and/or updating public library accounts for students. This is the third year that the library has
worked with the school district on this initiative. Over 4,800 students — 90% of those enrolled — were
opted into receiving a public library account.

As the student library card project is very time-consuming, other collection projects are temporarily
being placed on the back burner.

Grant Updates

The library received a $2,000 unrestricted grant from the Ameren “Love Your Library” program. Funds
will be disbursed by mid-November.

FY2023 Per Capita Grant — The MVLD was awarded $48,794.48 for this grant, with eligible expenses to
be applied beginning July 1, 2023.

FY2024 PNG Grant — The library’s application for “The Wild Blue Yonder and Beyond” was approved in
the amount of $6,474.00. Work on the grant will begin after the contracts are countersigned.

FY2024 IL Reading Council Grant — The MVLD, in partnership with the Children’s Dyslexia Center,
received a Literacy Support grant in the amount of $750.00. Materials were purchased and have been
received. Upon the Children’s Dyslexia Center return from a brief break in early September, both
organizations will begin rolling out the new materials and working on library staff training.

2023 RBC Grant — The MVLD applied for the Regional Business Council’s “It’s Our Region Fund 2023
Small Change — Big Impact” grant in the amount of $9,999.99. If awarded, the funds will be used to
address several structural and aesthetic repairs to the Collinsville Library’s ADA-accessible entrance.
No word yet on the grant’s status.

2023 Thinking Money for Kids Program Kits — The MVLD applied for one of these kits, which is an all-in-
one kit for financial education programming for children ages 3-12. Applications close in early
September.

Meetings, Outreach, and Professional Development

August 3 — Kiwanis Club meeting; SHARE Executive Council meeting
August 4 — Meeting w/ Johnson Controls fire systems rep; informational webinar about 2-factor

authentication roll-out for payroll & timekeeping system
1



August 2023 - MVLD

August 7 — ILA Public Policy Committee meeting; meeting with local author to plan book launch event
August 10 — Interview for Library Clerk position

August 14 — Covered the main desk (3.00 hours); gave a tour to the Mt. Zion Public Library staff
August 15 — Meeting w/ Johnson Controls fire systems rep; Chamber of Commerce meeting; meeting
w/ a trustee

August 16 — Interview for Library Clerk position

August 17 — IHLS Members Matter: Paid Leave for All Workers Act (1.00 hrs CE} and membership
updates

August 18 — Meeting w/ staff member re: performance expectations; interview for Library Clerk
position

August 28 — ILA Public Policy Committee meeting; ILA Advocacy Committee meeting

August 29 — Interview for Library Clerk position

August 30 — Covered desk at Fairmont City (4.50 hours)

August 31 — Covered desk at Fairmont city (3.00 hours)

Marketing and Promotions Updates

The digital marquee’s modem has been replaced. Staff are able to update the sign successfully.
Marketing Coordinator Terry Pierson continues to work on quotes and design proofs for wrapping the
new van with MVLD-specific branding. A draft design was created and shared with two companies,
and we are now trying to fine-tune a design with one of the companies.

The library is posting images and newspaper articles from Collinsville’s history on social media. These
posts have garnered a great amount of interest and positive response.

Miscellaneous

The FY2023 Hlinois Public Library Annual Report and FY2023 ILLINET Interlibrary Loan and Reciprocal
Borrowing Statistical Survey are submitted.

Program Updates and Other Dates of Note

Upcoming events are on the library’s event calendars. Highlights include:

Thru October 16 (Collinsville): Italian Fest Exhibit

September 19 & 20: Pirate-themed Storytime and Baby Boogie for Talk Like a Pirate Day
September 20 & 27 @ 6:00 PM (Blum House): Tunes at Blum

September 23 (Collinsville and Fairmont City): Kids craft - fall leaf wreath

September 30 @ 2:00-4:00 PM (Fairmont City): Paw Patrol Party

October 1-31: 5" Annual Library Crawl. Pick up your passport and visit libraries throughout

O O O ©O

southern and central lllinois to get swag and be entered into a prize drawing.

o October 4 @ 7:00 PM (virtual): Chills and Thrills with Stephen Graham Jones — An illinois
Libraries Present Event. National Endowment for the Arts Fellow Stephen Graham Jones talks
horror. Register at https://bit.ly/ILP _StephenGrahamlones.




August 2023 - MVLD

o October 10 @ 6:00 PM (Collinsville): Who Puts the BOO in the Metro East. The Gateway
Regional Investigators of the Paranormal will discuss some of the most haunted places in Illinois
and Missouri, including demos of the equipment they use during an investigation.

o October 17 @ 7:00 PM (virtual): Food, Family, and Folktales with Grace Lin — An lllinois Libraries
Present Event. Children’s book author and illustrator Grace Lin discusses food, family, and
folktales, along with a drawing presentation. Register at https://bit.ly/ILP GracelLin.

o October 28 @ 10AM — 2:00 PM (Collinsville): Halloween Walk. This year’s theme is video

games.
e The district will be closed on Friday, October 27 for a staff meeting and to set up for the Halloween
Walk.
Staff Updates

e Movement on filling the Program Coordinator position temporarily halted due to unexpected health
issues amongst staff causing scheduling shortages that required immediate attention. This process
will pick up again as soon as possible.

¢ Interviews for the vacant Level 2 Library Clerk positions continue. Two of the vacancies are filled, with
the most recent hire being Jasnary Carcamo.

e Three staff members were diagnosed with COVID in August. Due to staffing constraints, the Collinsville
Library’s hours and services needed to be adjusted a few days while those individuals were recovering.



Statistical Summary
8/1/2023 12:00:00 AM - 8/31/2023 11:59:59 PM

Mississippi Valley LD-Collinsville Libr (MVPP-ZED)

e D
Mot}

Bibs w/ltems Bibs w/o ltems Authority

Global 1,622,353 55,418 766,848
Active
Bibs w/ltems Items Items Withdrawn Patrons Active Staff  Workstations
Branch Specific 58,580 62,280 94 16,263 26 18

Circulation Statistics

Check Outs Borrowers Check In Overdue Items Checked In Staff Overrides
8,326 1,104 6,915 1,363 0

Holds Placed Holds Satisfied Holds Cancelled

2,747 2,763 418

Bibliographic Authority Items Patrons
Added by Branch 0 0 265 68
Added by Other 5,874 2,734 0 0
Deleted by Branch 18 0 856 1
Deleted by Other 1,897 2,545 0 10

New Charges Money Collected Refunds NET Amounts Waived Credits

$6,123.30 $483.13 $0.00 $483.13 $5,257.28 $0.60

Total Outstanding Fines - As of 9/11/2023 2:26 PM

$126,106.55

Logins Online Registrations Holds Placed Holds Cancelled
2,937 6 1,833 103

9/11/2023 2:26 PM Page 1 of 3



Statistical Summary
8/1/2023 12:00:00 AM - 8/31/2023 11:59:59 PM

Mississippi Valley LD-Fairmont City Lib (FMCP-ZED)

As of 9/11/2023 2:26 PI

Bibs w/ltems Bibs w/o ltems Authority

Global 1,622,353 55,418 766,848
Active
Bibs w/ltems Items Items Withdrawn Patrons Active Staff Workstations
Branch Specific 16,217 16,286 0 1,665 3 9

Check Outs Borrowers Check In Overdue Items Checked In Staff Overrides

444 51 397 75 0

Holds Placed Holds Satisfied Holds Cancelled

175 137 4

Bibliographic Authority Items Patrons
Added by Branch 0 0 77 3
Added by Other 5,874 2,734 5 0
Deleted by Branch 2 0 260 0
Deleted by Other 1,913 2,545 1 0

New Charges Money Collected Refunds NET Amounts Waived Credits

$300.94 $6.00 $0.00 $6.00 $815.42 $0.00

Total Outstanding Fines - As of 9/11/2023 2:26 PM

$4,272.55

Logins Online Registrations Holds Placed Holds Cancelled
80 0 139 0

9/11/2023 2:26 PM Page 2 of 3



Statistical Summary
8/1/2023 12:00:00 AM - 8/31/2023 11:59:59 PM

Grand Totals

26 PM

Bibs w/ltems Bibs w/o Items Authority

Global 1,622,353 55,418 766,848
Active
Bibs w/ltems Items Items Withdrawn Patrons Active Staff Workstations
Branch Specific 74,797 78,566 94 17,928 29 27

Check Quts Borrowers Check In Overdue ltems Checked In Staff Overrides

8,770 1,150 7,312 1,438 0

Holds Placed Holds Satisfied Holds Cancelled

2,922 2,900 422

Bibliographic Authority Items Patrons
Added by Branch 0 0 342 71
Added by Other n/a n/a n/a n/a
Deleted by Branch 20 0 1,116 1
Deleted by Other n/a n/a n/a n/a

Financials

New Charges Money Collected Refunds NET Amounts Waived Credits
$6,424.24 $489.13 $0.00 $489.13 $6,072.70 $0.60

Total Outstanding Fines - As of 9/11/2023 2:26 PM

$130,379.10

Logins Online Registrations Holds Placed Holds Cancelled
3,017 6 1,972 103

9/11/2023 2:26 PM Page 3 of 3



9871 v/19 6SS0T 0
z£9 LEVE 5925
¥s9 LELT r6¢s

SUOISSaS Jouno) Jajuno) sa|qe

18indwo) looQq 100Q UIn}2y-uoN

WO  3pISIND  uoid IAD a1e15

joIno- Tl

BIA Q1AIN

Aq payjddns

Swiay| #

€9 0 LS
o (013
€¢ Lz

sa|qeulniay sa|q sajqeulnidy
2)elS BUINIBY-UON LIS Ul -T|
J0Ino -1 s ul-  BIAQIAIN
eIN@IAN T1I eIn Q1AW Aq payddng
Aq pajjddns  Aq pajddns sway| #
sway| # sway| #

L9T

0T
59

Q1A Aq
panIaday
siysanbay

T
jo ¢ |ejoL

sa|qe
wIN}ay-uopN
ajels
JoINQ -1t
elA 1A
1€ panIRIRY
sway| #

$9|qeuINIaY
21e)S UIN}dY-UoN

BAQIAW  BIAQIAW
1B poAI3daY e ﬁw>_wuw¢
swiay # sway #

114

(414
T

.s|ejol

yz-unr
vz-AeiN
pz-1dy
yz-leW
¥Z-994
pz-uer
£2-93@
€Z-"ON
€210
€z-das
gg-any
gz-In(

sa|jqe s3|geuan}dy aIANAQ  Yuow

ajels u| - paysanbay
J0IN0 - 111 @IS U -T7I T eIMQTAN

18 PoAI9IIY
Swa| #

sway
# |1ej0L

Xs[x'sjels 11| ve-€¢



¥ soiqolay aoue( €civL/8
Z an|o Buiyomg ssoid €2C/ZL/8
3 Bunas|y uonenpsiy €e/eLs
I doysyJop sieAngewioH o914 €Z/Z1/8
Zl anip ebusjjeyd Buipjing obe €Z/01/8
G an|D yoog swnAeg €z/01/8
. awl] eboA €Z/6/8
€l wer 9}}snody €2/6/8
Z an|Q [9AoN dlydels €2/6/8
A% aiboog Aqeq €2/6/8
9l awnAiols |jooyosald €2/8/8
0l eboA Buiuio £2/8/8
€ solqolay @oueq €2/L/8
L gnjo Buiyomg ssoid €2/S/8
8 Bunes|y uoneps €2/S/8
0l sabusjleyd 1l UIA O} BINUI S,UJIPIIYD €z/S/8
8 awi] eboA €z/zI8
L WYBIN yoa] ussl €2z/8
8l alboog Aqeg €2/e/8
4 sse|Q Jeyndwo) olseq €2/LI8
G2 awpkio)s |jooyosald €z/LI8
cCl Slooys mc_._O_OO S,ualpjiyo Hw3@3<
a3aN3LLV # NOILOWOYd / LNIAT / NVIOO0ud 3iva




8¢S

SJUBAS ‘aduepuane :SnouoiyduAs g-0 sady uaapjiyd

awniiols Ajlwe4

€c02/1LE/8

awl] eboA €2/0€/8

gn|o yoog buiuanj €2/0¢/8

alboog Ageg €2/0¢€/8

awnAlolg |ooyosald €2/6¢/8

s2IqoJay aoue( €2/82/8

gn|o Buiyos ssoiD €2/9¢/8

Bunaaly uoneypay €2/92/8

awl] eboA €2/ec/8

alboog Aqeg €e/ee/8

awnAlo)g jooyosaid €2/cc/8

J] eboA Buiuiop €2/ci/8

G s2IqoJay aoue(q XA XA
yelid

I ped youne pue aue|diy Jaded s,ualp|iyd €ce/el/8

g an|Q ABojesusg pue AiojsiH €e/61/8

4 qnio Buiyoms ssou) €2/61/8

L Bunesy uoneupay €c/61/8

6 an|o Jezpaddy pue pue yoog €C/LLI8

9 aw] eboA €C/91/8

Z YBIN swen) €2/91/8

€C alboog Aqeg €2/91/8

Gz awnAlolg |ooyosaud €T/S)/8

Q eboA BuluIop €2¢/GL/8




SJUBAS () ‘@ouBpuUB)iE () :pojoslIp-)|9S Sisalalu| |eJauas)

SJUBAS € ‘eoUBpuUs)le g| :SNOUOIYDUAS Sisalalu| |eJaua)

SJUBAS () ‘eouBpuUs)E ( :paloalip-}es +6) Saby sinpy

SJUSAS | ‘@ouepusye | :SNOUOIYOUAS +6| 9By sinpy

SJUBAS () ‘8ouBpUB)E () :paalIP-)I8S 8| -2 | Seby sinpy BunoA
SJUBAS () ‘9ouUBpuUalie ( :SNOUOIYOUAS g -z | 9By synpy Bunoj
SJUSAS () ‘aouepus)e ( :pajoalId-}9s L1-9 s8by ualpjiyD
SJUSAS g ‘SouUBpuUBNE /€ :SNOUOIYIUAS | -9 Saby ualp|iy)
SJUBA8 () ‘souepua)e ( :pajoslId-ies G-0 seby ualp|iyd

SJUBAS () ‘@0UBpUs)IE () :SNOUOIYIUAS G- S8by uaipiy)

v B )

1eay 0} anp psjj@oue)d gn|D uapieo 0¢ 1snbny
o Jauio) spiy gz 1snbny

Jeay 0] anp paj|aoue) an|D uapleo £z 1snbny
¢ Jaul10) spiy €z 1snbny

G Aep-un4 Aepuoln LZ Isnbny

v Jaulo)D spiy LZ 1snbny

ol an|o uspie9 9} Isnbny

L Buiby uo siemsuy G| 1snbny

rA) Aep-un4 Aepuojp ¥1 1snbny

¢ qn|Q usp.es 6 Jsnbny

8 UIAA O} S1nUl s,usJpiiyo G isnbny

€ anio uspleo ¥ 1Isnbny

papusny NOILONO¥d / INJAT / NVYDO0Ud  [siels AnD juounrey




3:50 PM Mississippi Valley Library District

09/07/23 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis August 2023
Type Date Num Memo Account Cir Split Amount Balance
Academic Therapy Publications

Bilt 08/15/2023 Invoices # 31...  Other Grants Accounts Paya... 44020 440.20
Total Academic Therapy Publications 44020 44020
Albers Heating & Air Conditioning, Inc.

Bill 08/04/2023 BH - located ... Building Accounts Paya. .. 245,00 24500
Total Albers Heating & Air Conditioning, Inc 245,00 245.00
AMEREN ILLINOIS

Bill 08/11/2023 FCLC gas (01...  Natural Gas Accounts Paya... 59.76 59.76

Bill 08/11/2023 FCLC electric ...  Electricity Accounts Paya... 1,294.34 1,354 10

Bill 08/11/2023 CMLC gas (2.. Natural Gas Accounts Paya. .. 53.61 1,407.71

Bill 08/11/2023 CMLC electric...  Electricity Accounts Paya... 3,499.77 4,907 48

Bill 08/11/2023 CMLC outdoo...  Electricity Accounts Paya... 26.42 4,933.90

Bill 08/11/2023 BH gas (83007)  Natural Gas Accounts Paya... 56.01 4,989.91

Bill 08/11/2023 BH electric (1...  Electricity Accounts Paya... 183.47 5,173.38
Total AMEREN ILLINOIS 5,173.38 5,173.38
American Library Association

Bill 08/14/2023 annual dues - ... Dues Accounts Paya 155.00 155.00
Total American Library Association 155.00 155.00
Americom Imaging Systems Inc.

Bill 08/05/2023 Monthly copie...  Equipment Accounts Paya, 496.20 496.20
Total Americom Imaging Systems Inc. 496.20 496.20
Aqua Systems

Bill 08/05/2023 Invoice #175...  Office Accounts Paya... 19.10 19.10

Bili 08/05/2023 Invoice # 177...  Office Accounts Paya. . 6.95 26.05

Bill 08/05/2023 Invoice # 177.. Office Accounts Paya... 27.50 53.55
Total Aqua Systems 53.55 53.55
Belleville Public Library

Bill 08/14/2023 ltems # 00007... Payments to OtherL... Accounts Paya... 41.00 41.00
Total Belleville Public Library 41.00 41.00
Book Page

Bill 08/23/2023 Magazine - 1 ...  Adult Print Materials Accounts Paya.. 720.00 720.00
Total Book Page 720.00 720.00
BookSource

Bill 08/11/2023 IRC Literacy .. Other Grants Accounts Paya... 340.50 340.50
Total BookSource 340.50 340,50
Brian Brown

Bill 08/15/2023 July 2023 mo...  Grounds Accounts Paya... 1,345.00 1,345.00

Bill 08/15/2023 August 2023 ...  Grounds Accounts Paya. 1,100.00 2,445.00
Total Brian Brown 2,445.00 2,445.00
Brodart

Bill 08/28/2023 Invoice #629...  Office Accounts Paya.. 9225 92.25
Total Brodart 92.25 92.25
Bryan-Bennett Library

Bill 08/14/2023 Item # 30183... Payments to Other L... Accounts Paya.. 19.00 19.00
Total Bryan-Bennett Library 16.00 19.00
Buildingstars

Bill 08/02/2023 Invoice # 335.. Building Accounts Paya.. 1,800.00 1,900.00

Bill 08/02/2023 Invoice # 335.. Building Accounts Paya. 425.00 2,325.00

Bill 08/02/2023 Invoice #335...  Building Accounts Paya... 250.00 2,575.00
Total Buildingstars 2,575.00 2,5675.00
Caseyville Public Library District

Bill 08/14/2023 item # 00082... Payments to Other L... Accounts Paya. .. 16.99 16.99
Total Caseyville Public Library District 16.99 16.99

Center Point Large Print
Bili 08/14/2023 standing orde...  Adult Print Materials Accounts Paya.. 147.42 147 42

Page 1



3:50 PM Mississippi Valley Library District
09/07/23 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis August 2023
Type Date Num Memo Account Cir Split Amount Balance
Total Center Point Large Print 147 42 147 .42
First Data Global Leasing

Check 08/08/2023 FC credit card...  Other Professional ... Checking 39.98 39.98
Total First Data Global Leasing 39.98 39.98
Gary Kusmierczak

Bill 08/28/2023 Reimburseme...  Miscellaneous Accounts Paya.. 20.95 20.95
Total Gary Kusmierczak 20.95 20.95
Green Sky Cleaning Supply

Bill 08/15/2023 toilet tissue, tr...  Office Accounts Paya... 291.87 291.87
Total Green Sky Cleaning Supply 29187 291.87
Home Depot

Check 08/01/2023 drain clog sup...  Building Checking 50.93 50.93

Check 08/02/2023 sink repair & ... Building Checking 69.83 120.76

Check 08/03/2023 Misc. supplies Building Checking 8.96 129.72

Check 08/11/2023 light bulbs Building Checking 94,91 224 .63

Check 08/14/2023 steel u-post Building Checking 55,86 280.49

Check 08/16/2023 Misc. supplies Building Checking 100.98 381.47

Check 08/23/2023 air movers & ... Building Checking 204.17 58564
Total Home Depot 58564 585.64
lllinois American Water

Bill 08/28/2023 FCLC water 7...  Water/Sewer Accounts Paya... 46.86 46.86
Total lllinois American Water 46 .86 46.86
IMRF

Check 08/16/2023 monthly IMRF...  IMRF Checking 6,107.05 6,107.05
Total IMRF 6,107.05 6,107.05
INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES

Bill 08/02/2023 Credit Memo ., Adult Print Materials Accounts Paya... 1,087.91 1,087,91

Bill 08/02/2023 Invoice # 772.. Juvenile Print items Accounts Paya... 250.32 1,338.23
Total INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES 1,338.23 1,338.23
Kane Consulting Group

Bill 08/10/2023 Datto backup ...  Information Technol... Accounts Paya 343.00 343.00
Total Kane Consulting Group 343.00 343.00
KANOPY, INC.

Bill 08/04/2023 Invoice # 363...  Virtual Items Accounts Paya... 232.00 232.00
Total KANOPY, INC. 232.00 232.00
Lazerware

Bill 08/04/2023 Invoice # 444...  Information Technol... Accounts Paya... 803.42 803.42

Bill 08/04/2023 Invoice # 443...  Information Technol... Accounts Paya... 2,521.98 3,325.40
Total Lazerware 3,325.40 3,325 40
Madison County Record, LLC

Bill 08/05/2023 B&A ordinanc...  Publishing Accounts Paya.., 34,40 34.40
Total Madison County Record, LLC 34.40 34.40
Madison County Treasurer

Deposit 08/01/2023 Deposit Property Tax General P -36,244.61 -36,244.61

Deposit 08/01/2023 Deposit Building Maintenance Building -4,846.24 -41,090.85

Deposit 08/01/2023 Deposit IMRF IMRF -1,683.42 -42 774,27

Deposit 08/01/2023 Deposit Audit Audit -357.10 -43,131.37

Deposit 08/01/2023 Deposit Liability Insurance Insurance Fund -2,499.61 -45,630.98

Deposit 08/01/2023 Deposit FICA/Medicare FICA -2,295.58 -47,926.56

Deposit 08/23/2023 Deposit Property Tax General P -19,648.45 -67,575.01

Deposit 08/23/2023 Deposit Building Maintenance Building -2,627.18 -70,202.19

Deposit 08/23/2023 Deposit IMRF IMRF -912.60 -71,114.79

Deposit 08/23/2023 Deposit Audit Audit -193.59 -71,308.38

Deposit 08/23/2023 Deposit Liability Insurance Insurance Fund -1,355.06 -72,663.44

Deposit 08/23/2023 Deposit FICA/Medicare FICA -1,244.45 -73,907.89
Total Madison County Treasurer -73,907.89 -73,907.89

Metro East Sanitary District

Page 2



3:50 PM Mississippi Valley Library District

09/07/23 Expenses by Vendor Detail
Accrual Basis August 2023
Type Date Num Memo Account Cir Split Amount Balance
Bill 08/10/2023 FC water July ... Water/Sewer Accounts Paya... 2427 24.27
Total Metro East Sanitary District 24 27 2427
Midwest Tape
Bill 08/02/2023 Invoice # 504..,  Adult Audio Visual It. Accounts Paya... 143 97 14397
Bill 08/02/2023 Invoice # 504..,  Adult Audio Visual It... Accounts Paya... 37.99 181.96
Bill 08/02/2023 Invoice # 504...  Adult Audio Visual It... Accounts Paya.. 39.99 22195
Bill 08/02/2023 Invoice #504...  Adult Audio Visual It... Accounts Paya.. 42.99 264.94
Bill 08/02/2023 Invoice #504...  Adult Audio Visual It... Accounts Paya... 39.99 304.93
Total Midwest Tape 304.93 304.93
OverDrive
Bill 08/05/2023 Invoice # 020...  FY2023 Per Capita ... Accounts Paya... 40173 40173
Total OverDrive 401.73 401.73
Peerless Network, Inc.
Bill 08/14/2023 CM monthly f.. Telephone/Fax Accounts Paya... 111.38 111.38
Bill 08/14/2023 FC monthly fa...  Telephone/Fax Accounts Paya... 58.41 169.79
Total Peerless Network, Inc. 169.79 169.79
Quill LLC
Bill 08/10/2023 Invoice # 336...  Office Accounts Paya... 382.40 382.40
Total Quill LLC 382.40 382.40
St. Clair County Collector
Deposit 08/11/2023 Deposit Property Tax General Pl -13,929.11 -13,929.11
Deposit 08/11/2023 Deposit Building Maintenance Building -1,862.45 -15,791.56
Deposit 08/11/2023 Deposit IMRF IMRF -646.95 -16,438.51
Deposit 08/11/2023 Deposit Audit Audit -137.24 -16,575.75
Deposit 08/11/2023 Deposit Liability Insurance Insurance Fund -960.62 -17,536.37
Deposit 08/11/2023 Deposit FICA/Medicare FICA -882.21 -18,418.58
Deposit 08/25/2023 Deposit Property Tax General PI -14,426.16 -32,844.74
Deposit 08/25/2023 Deposit Building Maintenance Building -1,928.91 -34,773.65
Deposit 08/25/2023 Deposit IMRF IMRF -670.04 -35,443.69
Deposit 08/25/2023 Deposit Audit Audit -142.13 -35,585.82
Deposit 08/25/2023 Deposit Liability Insurance Insurance Fund -994.90 -36,580.72
Deposit 08/25/2023 Deposit FICA/Medicare FICA -913.69 -37,494.41
Total St Clair County Collector -37,494 41 -37,494.41
Tolono Public Library District
Bill 08/15/2023 ltem # 33032.. Payments to Other L... Accounts Paya... 20.00 20.00
Total Tolono Public Library District 20.00 20.00
TransFirst
Check 08/10/2023 CM Credit car...  Other Professional ... General PI 39.00 39.00
Check 08/10/2023 CM Credit car,.,  Other Professional ... Checking 49.75 88.75
Total TransFirst 88.75 88.75
Tri-Township Public Library District
Biil 08/05/2023 Item # 00040.. Payments to Other L. Accounts Paya... 17.99 17.99
Total Tri-Township Public Library District 17.99 17 99
Trudoor
Bill 08/10/2023 Door & frame ... Building Accounts Paya... 1,712.42 1,712.42
Total Trudoor 1,712.42 1.712.42
United States Postal Service
Check 08/02/2023 ILLs Postage Checking 4165 41.685
Check 08/07/2023 ILLs Postage Checking 7.44 49.09
Check 08/14/2023 ILLs Postage Checking 57.22 106.31
Total United States Postal Service 106.31 106.31
Village Locksmith
Check 08/14/2023 2 keys Building Checking 5.00 5.00
Total Village Locksmith 5.00 5.00
TOTAL -82,842.84 -82,842.84

Page 3



3:53 PM Mississippi Valley Library District

09/07/23 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis August 2023

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Taxes
Audit
Building Maintenance
FICA/Medicare
IMRF
Liability Insurance
Property Tax

Total Taxes

Intergovernment Revenue
E-Rate
Grants
FY2023 PNG Grant

Total Grants
Replacement Tax
Total Intergovernment Revenue

Fines & Forfeitures
Fines
Lost or Damaged Books/Inhouse

Total Fines & Forfeitures

Charges for Services
Fax
Printing/Copying

Total Charges for Services

Other Revenues
COBRA Reimbursements
Donations - Des & Undes
Sale of Items
Reimbursements Other libraries
Interest Income
Miscellaneous

Rental Income
FC Pavilion
Collinsville Rooms
Blum House Rental

Total Rental Income
Total Other Revenues
Total Income
Gross Profit

Expense
Personnel
Benefits
IL Unemployment Company
FICA Company
Health/Dental Insurance
IMRF

Total Benefits

Salaries
Full Time
Part time

Aug 23

830.06
11,264.78
5,335.93
3,913.01
5,810.19
84,248.33

111,402.30

4,176.00

2,572.05
2,572.05
15,912.04
22,660.09

76.00
336.04

412.04

369.10
765.75

1,134.85

1,393.20
90.63
521.04
149.99
877.43
0.65

350.00
200.00
683.75

1,233.75
4,266.69
139,875.97
139,875.97

342.81
3,710.20
7,186.20
6,107.05

17,346.26

34,453.38
14,223.88

Page 1



3:53 PM Mississippi Valley Library District
00/07/23 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis August 2023
Aug 23
Total Salaries 48,677.26
Total Personnel 66,023.52
Maintenance Services
Building 1,377.57
Equipment 254 .54
Grounds 825.16
Total Maintenance Services 2,457.27
Professional Services
Payroll Service 267.74
Internet Services 772.00
Information Technology 3,806.38
Other Professional Services 144.72
Total Professional Services 4,990.84
Utilities
Telephone/Fax 79.99
Water/Sewer 58.50
Total Utilities 138.49
Supplies
Equipment 423.89
Office 634.77
Postage 108.29
Total Supplies 1,166.95
Materials
Other Materials 16.99
Virtual ltems 224.00
Adult Audio Visual ltems 501.74
Adult Print Materials 1,455.33
Juvenile Audio Visual ltems 44.99
Juvenile Print Items 296.44
Online Databases 400.00
Total Materials 2,939.49
Other Expenditures
Vehicles 381.39
Miscellaneous 520.90
Programming 102.05
Donation Expenditures - Des. 242.38
Grant Expenses
FY2023 Per Capita Grant 17.124.12
Total Grant Expenses 17,124.12
Payments to Other Libraries 37.99
Total Other Expenditures 18,408.83
Total Expense 96,125.39
Net Ordinary Income 43,750.58
Net Income 43,750.58

Page 2



3:50 PM Mississippi Valley Library District

Balance Sheet
As of September 7, 2023

09/07/23
Cash Basis

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings

Working Cash
Checking
General Pl
Audit
IMRF
Building
Insurance Fund
FICA
Reserve
Gift Fund

Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
Prepaid Insurance
Petty Cash

Total Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Other Assets
Taxes Receivable

Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
Manual A/P
Deferred Revenue
Accrued Vacation
Accrued Sick Pay
Accrued Wages
Payroll Liabilities

Garnishment
Liberty National
Net Pay Offset
Miscellaneous
Fed Withhold

11 Withhold
Direct Deposit
IMRF - Payable
SUTA

Payroll Liabilities - Other
Total Payroll Liabilities
Total Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Equity
Opening Bal Equity
Retained Earnings
Net income

Sep 7, 23

220,341.49
28,471.82
777,956.43
12,332.74
66,313.35
22,919.31
166,764.85
51,633.22
37,818.12
11,338.14

1,395,889.47

17,255.45
100.00

17,355.45
1,413,244.92

864,041.62
864,041.62
2,277,286.54

~13,326.30
-13,326.30

23,347.24
975,284.70
18,665.72
5,253.76
17,763.78

131.60
5,519.60
870.86
-127.44
-208.00
-823.96
-190.69
149,831.69
4,101.99
1,720.68

160,826.33
1,201,131.53
1,187,805.23
1,187,805.23

14,039.26

840,182.03
235,260.02

Page 1



3:50 PM Mississippi Valley Library District

00/07/23 Balance Sheet
Cash Basis As of September 7, 2023

Sep 7, 23
Total Equity 1,089,481.31
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 2,277,286.54

Page 2



4:41PM Mississippi Valley Library District

09/07/23 FY2024 Gift Fund

Accrual Basis

Type Date Memo Account Class Split Amount Balance

Jul - Aug 23
Transfer 07/13/2023 FY2023 interest  Gift Fund General Pl -40.66 -40.66
Deposit 07/16/2023 Interest Gift Fund Gift Interest Income 6.49 -34 17
Transfer 07/28/2023 Funds Transfer  Gift Fund Checking -16.37 -50.54
Transfer 08/03/2023 Funds Transfer  Gift Fund Checking -242 38 -292.92
Deposit 08/16/2023 Interest Gift Fund Gift Interest Income 7.30 -285.62

Jul - Aug 23 -285.62 -285.62

Page 1



3:49 PM Mississippi Valley Library District
09/07/23 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Cash Basis FY2024
Jul - Aug 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Taxes
Audit 3,023.79 7.768.13 4,744 34 38.9%
Building Maintenance 41,035.98 103,575.02 -62,539.04 39.6%
FICA/Medicare 19,438.08 52,823.26 -33,385.18 36 8%
IMRF 14,254 52 38,840,63 -24,586.11 36.7%
Liability Insurance 21,165.67 58,002.01 -36,836.34 36.5%
Property Tax 306,904.59 776,812.63 -469,908.04 39.5%
Total Taxes 405,822.63 1,037,821.68 -631,999 05 39.1%
Intergovernment Revenue
E-Rate 4,176.00 20,000.00 -15,824.00 20.9%
TIF Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Grants
FY2024 PNG Grant 0.00 6,474.00 -6,474,00 0.0%
FY2023 Per Capita Grant 48,794.48 48,794.48 0.00 100.0%
FY2023 PNG Grant 2,572,05
Other Grants 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
Total Grants 51,366.53 60,268 .48 -8,901.95 85.2%
Replacement Tax 15,940.95 60,000.00 -44,059.05 26.6%
Total Intergovernment Revenue 71,483,48 140,268 .48 -68,785.00 51.0%
Fines & Forfeitures
Fines 106.20 500.00 -393.80 21.2%
Lost or Damaged Books/Inhouse 592,52 1,800.00 -1,207 48 32.9%
Total Fines & Forfeitures 698.72 2,300.00 -1,601,28 30.4%
Charges for Services
Fax 566,10 3,350.00 -2,783.90 16.9%
Non-resident Fees 0.00 81.00 -81.00 0.0%
Printing/Copying 1,508.18 9,100.00 -7,691.82 16.6%
Total Charges for Services 2,074.28 12,531.00 -10,456.72 16.6%
Other Revenues
COBRA Reimbursements 2,786.40 16,720.00 -13,933.60 16.7%
Sale of Short Street Lot 0.00 12,000.00 -12,000.00 0.0%
Sale of Vehicle 0.00 1,200.00 -1,200.00 0.0%
Property License Agreements 0.00 15,001.00 -15,001.00 0.0%
Donations - Des & Undes 240.49 20,000.00 -19,759.51 1.2%
Sale of Items 808.40 3,750.00 -2,941.60 21.6%
Reimbursements Other libraries 174.99 1,300.00 -1,125.01 13.5%
Interest Income 1,694.12 9,000.00 -7,305.88 18.8%
Miscellaneous 1.25 2,500.00 -2,498.75 0.1%
Rental Income
FC Rooms 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.0%
FC Pavilion 350.00 100,00 250.00 350.0%
Collinsville Rooms 300.00 1,600.00 -1,300.00 18.8%
Blum House Rental 1,573,75 12,500.00 -10,926.25 12.6%
Total Rental Income 2,223.75 14,300.00 -12,076.25 15.6%
Total Other Revenues 7,929.40 95,771.00 -87,841.60 8.3%
Total Income 488,008.51 1,288,692 .16 -800,683 65 37.9%
Gross Profit 488,008.51 1,288,692.16 -800,683.65 37.9%
Expense
Personnel
Benefits
IL Unemployment Company 685.73 8,100.00 -7,414.27 8.5%
FICA Company 7,318.26 55,200.00 -47,881.74 13.3%
Health/Dental Insurance 7,354 .44 97,000.00 -89,645.56 7.6%
IMRF 18,114.94 92,000.00 -73,885.06 19.7%
Total Benefits 33,473.37 252,300.00 -218,826.63 13.3%
Salaries
Full Time 67,206 69 501,500.00 -434,293.31 13.4%
Part time 28,812.97 200,900.00 -172,087.03 14.3%
Total Salaries 96,019.66 702,400.00 -606,380.34 13.7%

Page 1



3:43 PM Mississippi Valley Library District

09/07/23 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Cash Basis FY2024
Jul - Aug 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Total Personnel 129,493.03 954,700.00 -825,206.97 13.6%
Maintenance Services
Building 16,787.61 120,000.00 -103,212.39 14.0%
Equipment 750.74 10,000.00 -9,249 26 7.5%
Grounds 1,575.16 11,000.00 -9,424 .84 14.3%
Total Maintenance Services 19,113.51 141,000.00 -121,886.49 13.6%
Professional Services
Publishing 0.00 600,00 -600.00 0.0%
Payroll Service 549.28 4,100,00 -3,5650.72 13.4%
SHARE Membership 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
OCLC Interlibrary Loan 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Internet Services 2,187.30 9,300,00 -7,112,70 23.5%
Information Technology 7,955.76 55,000.00 -47,044.24 14.5%
Audit 0.00 8,300.00 -8,300.00 0.0%
Legal Service 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%
Other Professional Services 334.60 3,600.00 -3,265.40 9.3%
Total Professional Services 11,026 94 83,900.00 -72,873.06 13.1%
Professional Development
Dues 15.00 600.00 -585.00 25%
Training/Tuition 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
Travel Expenses 0.00 1,200.00 -1,200.00 00%
Total Professional Development 15.00 2,800.00 -2,785.00 0.5%
Utilities
Natural Gas 180.20 9,750.00 -9,569.80 18%
Telephone/Fax 311.31 3,600.00 -3,288.69 86%
Water/Sewer 446.12 3,000.00 -2,553.88 14.9%
Electricity 4,510.92 56,000.00 -51,489,08 8.1%
Total Utilities 5,448.55 72,350.00 -66,901.45 7.5%
Supplies
Equipment 576.87 10,000.00 -9,423.13 5.8%
Office 84575 11,000.00 -10,154.25 7.7%
Postage 488.37 4,200.00 -3,711.63 11.6%
Total Supplies 1,910.99 25,200.00 -23,289 01 7.6%
Materials
Other Materials 16.99 1,250.00 -1,233.01 1.4%
Virtual ltems 547.61 5,000,00 -4,452.39 11.0%
Adult Audio Visual Items 904.65 11,000.00 -10,095.35 8.2%
Adulit Print Materials 2,301.16 27,000.00 -24,698.84 8.5%
Juvenile Audio Visual Items 44 99 2,000.00 -1,955 01 22%
Juvenile Print items 352.68 4,500.00 -4,147 32 7.8%
Online Databases 3,284,00 11,000.00 -7.716.00 29.9%
Total Materials 7,452.08 61,750.00 -54,297.92 12.1%
Other Expenditures
Liability & Building Insurance 0.00 30,000.00 -30,000.00 0.0%
Vehicles 496.39 12,500.00 -12,003.61 4.0%
Miscellaneous 530.90 2,750.00 -2,219.10 19.3%
Programming 22272 5,000.00 -4,777.28 4.5%
Donation Expenditures - Des. 278.26 6,000.00 -5,721.74 4.6%
Grant Expenses
FY2024 PNG Grant 0.00 6,474.00 -6,474.00 0.0%
FY2023 Per Capita Grant 19,293.92 48,794.48 -29,500.56 39.5%
Other Grants 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%
Total Grant Expenses 19,293.92 58,268 48 -38,974 .56 33.1%
Payments to Other Libraries 237.30 1,600.00 -1,362.70 14.8%
Total Other Expenditures 21,059.49 116,118.48 -95,058.99 18.1%
Total Expense 195,519.59 1,457,818.48 -1,262,298.89 13.4%
Net Ordinary Income 292,488.92 -169,126 .32 461,615.24 -172.9%
Net Income 292,488.92 -169,126.32 461,615.24 -172.9%

Page 2



3:49 PM Mississippi Valley Library District
09/07/23 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
Cash Basis July through August 2023
Jul - Aug 23 Jul - Aug 22 $ Change % Change
Ordinary income/Expense
Income
Taxes
Audit 3,02379 1,81587 1,207.92 66.5%
Building Maintenance 41,035 98 33,778.33 7,257.65 21.5%
FICA/Medicare 19,438.08 16,344 41 3,093.67 18.9%
IMRF 14,254 52 13,62019 634,33 4.7%
Liability Insurance 21,16567 34,141 51 -12,975.84 -38 0%
Property Tax 306,904 59 272,406 00 34,498 59 12.7%
Total Taxes 405,822.63 372,106.31 33,716.32 9.1%
Intergovernment Revenue
E-Rate 4,176.00 3,64920 526,80 14.4%
Grants
FY2023 Per Capita Grant 48,794 48 0.00 48,794,48 100 0%
FY2023 PNG Grant 2,572.05 oco 257205 100 0%
FY2022 Per Capita Grant 0.00 48,784 48 -48,794.48 -100.0%
FY2022 PNG Grant 0.00 B.034.51 -8,034,51 -100 0%
Total Grants 51,366.53 55,828.99 -5,462 46 -96%
Replacement Tax 15,840.95 16,049.78 -108 83 -07%
Total Intergovernment Revenue 71,483 48 76,527 .97 -5,044 49 £.6%
Fines & Forfeitures
Fines 106.20 98 57 7.63 77%
Lost or Damaged Books/lnhouse 592 52 115.94 476,58 4111%
Total Fines & Forfeitures 698.72 21451 484.21 2257%
Charges for Services
Fax 566.10 38520 180,90 47 0%
Printing/Copying 1,508.18 1,382.79 125,39 9.1%
Total Charges for Services 2,074.28 1,767 99 306 29 17.3%
Other Revenues
COBRA Reimbursements 2,786.40 0.00 2,786.40 100.0%
Donations - Des & Undes 240,49 68277 442 28 £4.8%
Sale of Items 808.40 467 00 341,40 73.1%
Online Sales 0.00 3127 -3127 -100.0%
Reimbursements Other libraries 174.99 59.95 115.04 191.9%
Interest Income 1,694 12 1965 1,674.47 8,521.5%
Miscellaneous 1.25 277.08 -27583 -99.6%
Rental Income
FC Pavilion 350.00 0.00 350.00 100.0%
Collinsville Rooms 300.00 75.00 225.00 300.0%
Blum House Rental 1,573.75 1,560.00 13.75 09%
Total Rental Income 2,223.75 1,635.00 588.75 36.0%
Total Other Revenues 7,929 40 3,172.72 475668 149.9%
Total Income 488,008 51 453,789 50 34,219.01 75%
Gross Profit 488,008 51 453,789.50 34,219.01 7.5%
Expense
Personnel
Benefits
IL Unemployment Company 685.73 135.07 55066 407 7%
FICA Company 7,31826 6,989.04 329.22 4.7%
Health/Dental Insurance 7.354.44 11,928.41 -4,573.97 -38.4%
IMRF 18,114.94 11,508 47 6,606 47 57 4%
Total Benefits 33,473.37 30,560.99 2,91238 95%
Salaries
Full Time 67,206,69 72,291 99 -5,085 30 -1 0%
Part time 28,812.97 19,703.90 9,109.07 46 2%
Total Salaries 96,019.66 91,995.89 4,023.77 4.4%
Total Personnei 129,493.03 122,556 .88 6,936 15 57%
Maintenance Services
Building 16,787 61 10,791.25 5,996 36 556%
Equipment 75074 2,23997 -1,489.23 -£6.5%
Grounds 1,575 16 2,275.00 699 84 -30.8%
Total Maintenance Services 19,113.51 15,306.22 3,807 29 24.9%
Professional Services
Publishing 000 3280 -32.80 -100.0%
Payroll Service 549.28 582.20 -32.92 57%
Internet Services 2,187 30 1,385.93 80137 57.8%
Information Technology 7.955.76 10,597 35 -2,641 59 -24 9%
Other Professional Services 33460 368.75 -3415 -9.3%
Total Professional Services 11,026.94 12,967.03 -1,940 09 -15 0%

Page 1



3:49 PM Mississippi Valley Library District
09/07/23 Profit & Loss Prev Year Comparison
Cash Basis July through August 2023
Jul - Aug 23 Jul - Aug 22 $ Change % Change
Professional Development
Dues 1500 150.00 -135.00 -90 0%
Total Professional Development 15.00 150.00 -13500 -800%
Utilities
Natural Gas 180 20 346 29 -166.09 -48 0%
Telephone/Fax 31131 609 57 -298 26 -48 9%
Water/Sewer 446 12 46523 -19.11 “41%
Electricity 451092 13,241 53 -8,73061 65 9%
Total Utilities 5,448.55 14,662.62 -9,21407 £2.8%
Supplies
Equipment 576,87 8599 490.88 570.9%
Office 84575 1,737.92 892,17 -51 3%
Postage 488.37 807.43 -319.06 -39.5%
Total Supplies 1,910.99 2,63134 -720.35 -27 4%
Materials
Other Materials 16,99 320.00 -303.01 -94.7%
Virtual Items 547 61 77288 -225.27 -29.2%
Adult Audio Visual Items 904.65 1,87213 -967.48 -51.7%
Adult Print Materials 2,301.16 2,343.75 -42.59 -1.8%
Juvenile Audio Visual Items 44,99 247 69 -202.70 -81.8%
Juvenile Print ltems 352,68 1,011.63 658 95 £51%
Online Databases 3,284,00 6,304.00 -3,020.00 -47 9%
Total Materials 7.452.08 12,872.08 -5,420 00 -421%
Other Expenditures
Vehicles 496,39 50468 829 -1.6%
Miscellaneous 530,90 41436 116 54 281%
Programming 222.72 123.94 9878 797%
Donation Expenditures - Des. 278,26 163477 -1,356 51 -83.0%
Grant Expenses
FY2023 Per Capita Grant 19,293 92 0.00 19,293.92 100.0%
FY2023 Penny Severns Grant 0.00 72310 -723.10 -100.0%
FY2023 PNG Grant 0.00 6,071.23 -5,071.23 -100.0%
FY2022 Per Capita Grant 000 19,444 75 -19,444 75 -100.0%
FY2022 PNG Grant 0.00 480.37 -480.37 -100.0%
Total Grant Expenses 19,293.92 26,719.45 -7,425 53 -27.8%
Payments to Other Libraries 237.30 113.98 123.32 108.2%
Total Other Expenditures 21,059 49 29,511.18 -8,451.69 -28 6%
Total Expense 195,518 59 210,657.35 -15,137 76 -72%
Net Ordinary Income 292,488.92 243,132,115 49,356.77 20.3%
Net Income 292,488.92 243,132.15 49,356.77 20.3%

Page 2



l q Agency for )
Community Transit

Community Action Grants Program Application - CY23

Project Sponsor: Mississippi Valley Library District

(List one entity)

Project Name: Bike-Friendly Library

Applications requesting more than $10,000 in funding maintain a quarterly deadline and are due by
11:00pm CT January 3, April 3, July 3, October 2 or until 100% of the quarterly allocated CY23 grant funds
are pledged, whichever is sooner. All projects are prioritized based on available funding and scoring
criteria. Applications for projects with a dollar value of $10,000 or less can be submitted throughout the

year.

Project Sponsor is a:

D 501(c)(3) Nonprofit |:| City, Village, Township Park, Transit, or Airport District

Submit application to:

Agency for Community Transit
Attention: Miriam Bell
1 Transit Way
Pontoon Beach, IL 62040
ACTgrants@mct.org

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Date and Time Received:




ACT Community Action Grants Program Information

Organizational Information: Agency for Community Transit, Inc. (ACT) is a private, non-profit 501(c)(3)
agency incorporated in the State of Illinois. ACT provides transportation services for Madison County
residents through the operation of fixed route and paratransit services for Madison County Transit (MCT).

Funding: ACT has committed $2 million for the CY23 Community Action Grant with a maximum of
$100,000 per project and maximum of $100,000 per entity.

Program Intent: To provide multi-modal transportation services to the people, organizations, and
communities of Madison County to enhance mobility for the elderly and disabled, improve ADA
accessibility, and promote alternative transportation modes to improve the quality of life of Madison
County residents. ACT’s Community Action Grant intends to provide technical and financial assistance
and assist in securing funds for impactful transportation related projects.

Submittal Details: Applications requesting more than $10,000 are due by 11:00pm CT January 3,
April 3, July 3, October 2 or until 100% of the quarterly allocated CY23 grant funds are pledged,
whichever is sooner. All projects are prioritized based on available funding and scoring criteria.
Applications for projects with a dollar of $10,000 or less can be submitted throughout the year.

Notification: ACT will review each application and provide notification of the Board of Directors decision
to approve or deny requested funding. The ACT Board reserves the right to fund smaller portions of
projects than requested.

Eligible Applicants: The following entities are eligible to apply:
e City, Village, or Township located in Madison County, Illinois.
e 501(c)(3) nonprofit organizations, parks districts, (including Metro East Park and Recreation
District) transit districts, and airport districts which are based in and/or provide service within
Madison County, lllinois.

Ineligible Applicants: Universities/colleges, schools/school districts, special taxing districts, and Madison
County government are not eligible to apply.

Examples of Eligible Project Types: Transportation / Bicycle / Pedestrian / ADA Accessibility
Improvements / Related Projects. All shared use path and trails infrastructure projects must be included in
the Project Sponsor’s Bicycle/Pedestrian Master Plan. Projects examples include, but are not limited to
the following:
¢ Purchase of an accessible vehicle for transporting the public, and not eligible for MCT’s program
Funds to operate a vehicle used to transport the public
Purchase of MCT fare products for distribution
Funds to support free rides on MCT for a given period
Construction of an ADA accessible bus stop
Construction of wheelchair ramps or other ADA improvements
Funds to provide shuttle service for community festivals and events
Addition of amenities or safety features to a bus stop
Construction or improvement of a trail or shared use path
Construction of a connector to a MCT Trail
Addition of amenities, enhancements, or safety features to a shared use path or bike trail
Flashing beacons or other equipment to facilitate safe bicycle/pedestrian crossings
Funds to support a bicycle or pedestrian event
Development of a bicycle/pedestrian master plan
Bicycle/pedestrian marketing and/or education materials
Support for a program which promotes bicycle/pedestrian development, safety, or education
Funds to purchase and/or distribute helmets or other bicycle safety gear
Funds for land acquisition to allow a community to build a trail
Funds to provide transportation services for elderly and disabled residents
Funds for transportation services for youth programs

e 6 o & 6 o 6 o o o © & & & o » o o o

ACT Community Action Grant — CY23 Page 2 of 8



Eligible Project Components

e Components of projects eligible for reimbursement include, but are not limited to, acquisition,
development, restoration, education, maintenance, planning, programmatic, or operations
expenses.

Ineligible Project Types: Projects which are neither transportation related OR accessibility related are
NOT eligible for assistance. Non ADA accessible shared use paths are NOT eligible. Parks and roadways
are NOT eligible. Non-ADA accessible vehicles are NOT eligible.

Project Scope and Budget: Project Sponsors should make every effort to obtain an accurate project
scope and budget for their application. Changes to scope must be approved by ACT prior to
implementation to ensure reimbursement.

Application Process: Upon receipt of application, ACT staff will score the application for presentation of
the information to the ACT Board. The board will review the subjective score and take discretionary action
at its next regular Board meeting. If approved, a Project Agreement will be sent to the applicant for
execution. Applicant will have 90 days to sign and execute the Project Agreement.

The project period begins upon the date the last person signs the Project Agreement. Expiration of the
Project Agreement will be based upon the type and circumstances of the project.

Costs incurred prior to a fully executed Project Agreement are ineligible for reimbursement, unless at the
discretion of ACT’s Board, such costs are specifically approved. ACT reserves the right to terminate the
Project Agreement if the Project Sponsor fails to start the project within one (1) year of the Project
Agreement’s execution date. The Project Sponsor shall make reasonable and timely progress on the
project and advise ACT of project’s status on a regular basis. Projects not completed, in whole or in part
regardless of reason, may be ineligible for funding in future ACT grant cycles.

Application Review: The ACT Board of Directors will receive submitted applications with a score sheet
completed by ACT Staff. The Board will review the information presented and take action to award funds
as its discretion.

Application Scoring: The application scoring process will award points for the following categories:
e Project Applicability- Project is transportation related. (20%)

Project Impact- Significant impact on residents in community. (20%)
Local Support- Board/Governance support through action or commitment of funds. (20%)
Leveraging Funds- Project leverages funds from local, state, federal, or other grants. (16%)
ADA Accessibility- Project improves ADA accessibility within the community. (10%)
Minority & Low-Income Equity- Project benefits Title VI community and/or low-income
community. (8%)
e Geographic Equity- Project is located in a geographical area that has not received ACT funds

this funding cycle. (6%)

Awarded Funds: Funds approved by the Board may be used toward the local match for transportation
related projects or used toward 100% of the project’s cost. The ACT Board reserves the right to fund
smaller portions of projects than requested. Use of funds must be approved by the ACT Board.

Reimbursement: Payment by ACT shall be made on a reimbursement basis for a completed project. The
Project Sponsor shall complete and submit an ACT Grant Reimbursement Request Form along with
applicable supporting documentation. Final inspection and acceptance of the completed project must be
made by an ACT representative for reimbursement to be issued. ACT's payment will be made payable to
the Project Sponsor.

ACT Community Action Grant — CY23 Page 3 of 8



Application Checklist

A complete ACT Community Action Grant Application for CY23 should contain an application and each of the
following required components, in this order:

Project Scope: Written narrative describing the project including a detail description of how
this project improves equitable and inclusive transportation opportunities for residents of

Madison County, lllinois.

Cost Estimate: Bids, quotes, or documentation supporting the estimated project
costs identified within the application.

Project Timeline: Timeline for the project along with an estimated start date and completion
date.

|:| Bicycle/Pedestrian Master Plan, when relevant.
Project Location Map, when relevant.
Project Photos, when relevant.

Certification Statement found on page 7 of this application signed by the Mayor, Board
President, or Chief Executive of the Project Sponsor

ACT Community Action Grant- CY23 Page 4 of 8



Application Form
Please fill out this form in its entirety. Incomplete applications will not be considered for funding.

1. Project Sponsor (list only one entity): Mississippi Valley Library District

Check one: D 501(c)(3) Nonprofit |:| City, Village, Township Park, Transit, or Airport District
408 West Main Street

Collinsville, IL 62234

2. Proiect Sponsor Address:

3. Project Sponsor FEIN: 80-0121529

4. Project Title: Bike-FriendIy leral'y

5. Proiect Address/Location: Collinsville Memorial Library, 408 W. Main St., Collinsville, IL 62234

6. Proiect Contact Name and Title: KYl2 Waltermire, Executive Director

7. Project Contact Address: 408 WeSt Main Street

Collinsville, IL 62234

8. Project Contact Phone: 618-344-1112 x 201

9. Project Contact Email: Kylaw@mvld.org

10. Is the project located within Madison County? Yes D No

11. Estimated project completion date (month and vear): 11/2023

12. Total Estimated Project Cost: § 1:962.30

13. Requested ACT Grant: $ 1,962.30

14. Briefly explain how the proposed project is transportation related and will enhance existing public
transportation services and/or improve bicycle/pedestrian access and/or ADA accessibility.

The Collinsville Memorial Library is seeking funding to install a bike rack next to the library's main
entrance. Currently there isn't one, and bicyclists struggle to find an appropriate place to secure
their bikes while visiting the library, which sometimes unfortunately results in bike theft.

ACT Community Action Grant — CY23 Page 50f 8



15. Briefly explain how this project addresses a transportation need in Madison County and how many Madison
County residents will be positively impacted.

By providing a convenient place to secure bicycles, as well as being able to provide bike locks
for those who need them, cyclists will be more comfortable using this form of transportation to
and from the library. The library serves approximately 25,000 people in Madison County.

16. Describe the Project Sponsor's support for the proposed project in the form of contributions of funds and/or
support or action taken by the board.

The Mississippi Valley Library District's Board of Trustees discussed ACT grant options for the
past four monthly meetings and are in support of applying for this project.

17. If applicable, provide details on any other current or potential local, state, or federal or grant funding
sources for this project. Include funding information such as timeline, terms, conditions, and amount.

If the bike locks are not funded by the grant, the library will purchase them ($169.90).

18. If applicable, explain how the proposed project improves ADA accessibility within Madison County.

N/A

19. If applicable, please explain how the proposed project serves a Title VI community and/or low income
community. (This data can be found on the US Census website. For assistance or questions contact the Grants

Coordinator.)

While the project does not specifically target low-income individuals, it is common for
low-income individuals to have better access to bike transportation than cars, thus making this
project more likely to positively impact low-income residents.

] Title I [ ] Lowincome [ ]Title Vi & Low Income

ACT Community Action Grant — CY23 Page 6 of 8




Mississippi Valley Library District - Application

Project Scope

The Collinsville Memorial Library is fortunate to be conveniently accessed through a
variety of transportation methods. There are parking lots on two sides of the building
and street parking along the front. A bus stop is located directly in front of the library,
and a bus station is just a few blocks away. As part of the Uptown District, the
sidewalks are well-maintained and used.

The one area in which transportation needs are lacking is for cyclists. The library’s front
entrance does not have a bike rack. This results in bikes being left in the middle of the
sidewalks, being locked to and blocking the front steps, and being dumped in the
landscaping. Additionally, unsecured bikes are unfortunately stolen from library
property from time to time. Those who ride bikes to the library tend to be those who
have limited means to reach the library through other forms of transportation - namely,
youths, low-income, and unsheltered individuals. Stolen bikes can be crippling for these
individuals’ ability to successfully and independently move around in the world.

In order to provide better security measures for bicyclists and to keep the library’s
walkways and egresses cleared of hazards, the Collinsville Memorial Library is
requesting funding for the purchase and installation of a bike rack to go next to the main
entrance. The library is also requesting funds to purchase 20 bike locks that can be
given away to visitors needing a way to secure their bikes.



Mississippi Valley Library District - Application

Cost Estimate

Purchase of 5-bike surface mount rack and hardware - $352.40 (including S&H)
Installation of concrete pad - $1,440.00

Purchase of 20 Master Lock bike lock cables with preset lock combos - $169.90

TOTAL COST: $1,962.30

See attached for quotes



Driveways & Patios, Decks, Fences, Pav with
Retaining Walls, Demo, Concrete ’

Pumping, Hardscape & More!
Owner: Emilio P. Perkins q U O
Fully Insured - Locally Owned & Operated e
| — =
cRETE LLE. www.whodoesvourconcrete.com @ VISA .
wHO DOES YDU Contact: 618-567-2521 o o e B

e
-

Concrete Flatwork- QUOTE

Job Description

PREPARED FOR: PREPARED DATE
9/2/23
Client: Kyla Waltermire PREPARED BY

Emilio Perkins - Owner

Address: 408 W Main St. Collinsville, IL

Measure Section:

Flatwork/Job Notes:Demo current concrate and/or earth to prep site for 1) 3x4
install of new concrete pad. Excavate 12 and set forms. Instaif CA-6 rock base 2)

and tamper with a 2 ton Wacker Neison Compactor. Pour new 4k PS! Concrate 3)

with fibre, reinforcement and <5 year sealer. Install joints with a Standard broom :
finish. Strip Foams and complete a final clean-up. End result will be (See Total Sq/Ft. 12

Measure Section) @ 6 inch thick concrete pad(s).

PRICE per

ITEM LIST TOTAL Sq/Ft. Sq/Ft. TOTAL Cost
Excavate/Haul, Prep, Form & Prepare Teiak T2 $50.00 $600.00

New I[nstall Concrete w/4,000psi 6 Slump al-12
Includes: Rebar/Fibre/Rock g | $70.00 $840.00

ONLY $120 SQ.FT.
INSTALLED!

JOB TOTAL = 1,440.00

AGREED AND ACCEPTED:



hopping Cart

Deselect all itams

Your Items

Saved for later (18 items)

- Search Amazon

Need to add a gift to your cart?
Make it easy, give a gift card.

Browse designs

Explore 150+ designs for 20+ occassions. No expiration. No fees.

Master Lock Bike Lock Cable,
Combination Bicycle Lock,

$16.99

H ,7 o Cable 2 Cham Locks

In Stock

& FREE Returns
Sligible for FREE Same-0ay, Dvarmignt or
Tomerrow detivany
) Thisis a gift Lsarn mora
Style: 4 Ft. Preset Combo
Size: 2 Pack
—

10 | Defate Save for iatar
Compara with similar itams Shara
Subtotal (10 items): $169.90
Buy it again

Master Lock Bike Lock Cable, Energizer AAA Batteries, Max
Combination Bicycle Lock, C... Alkaline, 24 Count
$16.99 $14.89
Tin cobie & Chain Lo In Stock
In Steck & FREE Returns

& FREE Raturns

Style: 4 Ft. Preset Comba

Size: 2 Pack

Size: 24 Count (Pack of 1)

Move to cart

Ceieta

525

You are getting FREE Overnight delivery!

Subtotal (10 items): $169.90

() This order contains a gift

Proceed to checkout

You might be running low on

Scotch Removable
Tape, 3/4inx 1,296

1,779
37.00

Add to Cart

85N32953 -
=, Transnarent Tape, 1...

LB P 8,273
,5’/ $11.90

. Add to Cart

MFLABEL Thermal
Receipt Paper Rolls ...

4,877
$63.99
_:Qdd to éar.t
-*-F__ w Amazen Basics 9« 12-
Inch Clasp Kraft..
it 4,304
o R
2253

Add ta Cart



';fm GmaiE Kyla Waltermire <kylaw@mvld.org>
g 5

Barco Products: Quote# QUORCO17487

1 message

Barco Products <sales@barcoproducts.com> Tue, Sep 12, 2023 at 2:39 PM
Reply-To: Barco Products <messages.1315792.21019891.26dec39e62@1315792.email.netsuite.com>
To: Kylaw@mvld.org

Dear Kyla Waltermire:

Thank you for your interest in Barco Products. Below is the quote you have requested.
Please advise if any changes are required or when you are ready to place the order.

We look forward to doing business with you.
Thank you,

Kellie x 5472
Barco Products
Customer Service and Inside Sales Representative
(800) 338-2697
Please review our company's Product Warranty, Shipping Policy, and Return Policy as stated at the bottom of our
website: www.barcoproducts.com before placing your order.

PP sarse... Quote

Barco Products

24 N Washington Ave Account Number - 89374
Batavia IL 60510 .

(800) 338-2697 ESt|mate # QUORCO1 7487
customerservice@barcoproducts.com 9/12/2023
Customer Ship To

Kyla Waltermire

Mississippi Valley Library District Kyla Waltermire

408 W Main St Mississipp_i Valley Library District

o 408 W Main St
Collinsville IL 62234 Collinsville 1L 62234
(618) 344-1112 ofinsviile

ltem Qty Rate  Amount Estimated Lead Time

05CL1292-BK , 1 $22885  $228.85 Ships in 4 - 5 Weeks
Park-1t Bike Racks/ 5-Bike Rack/ Surface Mount)/ Black
05CL1422-BK , 1 $2285  $22.85 Ships in 4 - 5 Weeks
Covers for Surface Mount Park-It Bike Racks/ Set of 2
BKHRD-8 1 $14.85  $14.85 Ships in 4 - 5 Weeks

Surface Mount Hardware Kit (8)



Subtotal $266.55

Tax Total (%) $0.00
Shipping $85.85
Total $352.40

*Estimated lead time is based on normal fulfillment time of an order at this moment. Orders with large quantities may
require additional time. These estimates are subject to change based on the nationwide supply chain issue.

PRICING FOR THIS QUOTE IS LOCKED IN FOR 30 DAYS



Mississippi Valley Library District - Application

Project Timeline

September 2023 - Submit application

October 2023 - Complete project agreement; order supplies upon receipt of fully
executed agreement

November 2023 - Receive supplies; schedule installation; complete installation
December 2023 - Submit reimbursement request(s) and applicable supporting
documentation or reports

Spring 2023 - If needed due to scheduling or weather constraints, complete installation,
reimbursement request(s), and applicable supporting documentation or reports



Mississippi Valley Library District - Application

Project Location Map

v AMississippi

Valley
Library:

Mississippi
Valley Library

~
.l 9

Nlississippi
Valley;
Library:




Mississippi Valley Library District - Application

relevant




Certification Statement

In WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have caused this grant application to be executed by
their duly designated and authorized representatives.

| do hereby certify that | have the legal authority to represent the Project Sponsor and submit this grant
application on behalf of the Project Sponsor and that the information presented in this grant application and the
referenced attachments are true and correct. | do further certify that the project will be completed in accordance
with the provisions set forth in this grant application and the ACT Project Agreement and that the Project
Sponsor has the financial resources to fund one hundred percent (100%) of the proposed project costs. The
award may be less than what is requested but may not exceed the amount requested. It is understood that the
project must be completed within the timeframe established in this application and the Project Agreement, and
the reimbursement request must be submitted within ninety (90) days of project completion, uniess extenuating
circumstances prevent such a request and are discussed with and approved by ACT. Failure to do so will result
in the Project Sponsor forfeiting all project reimbursements and relieves ACT from further payment obligations
of the grant.

(Certification must be signed by Mayor, Board President, or Chief Executive of Project Sponsor)

Project Sponsor: MISSISSIppI Valley lerary District

Print Name: Kyla Waltermire

print Title: EXecutive Director
3 - /‘ -;),' >

Signature and Date: /ﬁt/z.. £ /{/14-'/21_,--—-'-— 09/13/23

Attested by: Jeanne I'_'oéax

Signature and Date: 09/18/23

[This space left intentionally blank.]

ACT Community Action Grant — CY23 Page 7 of 8



Project Agreement

This Project Agreement is entered intoon _____ day of . 20 between AGENCY FOR COMMUNITY TRANSIT
(“ACT”) and (“Project Sponsor”).

Whereas the Project Sponsor has submitted an application to ACT for the Community Action Grant concerning the project
named . Whereas this grant is for the exclusive purpose of supporting the Project
Sponsor's transportation related project within Madison County, lllinois. Now, therefore, ACT has approved the project and
agrees to award a grant for the sum of dollars ($ ). The Parties to this

Project Agreement agree to the following:

Execution & Termination: The project period begins upon the date the last person signs this Project Agreement. Expiration of
this Project Agreement shall be . Costs incurred prior to a fully executed Project
Agreement are ineligible for reimbursement. ACT reserves the right to terminate this Project Agreement if the Project Sponsor
fails to start the project within one (1) year of the Project Agreement’s execution date. The Project Sponsor shall make
reasonable and timely progress on the project and advise ACT of project’s status on a regular basis. Projects not completed, in
whole or in part regardless of reason, may be ineligible for funding in future ACT grant cycles.

Reimbursement: Payment by ACT shall be made on a reimbursement basis for a completed project. The Project Sponsor
shall complete and submit an ACT Grant Reimbursement Request Form along with applicable supporting documentation. Final
inspection and acceptance of the completed project must be made by an ACT representative for reimbursement to be issued.
ACT’s payment will be made payable to the Project Sponsor.

Financial Records: All funds expended by the Project Sponsor in conjunction with the project must comply with Local, State,
and Federal laws pertaining to the expenditure of public funds. Documentation,of project costs and payments may be
requested by ACT. All project records must be maintained for a period of no less tham five {5) years, or longer if required by
law.

Acknowledgment: Upon ACT Board approval of the Application and r_gdeip_t of the executed Project Agreement with ACT, all
press/public communications in reference to the project by the Praject Sponsar shall state that it is funded in-part by ACT.
Acknowledgment must be included in any publicly shared drafts®f the plan, aswell as the final version. To satisfy this
requirement, the Project Sponsor must insert, where deemed appmpﬂate ACT’s logo. If ACT logo is used, ACT must review
all public materials prior to release to ensure all brand standards are. obser\red

Insurance: Project Sponsor and any contractor hired ursetamed by the Pro;ect Sponsor in connection with this project shall
maintain all necessary insurance in full force and eﬁedmroughout the term of Project Agreement.

Indemnification: The Project Sponsor and con&actots shaﬂ indemnify, defend, and hold harmless ACT, its board members,
employees and agents from all claims, |Iabl|ltIeS oblagahons and causes of action in connection with this Project.
’J‘

Assignment: Project Sponsor agreesihat thlsProject Agreement shall not be assigned or transferred without the written
consent of ACT and that any successotto’the Prpject Sponsor’s rights under this Project Agreement will be required to
accede to all of the terms, conditions and requiggments of the Agreement as a condition precedent to such succession.

Amendment: The parties agree that no change or modification to this Project Agreement shall be of any force or effect
unless the amendment is dated and is reduced to writing and executed by both parties.

Compliance with Law: The Project Sponsor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and codes of the United
States, the State of lllinois, and local governments, including, but not limited to, Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and no
person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, religion, sexual orientation, veteran status, or disability
be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any grant,
program, or activity for which the Project Sponsor receives assistance from ACT. Project Sponsor acknowledges that it has
performed due diligence to assure its Project complies with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

On behalf of Project Sponsor, | understand this fully executed agreement serves as a Notice to Proceed and agree to the
foregoing terms and conditions of the ACT Community Action Grant, and hereby certify my authority to execute this agreement.

Project Sponsor: Agency for Community Transit:
Steven J. Morrison, Executive Director

(Printed Name and Title)

(Signature of Authorized Representative) (Signature of Executive Director)

(Date) (Date)

ACT Community Action Grant — CY23 Page 8 of 8



ORDINANCE NO. 24-01
MVLD BUDGET AND APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE

ANNUAL BUDGET AND APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE FOR THE MISSISSIPPI VALLEY LIBRARY DISTRICT
OF THE COUNTIES OF MADISON AND ST. CLAIR, STATE OF ILLINOIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2023 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2024

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Mississippi Valley Library District, of the Counties of Madison and St.
Clair, State of lllinois, has prepared or caused to be prepared a tentative form of the Annual Budget and
Appropriation for said Public Library District for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024
and the same has been conveniently available for public inspection for at least thirty (30) days prior to final
action thereon; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held as to such Annual Budget and Appropriation Ordinance on September 18,
2023, notice of which was given at least thirty (30) days prior thereto by publishing notice thereof in a
newspaper of general circulation in the Mississippi Valley Library District; and

WHEREAS, all other legal requirements have been duly complied with by the Board of Trustees of Mississippi
Valley Library District;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND THE TRUSTEES OF THE MISSISSIPPI VALLEY LIBRARY
DISTRICT, IN THE COUNTIES OF MADISON AND ST. CLAIR, STATE OF ILLINOIS, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: That the following sums, or so much thereof as by law may be authorized, be and the same are
hereby budgeted, set aside and appropriated for the specified Library Purposes for the fiscal year beginning July
1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024; and the objects and purposes for which said appropriations are made, and
the amounts thereby appropriated are as follows; to-wit:

FOR CORPORATE PURPOSES [75 ILCS 16/35-5]:

1. For personnel salaries $ 640,000
2. For health insurance benefits S 100,000
3. For state unemployment insurance $ 10,000
4. For lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Employee) S 41,000
5. For maintenance services $ 60,000
6. For professional services

a. Internet services S 13,000

b. Info. technology S 65,000



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

C. Legal service $ 10,000
d. Payroll service S 6,000

e. Publishing S 800

f. Other prof. services $ 10,000
For professional development

For utilities

a. Electricity S 70,000
b. Natural gas S 12,000
C. Telephone/Fax S 5,000
d Water/sewer S 4,000

For supplies (office/building/equipment)
For postage

For materials

a. Adult print items S 35,000
b. Adult audio/visual S 15,000
c. Online databases S 20,000
d. Juvenile print items S 8,000
e. Juvenile audio/visual $ 4,000
f. Virtual $ 10,000
g. Other materials S 4,000

For grant expenses

For payments to other libraries
Programming

For vehicles

For miscellaneous expenses

$ 104,800

$ 5,000

S 91,000
S 28,000

$ 7,000

S 96,000
$ 90,000
S 4,000
$ 10,000
$ 15,000
$ 10,000

TOTAL

FOR SOCIAL SECURITY FUND PURPOSES [40 ILCS 5/21-110; 40 ILCS 5/21-110.1]:

Social Security and Medicare Taxes

$ 60,000

TOTAL

$1,311,800

$ 60,000



FOR ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND [40 ILCS 5/ 7-171]:

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (Employer)

FOR AUDIT PURPOSES [50 ILCS 310/9]:

Contractual Services - Audit

$ 70,000

TOTAL

$ 10,000

TOTAL

FOR LIABILITY AND WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE [745 ILCS 10/9-107]:

Insurance
a. Liability & Workers Comp. Insurance
b. Risk Management and Loss Control Program

FOR BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND [75 ILCS 16/35-5]:

Building Maintenance Cost
a. Building expenses
b. Grounds

FOR SPECIAL RESERVE FUND [75 ILCS 16/40-40; 75 ILCS 5/5-8]:

1. Emergency and/or designated projects
2. Contingency

FOR THE PURPOSE OF A GIFT FUND [75 ILCS 16/30-75]

Designated donations

$ 45,000
$ 100,000

TOTAL

$ 130,000
$ 10,000

TOTAL

$ 50,000
$ 10,000

TOTAL

$ 30,000

TOTAL

§ 70,000

$ 10,000

$ 145,000

$ 140,000

$ 60,000

$ 30,000



FOR THE PURPOSE OF A WORKING CASH FUND [75 ILCS 16/30-95; 75 ILCS 16/35-35]:

Working Cash Fund $ 230,000

TOTAL $ 230,000

Section 2: Appropriated for the foregoing expenses from the following estimate of revenues, by source,
anticipated to be received by the Library District in the fiscal year:

Projected cash on hand July 1, 2023 $1,000,000
Special Reserve Fund S 60,000
Working Cash Fund $ 230,000
Gift Fund $ 30,000
Miscellaneous gifts and donations S 49,800
interest Income $ 15,000
Special purpose grants $ 100,000
Fees and charges S 25,000
Miscellaneous income S 30,000
Reimbursements (COBRA, E-Rate, other libraries) S 42,000
Rentals and leases S 35,000
Personal property replacement taxes S 95,000
Tax for General Corporate Library purposes $ 920,000
Tax for Social Security purposes $ 60,000
Tax for IL Municipal Retirement Fund S 70,000
Tax for Audit purposes S 10,000
Tax for Liability and Insurance S 145,000

Tax for Maintenance purposes $ 140,000



Expected cash on hand June 30, 2024 $ 1,000,000

Section 3: Any unexpended balances in the General Library Fund and Maintenance Fund appropriations will
be deposited into the Special Reserve Fund pursuant to a plan in accordance with 75 ILCS 16/40-50.

Section 4: The Secretary of the Mississippi Valley Library District is hereby authorized and directed to have
this Ordinance published at least once in a newspaper of general circulation within this library district.

Section 5: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from its passage, approval and publication as
provided by law.

Passed by the Board of Trustees of the Mississippi Valley Library District and approved by the
President thereof this 18™ day of September, 2023.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
MISSISSIPPI VALLEY LIBRARY DISTRICT

President

ATTEST:

Secretary



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS:

COUNTIES OF MADISON AND ST. CLAIR )

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICITY

(Budget and Appropriations Ordinance)

I, Lisa McCormick, do hereby certify that | am the duly appointed, qualified, and now acting
Secretary of the Board of Trustees of the Mississippi Valley Library District in the Counties of Madison and
St. Clair and State of Illinois; that attached hereto is a true and correct copy of the Annual Budget and

Appropriations Ordinance No. 24-01 for the fiscal year July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024.

| further certify that the Annual Budget and Appropriations Ordinance was duly passed by the Board
of Trustees of said Library District at a meeting thereof held on the 18™ day of September, 2023; that said
Ordinance was duly passed by yea and nay vote thereon with at least a majority of all the Board of Trustees
having voted yea on the adoption and passage thereof and approved in accordance with the laws of the

State of Illinois pursuant to the notice and publication thereof as required by law.

| further certify that said Annual Budget and Appropriations Ordinance contains an estimate of

revenues, by sources, anticipated to be received by the Mississippi Valley Library District in the fiscal year.

In Witness Whereof, | have signed my name in my official capacity as the Secretary of the Board of

Trustees of the Mississippi Valley Library District, at Collinsville, lllinois, this 18" day of September, 2023.

Lisa McCormick, Secretary

Mississippi Valley Library District

(District Seal) Date Signed:




ORDINANCE NO. 24-02
BUILDING AND MAINTENANCE FUND ORDINANCE

An Ordinance to Levy and Assess a Tax for the Mississippi Valley Library District
Of the Counties of Madison and St. Clair, State of lllinois for the Fiscal Year
Beginning July 1, 2023 and Ending June 30, 2024

Be It Ordained, that the Mississippi Valley Library District of the Counties of Madison and St.
Clair in the State of lllinois shall levy a tax of .02% of the value of all taxable property within said District,
for building and maintenance purposes, subject to the right of electors in said District to petition and
require an election concerning the imposition of such tax, pursuant to 75 ILCS 16/35-5.

Be It Further Ordained, that within fifteen (15) days from the date of adoption of the ordinance,
it shall be published in the Madison-St. Clair Record, a newspaper of general circulation in the
Mississippi Valley Library District and it is effective immediately upon adoption.

In Witness Whereof, we have hereunder set our hands in Collinsville, lllinois, this 18" day of
September, 2023.

(1) The specific number of voters required to sign a petition requesting that the
question of adoption of the ordinance be submitted to the electors of the District is
2,151.

(2) The petition must be filed on or before October 22, 2023.

(3) The referendum would be held March 19, 2024.

Posted: September 19, 2023

President of the Board of Trustees

ATTEST:

Secretary of the Board of Trustees



Jeadde [Im 3u0 mau B ‘Buj| U0 UBY]} SI0W PASU NOA JT "9DIAISS 10} SIORAIU0D AJelql] ANOA YoIym yaim (sa1)Aleaqy| 943 Jo (s)aweu |eb3| [Ny 2y} @pirodd aseald

| S9DIAISS 10j Joe.1JU0))|
“oN| T zse@dini9s Ateiqy] JnoA 11V IAIIDIY 03 Aledq)] J3YIoUE Yylm 10B13u0d Aseig)| inoA seod 61'T

BN o T iAaeiqy jooyds pue dyqnd pauiquiod e Aseiqij urew ay3 ST 8T°T|

[ .w..w-_ lamsue vmum_un_... a2y} Ja3usa uayj ‘pabueyd sey adAy Aleaqil 2y3 JI 9ZT°T

Jlu:%m_n_ - Ateaqu) Jo u&..._. /1T

*adAj Aleuqi] ay3 3noqe uoijewiogul pajsenbaa ayj apinoad asea|d

uonew.ojur Ateiqr

jlew-3 s,1030041q Aseiqr] 9T1°T

mLo.u_aE@.Bm_mx_| -
1030941 BAIINDBX3| ML ST'T|
~ eJnuiayEem m_>v__ sweN vT'T|

1030241p Adelqi| 9Y) JO SsaJppe jlew-3 pue 3] ‘oweu ||ny 2y} 193ud asea|d

uonew.ojug s,1030241a Aseaqr|

Bao plawrmmm/ /:dny| T o 25920 ET'T
- | - T 'asay Jamsue payepdn a3 493us uay) ‘pabuRyd sey sequinu Xej a3 I 9T
 T0b9SPESTY| - - . JaquinN Xvd Aleaqil ezT'T

[ =———— 218y Jomsue pajepdn sy} 1931ub uay) ‘pabueyd sey saquinu auoydajel I IT IT'T

TITTYVERTY - {297 51d] Jequiny aucydaja) Alesqr eTT'T
I.._‘ o ~ 2.9y Jomsue pajepdn ayj3 J93ud UdY} uum:m_._u sey apad diz Bujjlew s,Aj02) 943 JI 9OT'T

vEZZO - [65T s1d] diz Buiew 201°T

| |. *a19y Jomsue paiepdn ayy Jsjus usy) ‘pabueyd sey Ay Bujiiew s A3110e) 2u1 4T A6°T |

ajIAsuljoD)| ) [8sT 5141 A0 Bulew e6'T |
| ‘248y Jamsue pPaiepdn ay) Jaju3 uayy .vuu:m:u sey ssajppe Gujiew s JAjoey a2yl )T 98'T |

192.1S uleW 159M 80Y| [£ST S1d] SS°4ppy Buljien eg't
| ‘aiay Jomsue pajepdn ayy Ja3us uayj ‘pabueyd sey apod diz s, A28y 243 §T 9L°T

[SST $1d] diz Anjioed es't

PEZTY
] ~ alaytamsue pajepdn ay} J1a3uo ua ‘pabueyo sey A3 s Ajes ayar qo't
apasunod [¥ST 51d] Ao Aupoey eo't
i “'a1ay Jamsue pajepdn sy) Jojus uay) ‘pabueys sei ssasppe aans 5,A110e) 8yl JI 95°'T
19941 UIBW ISOM BOF ) [EST 514] SSe4ppy 19041s Aljl12ed BS'T |
"aJay Jamsue pajepdn ay) 193ud uay) ‘pabueyd sey sweu s A1RIqQI Y JI Ab°T |
PM3sIq Aleaqr AsjieA 1ddississSii| - - [ZST S1d] AJeiqr] Jo swep |e6a7 Ep'T |
z00| - ] [00Z S1d] D3s SIs4 4E'T|
 pitong B - [00Z S1d ‘0ST S1d] QI S2Sd BE'T
00| - o [T0Z S1d 'IST S1d] # youeud 1SI T'T|
SOZOE| - - [10£ 51d 'TST S1d] # |1o13u0D ST T°T|

*ABAINS BY3 40O DUI| 3X3U dY} UO papiaoid xoq Y3 Ul UoIeLIcjul PR1DD410D DY) 493ud ‘pajiepdn aq 03 spadu

uoljewIojul JT *pajg-a4d si UOIIOIS SIY} Ul Uoljewiojul ayjy jo Aydofew ay] *(ajiqownooq 1o youedq ‘Aleaqi] [eljuad e J9Yyiaym ‘ucijedo| e si }3|3n0 ue) 393n0
3auo ueyj aJow aaey Aeuw 31 10 }313n0 3j6uls e aney Aew Ajijua aAnReIsIUIWLpe 3y "uoidtpsiini jedo] e jo uonejndod ay) 03 901A43s Aleuaqi) dqnd apinocad 03 me|
ajels 10 |20} Japun paysijqelsa Ajjeba) si jeyl Aduabe ayj se pauyap si ,Al3ug SApensiuIupy,, ‘Ajjus aapejsiuliwpe syl INoqe uoijewiojul sl UoIas Sy L

| (TE'T - T'T) NOILVOI4ILNAA]

_ AVidI|

12THLISTIA AYYHEIT ASTIVA IddISSISSINW
€207  (UV1dI) 14OdIY TVNNNY A¥VEEIT D1719Nd SIONITII




- _ UIALNAD AYVHEIT ALID LINOWNIVS| HILNID ANVHEIT ALID LNOWHIVS

¢abueyd aweu *249Y Jomsue kum_un__..m [z0Z s1d] awenN _ . uoneso

[e1D14J0 Ue Syl Sep DE£°Z|9Y) 191U udy] ‘pabueyd sey sweu [eH3] S,39|3N0 9yl JI qE°T| JeBa aj1qounjoog Jo youelg eg-g|| |

2weN 31913n0 mu_?_wm_

onN 2A1Eaqy Jooyds pue J1jqnd pauiquod e selieIql| YIUEIq BY3 4o Aue a1y ez'Z|
T B [0TZ 57d] SeME4qY YaUEIq Jo JRqWINU [ejoL qT°T |

0| ) [Z1£ S1d % 11T S1d] SOIIqOWY00q 30 J3qUINU |e30L ET°T

‘peppe aq ued }I }ey} os (rob-sos|1@hinqd
‘89T T-582-£17) Bang 184 19€3U00 aseald ‘eg 'z uolrsanb ul pajs|| dweu S} 99S J0U OP pUe [IOUNjooq 10 yduelq e aAeY NoA JI “yeis Aleaqi] ?ie1s
Aq AsA4ns s1y) 03 pappe 9q Ajuo ued suoiedo *Aldeaqi] JnoA Jo (s9jIqowdjooq ‘saydue.q ‘s|efjusad) s33|3IN0 IDIAISS By} Jnoqe uonReuLIoU] s1ayjeb uono9s syl

(91" - T°27) S1311N0 IOIAYIS|

mm;._ |ﬂm.n.-m._n:.mco_a_czoum.;ms__u.__n.amom"_a::om_._ﬂ_bw__:.iaauEEuizu__aan.m_ﬁmwonHm.ﬂ
T SeA I ) T gspungonqnd ym 3ied ui 1o sjoym u patoddns Aseiql] Siy3 SI 0€'T
£3INpayds pue ‘ye3s ‘uo01339)100 € yons uoddns 0} Alessadau saiy|ey 9Y3 9Aey Adeiql| 3yl saog 6Z°T
Zo11Gnd 93 03 9|GE[IEAE D€ JJ]S 243 JO S2DIAIDS YIIYM UI 2|NpaYds paysi|qelsa ue aAey Aieiql syl seod 8T'T
- éisers pied aney Aleiql Siyl s90q LT'T |
ijoaiayy|
UORBUIqLICS B 10 ‘s|eldaiew Aleiql] 13430 Jo pajulid Jo uoi13daj0d paziueblo ue aaey Alelq)) siyl seoq 9T°T

*spunj 21iqnd yjim ped ui 4o 3joym ul payioddns s °g

pue ‘5|npayds pue ‘Jjeis ‘uoi3daljod e yans jroddns 03 A1essa0dU saNnljloe) YL v

H1qnd a2y} 03 9|qe[IBAR D4R JJEIS DY) JO SIIIAISS YIIYm Ul 3|NPaYDs paysl|qelsd uy "¢

{33e3s pred '

1§09J3Y3} UORUIqUIOD B .10 ‘s|elalew Alelql] 419430 10 pajuldd Jo uoi3da)|od paziuebio uy '1

:6uIMmo]]0) dY3] ISeI] 1k sapiaodd eyl pue ‘uoibad 1o IOL3SIP ‘AJJUNWWOD B JAIIS 0] suonenbau

10 sme| Buijqeus 91e3s J9pun paysiqe3sa si 3eyj Apjua ue si Ateaq) olqnd e ‘Asains Aleaqri dliqnd ,S921A19S Ateuqi] pue wnasniy Jo 3N3ISuUT 243 03 Buipa0d3dYy

el1911) Ateaqiq o1qnd [ed9pad|

219y Jamsue pajepdn ayj J93ua uayy ‘pabueyd sey waysis s,Areiqy oy JI asT'T|
S1HI Zwa1sAs Aieaqi] SIOUl[|T 3BYM JO JqWiaw e Ajua.Land s Aseaqi| siyl ese'T|
- - abuey> uopejndod [e63j Jo uonRUWINDOQ IET T |
“-a13y Jemsue pajepdn ay) Jojus uay) ‘abueyd JyDI] e pey sey oseq Xe} oy} us buipises uonendod syl I qET'T|
T80’EE] o [80Z S1d] (24nBy snsuad jeiapa} [BIOLY0 I1SOIE] Y3 3sM) 9seq xe) ul buipisas uonendod BET'T |

oN/ [S0Z S1d] ¢4e9A jsed ayy Bulinp abueyd sslepUNnOq B4R DIAIBS |263)] S,A1jUR aAeISIUIWDE 243 PId ©ZZ'T
[ T *aJsy tomsue pajepdn ayj Jajus uay) ‘pabueyd sey AJunod s,A313UD daiellSIUIWPe 9Y3 JI nﬁN.ﬂ_
- [19T DS1d] Po1ed0] SI A313uD SARRSIUIWPE dYl Ydiym ul Ajuno) eIz i

uosipep

*Aieaqr] 93e3ls sioul|I @43

03 UCIIEIILIDA [BIDIJ0 HWANS 3SNW NoA ‘ebueyd uoneindod e pey sey Aleaqi) 4noA I *AdAans ay} Jo auj| 1Xau Y3 uo papiaold xoq ay3 ul uoijewloju; pajepdn
ay) J93ud Isea|d ‘102.4400Ul S1 UORBWLIOSUI DY) JI "P3ljiJ-24d 3q [JIM UOIII3S SIL} Ul UOIIEWL.IojUl BY] JO ISO "Sed.te IDIAISS Ale.ql] Jo SaIIepuUnoq 10 sjwi| 3y3 o}
sobueyd Aue 10 3DIAL3S Aleiql] JO SUOISUIIXD Aue 03 se Juawalels e apiaoad 0] [(Z)(e)s9-0£/9T SI1I SZ ‘(S)OT-/S SD1I GZ] @1niels Aq pasinbaJ aJde sauelqi

:o_umE‘_onEH w>_um._um_:_E_u<_

:y)m JoejuUOd NoA Alelql| jo aweu [eba

:saueiqi) Bunoeuoa jo Jequiny|

*X0q 1S41J Y3 U] paJajud uddq Sky 3xX33 U0



1eaA [EDSIy MBU B 03 paydyms Adedql) ANOoA JI *4eaA |eds)) JuaLind jJsow InoA Jo pus ayj ybnosyy Yvidi snolnaad ayj jJo pua ayj) Wodjy dull) dY3 12A0d pjnoys
pouad 110daa ay| "}lodad ay) Buliedald uosiad ayj 10} uojeWLIOUS JDRIUOD pUR dWel By} pue j10dad jenuue siyy Aq paJaaod poriad awiy 2y) 19jud aseald

(£°€ - T°€) V1va 1¥0d3Y TVNNNY)|

0 0 ~ osv'eg] I £
0 0 z99'27| _ zs
6T-AIAOD 6T 19pn0 [¥1£ s1d] 2nand ayj 03 3DIAISS

01 ang Ajuedndo0 -AIAOD 031 @ng paso|d|
pajiwi] peH 32]3NQ ue I9AN0 ue S}eoM
S}22M JO J2qWINN 9T°T Jo JaqWINN ST°T

[ayy w1 s3iSIA /a0UERpUaIE
Jenuue [Bjol $1°C

10) uddo sem }9J3N0 IJIAIAS
s1y3 ‘4eaA jeosy ayj Butrinp
‘s)@am jo Jaqunu [ejo] £€I1°C

BJIAIDS SIY] 10) UVIA
U3d S4noY IVIAIBS| |

9TT'E | "1 ATTIVA IddISSISSIW
~ TZE'ZT) HALNID AYVHEIT ALIO LINOWHIVS
[€T£ s1d] vano _

uoyeooT

onqnd |ejol ZT°T|| |

20UERpuUINIY pue m._so_._f

-j10dad |enuue|
snoiaaid ay3 03 padedwod se j1odas [enuue siy} 10} abejooy
aaenbs u1 9duesien /obueyd aYyj 40) UOSEDS BY]) DIEdIPUT DTIT'T

paiepdn ayjy 193u9 uayz ‘pabueyd sey
abejooj a1enbs s,Ajjoey 9yl ST qITT

..... _— i

"249Y Jomsue

Jo abejoog asenbs eiy'e
il

saj

[ '@ A3TIVAIAMISSISSIN|

| 000°sZ|
00S’£[ [43LNID AYVHEIT ALID LNOWNIVA

[t1£ s1d] 3™inO uoneso

CENIEY m:um_

] ZITTIPPESTY - - 7 uosIpe| | "1 AFTIVA IddISSISSIN
| 996£T8YBIY| - - _ J1e1D "31S| [MFLINID AUVUEN ALID INOWNIVA
‘a49y
d] *243Y Jomsue pajepdn ayj 193ud uayj; [£0Z S1d]
Jamsue pajepdn ayj 13jud uayj ‘pabueyd [80L S1 A . | " uoeso]
sey Jaquinu suoyd s,3193n0 943 JI qOT'T auoyda|al eQr'c pabueyd sey Ajunod s,19]3IN0 943 JI 46 N_ Ajuno) eg ¢
auoyd 3 Ajuno)|
vETTY| - o - | 3F1IASNITIO)]| “G"1 AITTVA IddISSISSIN
| . T02Z9| | ALID LNOWUYIVH [H3LINID AUVHEIT ALID INOWHIVS
*aJ49y Jamsue pajepdn ayj Jojud [soZ s1d] *249Y Jomsue pajepdn a3 J23ud R174 00
uay) ‘pabueyd sey apod diz S,319[IN0 SYF JI q8'z  =pod diz eg'z| uayl ‘pabueyd sey Apd S,39IN0 DY JI q£°7] ST1d] AN es'z uopeaoy
mmw.__u.ui

éabueyd
uonedoj jesisAyd e siyy sepy um.N_

Y3 423ua uayj) ‘pabueyd sey ssalppe 393435 S,319AN0 9Y3 JI 49°C

133¥1S NIVIW 1SIM 807/ |

‘T AITIVA _n_n:wm_ww_s_m

~ PeOY 3[IIASUN[0D brPy NILNIO ANVHEN ALID LNOWHIVS

*aJ4ay Jomsue pajepdn

S§1d] ssa4ppy 192435 €9°Z |

[eoz uoneo0T

SS2.1ppYy aww‘_ug

005020€|
10S0Z0€|
[10Z S1d] # youeug ISI S°¢|

~ sozog| |
SOZOE| |
(10 s1d] # j03u0) ST $'T| |

‘a1 AITIVA _n_n__wm_ww_s_.
HILNID AUYHLIT ALID LNOWHIVSL
uonesoT

49qWnN [043uU0) S]]

J91ua) Aleaqiy |e

HOWRW 3||IASuL|0))|| ‘"1 ASTIVA IddISSISSIN|



uoneUdWNOoP|
abenbue| Jojjeq WNpUdIdDY L°P|

(4eaA/pp/wiw)

ipajed

9jeq @A109Y3 9'p| 1o passed S'tb 91eQ WNPUSIRY ¥’ OUI SeM JBUM 13430 JI €'Y

~ (aeaA/pp/wwu) ¢adAy E:v:u._muo.__ odAL WNPUSIRPY T'F

S E:v:w._wu_w@

uoeEjUALNIoP|
obenbuej jojjeq wnpuaiaidy L'y

(1eah/pp/ww) épajed

9j1e@ 9A1093 9'p| 40O passed S'b

91eqg WNpPUaIdaY $°y| SUj Sem jeym 12430 41 €'Y

éadAy WNpuSIRRe 441 winpusieRY b

_
(1esh /pp/ww)

uopeudWnNIop
abenbue| jojjeq wnpudladydy L'P

(4esA/pp/ww)| ipojies

?jeq 9AId8H3 9’y JO passed S'p

3jeQ WNPUaIBJRY b'b| 9Byl Sem jeym J9Y30 JI €'Y

I E:_ucw‘_mu_UE

(4esA/pp/wiw) iadA] wnpuaidyal adAL wnpusiaey N.v”

€ Wwnpua.lajay|

uoljejuawndop
abenbue] jojjeq wnpualaiay L'

(4eaA/pp/ww) ipajey
9jeq 9A1RH3 9'y| 40 passed S'b

9jeQ WNpUaIdidy b'yy 29Ul Sem jeym ‘Jaylo JI €'t

“(desA/pp/wiw) éodAy wnpualiajad

2dAl wnpua.laydy T'v 7

T wnpualajay

uojjejuawndop
abenbue| jJojjeq wNpUaiady L'V

9jeq IA1343 9% 10 passed S'b

9jeq wNpualday vy AUl sem jeym BUI0 JI £V

o - [ _

~ (1eaA/pp/ww) épajied

(1eak/pp/wwi) éadA} wnpua4ajoa odA) WNpusIaRY TP 7

T WNpua.3jay|

Zporad Bunsodas 1eah jeos1y 2y) BuInp wWnpuaiagas g ul paajoau) Aseaql) JnoA sepy Mﬂ..v_

*asea.4oul Xl Quawysijqeiss PLISIp ‘anss] puoq :aJde sajdwexy "me|] Uol123]d jedauab ay) Jopun play uoIjIv|2 Uk je SI9}0A 3Y] 03 pajuwqns
2q uonsanb e salinbol wnpualajadl vy "poitad 3odad deah |essiy ay3 Bulinp ui paAjoaul sem Aleaqif 9Y3 epuasajes Aue fuipaebaa uonewIojul 133U ased|d

(£'v - T'v) vaNIUIATY

b0 plaw@meldy|
TOY9-SPE-8T9|
CITI-PPE-BT

SS91ppY l1eW-3 L'€E |
JaqunN Xvd 9°FE
Uoday Gupedalg uosiag Jo Jaquin auoydajaL 6|

“anwaayem efhy|
1|
€202 /0£/90|
zzoe/10/L0]

Modaa jenuue siy3 buisedasd uosiad jo sweN p'E
AeaA |eDSY SIY) Ul SYJUOL JO JBqUWNN €°'E |

[£0Z s1d] (422A/pp/ww) 93eq pug JesA [E951d Z°E |
[90Z 51d] (1e0A/pp/ww) 538Q HEIS 1EIA [EIS1 T'E|

‘poliad yjuow (ZT) aA|9M] € ueYy] SSI| 10 240U JBA0D 03 Spaau J10da4 InoA Jeyl ueaw Aew siyy ‘poriad 3saje|] ay3 bulnp



11 T T aes z1's|

A1d Juoutjey o T - A TT'S
IS YILE'N oo.....N_.| N - Ss84ppy SWOH 0T1'S
jou-jeqojbogsoeueziy| SS9JppY [IBW-3 6°S

Jaquinn auoydsjal 8'S
(1eaA /ww) spul wid ] JUISaId L°S
uolIsod 99Isnil 9°s

LL9L-0T9-8T9
Lzoz/so

euez|1-049WoyY EUY)| aweN 5°S|

Joquidwl paIyl

B vETZY| - apod diz £1°5|

1 ) o - a1e1s Z1°5)

s|lAsulf|0D) - B Ao 115

ybapieo 8| o - SS2.PpY SWOH 0T'S |
wod*Bundspulu@Aysnyds| - SSo4ppyY jlew-3 6°S

mog-mwnuwj ~ 19quinN suoydajel 8's

5z0Z/s0| “(4eaA/wiu) spug was] Jussald s

FEVTe) - ) B - uonjIsod 891sn4l 9'g

Aisnyds yaew| 2WweN 'S
Jaquiaw _u:ouom_
veTT9| N B i N opod diZ £1°5|
N ._Hi - aes ZT1'§)|
- ajAsujop| ) A 1T'S|

SS2JPPY SWOH 0T'S |

~ ssaippy [ew-3 6°S|

Jaqunp suoydajoL w.mm
(4e9A/wiw) spug waa] Juasald £°S|
uonIsod 993snIL 9'S|

sweN 5G|

1d poomuaaln 50s|
wodriewboiajeldd|

£559-099-8T9

JqUID I um.__u__

<5 "poJidxaun [je a1e s9a)snJ} A1eqi| J0j 201340 JO SLId)|
“A ayz pue ‘paziuebio ‘paysiiqelsa Ajjeba) s pJeoq JUD.LIND U3 J_Y] SISDIIE S991SNJ] Jo paroq Adelq)| dlqnd Siyl €°S|

- urejdxo ases|d qZ'S
0 - ) - S1E9S pJeoq JUBDEA JO JOQUNU [E30L Z°G|

il S1E3S pieOoq JO JOqUUNU |BI0L T°S|

*ajqe[ieAR UOIIRWIOU] JUR.1IND Jsow 2y} Joday

*a3ep uonjedidxa wia}l pue uoljisod aa3snJ} ‘aweu Jaqudw pleoq ayj st 3senbas uodn
asea|al [Im Aleaqi 23e3s S1oul||I Y3 }ey} uoijewaojul Ajuo ayy 21qnd 3y} 03 pased|as 2q LON |IIm pue jdwaxa yI0d S! uoijewaojul bujAynuaps jeuossad ||y

‘ujejdxa asea|d ‘saIouUERIEA 1€ 213943 JI *91ep uoneldidxs w.ia)} pue ‘ssalppe awoy ‘ssaJdppe [lew-3 ‘Jaqunu auoyda|ay
‘uoniisod ‘aweu Bujpnoul {uoiRWICU] JOQWBW pleoq JUIIIND 3PIAcLd 0} 3INS 9g "SOIDURDEA JO I3qWINU 3y} pue sjeas pieaq jJo Jaqunu ayj Jiodal asea|d

| (€1'S - 1°S) AYVO9 AUVUAIT LNIHAND|




L
a|jiasuljjod)|
‘1D PIPHIEDYM €|
T wodpewioy@gxewojl]
o v912-855-8T9)
z0z/50
JUapISald|
Xewor auuear

a1els ZT1's
A TIT'S
" sseappy 2WOH 01°S
ssaJppy |IBW-3 6'S
laqunp auoydajel 8'S|

(1e9A /i) Spug waa) Judsald £'S
uoNISod 291SN4L 9°§

2WeN §°S

FEYITEITT :u:m>ww_

.TMNNW_

B

a|iasunjo)|

*4q 36pLIpUIM 90T

Eou.oo:m»@mm:_mmm_nw;ﬁ_::auu B

~ 6LTL-086-819|
Sz0z/S0|

1330,

Aydanipy Ayzey

apo) diZ €1'S

ojels ¢I1°'S

A 1TSS

SS24pPPY SWOH 0TS

~ sso.ppy [1EW-3 6'S

Jaquinpn auoydajal 8's
|n._mu>\EEu Spu3z w.i3d] JuUIsdAId L°S
uoRISOd @R)¥SNIL 9°S |

sweN §'S

Jaquiauwi :ux_m_

vezzo
I

a|lAsul0d

aAlQ Aepijoy g/
wod iewbd e oaquib)
 SSTE-LYP-8T9
~ 6202/S0|
Juapisald-=231A

310, (Auun) eruibaip

“apop diz €1°G

~ eje1s TT'S

A 1S

SSalppy SWOH 0TS

- ssauppy jlew-3 6'S
JaquinN suoydsd] 8's
(4e2A/ww) spuz wia) Juasald /'S
uoljsod a9snil 9's
sweN s'g

Jaquisw Y|

vEZZY|
I
3llIAsuljo)

apo) diz mﬁ.m_
ajeIs TI'S|
FETi 2 4 4

‘IS pue|3I0WISAM 56

wod iewbpreogqhieaqippoiiodiwes))
S618-0TS-819)

£20Z/S0

AlR1D103S

MOIWI0DI Bsi]

SSoIppyY 3WOH 0T1°S

$S24ppyVy [lew-3 6°S

1aqunp auoydajoL 8's

(1e9A /ww) spuz wJio] juasald h.m_
uo[jIsod dd3IsniL 9°G|
~ sweN 5G|

Jaquiawl Y3ino4|

10229

2pod diz £1°g|



sieah +00T| sieaA g0I-TIS sleaA 05-92| sieaA mn-ﬁ.nm sJeaA oﬁuw_ $s9] 410 sieak m_ _

*mojaq A1o633ed Yoea ul sbulpjing jo J3quinu ayj} ajedipul aseajd

Aj1j1oe4 jo aby|

A1edq) 23e1S SIouljI 943 3e (Aob sos|1@1aeysul 10 TO6L-PZS-LTT) 4934eys 1en 1ejuod asea|d ‘uolldas siys Jnoqe suonsanb Aue aaey noA j1
*moj2q uoljew.ojul peisanbau aya ul (|13 9seald ‘ejep siy} 3[1dWoOd 03 110450 Ue Ul ‘SiedA om) A12nd A|quUassy |elaudn ay] 0} sarlelql| o11qnd sioul||I [{e JO Sp3adu
Jeudes ay3 j0 Modad JusWSSIsse SAISuUSYs1dwod e 31} 03 9IRS JO AJRID.ID3S Sstoull|I 9y} SaJinbal ‘oY uoonaisuo) Alelqil iqnd 241 ‘L£00-96 PV 2ilqnd

JuUdWISSassy spaaN |ende)|

umouwqun T-
7 ) Swooy Apnis Jo Jaquinp |ejol £°9
e

1e0A Jeasy oy3 buunp ignd 2y} Aq pasn (s)woos Apnis Sawn Jo Jaquinu [e30) qE°9

1 4eaA jeosyy ay3 Bunnp aiqnd oy Aq pasn (s)wooa Bupzsauw sow) Jo Joquwinu [ejol qZ'9
B s — o - ~ swooy 6unPap o JIquInN |e1oL Z'9|
saane|ndiuew| - -
A1osusas Jo sadA] jJualajyp aseysind o3 uonjeziueb.ao jedo| e :u__s_ aquiosap aseald ‘os JI q1'9
Bupiom osje si Aieuaql] 9yl "wood 15inb pajeubisep e sey Aleaqlj ayL
- .a.....;._“ T zwnazoads wsine ayj Uo sucsjed JO SPODU [EIUSWUCIIAUG BY) SSAIppPe Aleiql 3y} S80ad T°9

*saijoey) s, Alelqi| @y3 Inoge uonew.aojul pasanbad ayj apinold asedid

(q€°9-1°9) SATLITIOVH/ALITIOVS|

apo) d1z €T°S

9jels ¢1's

A 11§

~ ssa.ppy dWoH 0T°S !

SSaJppy |leW-] 6°S

JaquinN auoyds|pl 8's

(Je2A /ww) spu3g wJaa] judsald £°'S
uoI3ISOd 93)ISNJ4l 9'S

2WeN S§'S

1aquiaw YuIN|

_ I apo) diz €1'S
| T ams zrs
| A 118
5531ppy BWOH 0T'S

"~ ssoJppy llew-3 6'S
JaquinN 2uoydaje) 8°'S
(4e@A/ww) spug waa] juasaid £°S|
uollisod @o3snJd L W.m

SWeN §'S

Jaquaw yaybi3|

14X 44 spop diz £€1°S



521 ] @yn3je3s Aq padinbau

a4e suonPas Isayl sa[iqel buipueisino pue suoie|nwndoe jessyy ‘Ajtedoud Buipiebal uonew.rojut 35anbad SUOIIOIS MOJ2q BYL

000'T$y;

$ @jewysy
- sanljded 1230

sbuipping|
10 12quINN - sa|Ided JBYI0)|

(€T°£ - T°£) S311I11AVI1 ANV S13SSY|
T - (Aypoey
7 Buysixs o) )88} atenbs Buippe) suonippe Bu
[ o {Anproey
7 MaU B 40 UORINIISUOD) UoRONIISUoD Bulp|ing maN
_ Bupesbdn ABojouyss)
| sainseaw A}1)1qISsaa0y
I sease Bunped ‘Buiqind 'syjemapis jo neday
uoneAsasuod Abroug
sainseaw Ajunoag
| Juswaleqe S0}saqSy

| (-0)2 ‘suiieje ‘siojoajap) uonoajord a4
(‘019 ‘saieys ‘s100p) swashs ssaiby
swayshs Buiquinid

SWLIB|R UBL) JaY}o swayshs |eou)oa3
Buiuonipuod L_m:._o_um__:._m?_ma._.gma_..ﬁ
juswaosejdalaedal jooy

(‘7@ ‘suonepunoy ‘s)jem) suedal jrinonng)|
Buijopowayyiedal jeiausg

 000°STSe; |
] |
000'C$

$

2jewnsy - sisjienbpeay

sbuipjing|
40 JaquinN - sid)ienbpeay|

*uo1309s ayj 919|dwod 03 50492 493ud ased|d ‘Jou JI "S049Z yum pajejndod-aid aq

PINOYS SUWN|02 ,,S9I}[Ided 42410, @Y} ‘Suoijedo| youelq saey Jou op noA yI *ssaiboad uj ApQualind xjom jo adA) a3 10j S350 913 JO S9IBWIISI apinoad ases|d

000°Z$;

000'0£% |
000'0L$, |

000'STS; |

$ 9jewnsy
- sany|IPey 19YI0|

sbuipjing
J0 1aqunp - sanPe 1BY310

ssa4bo.4d ul Y410M jo adA ]

- _ Koey
Buiysixa o} }9aj aienbs Buippe) suoippe Buip|ing

| {(Aroey
M3U B JO UOIIONIISUOD) UOHIINIISUOD BUIp|INg MaN
Buipesbdn ABojouyoay

000'0ST%,; T saunseaw Aiqissanoy

- - [ sease Buyled ‘Buiqina ‘syjemepls jo Jieday
000°'0S$g T - - uojjeArasuod ABiaug

[ i sainseaw fjunaag

T - JUBWIAIEQE SO}SOQSY
- e = (-018 ‘swue|e ‘s1039939p) UopIajoid alld
000'0S%, T (-219 ‘sJieys ‘s100p) swalsAs ssaibg

| a o I swaysAs Buiquinid

3 1 B | SW.BjE UBY) 19430 SWaysAs [B31103)]|

B Oow~omww._ . T| BujuonIpuos Jjejuone|uaA/Bunesy|

000°'00S$¢ | N N T| o Juswsoeidespedal jooy|

- ] _ B _ (238 ‘suonepunoy ‘s|jem) siredal jean}onss

|oom.ooo..n%~. | ) - .n_ Buiapowaijredar _Em:won

$| sbuipjing - ) _

?jewlysy - m._wu._mz_uumm_._m Jo 19quinpN - si9yienbpeaH

"uoIpPBS 9y} 939[dwod 03 S045Z 493U asea|d ‘jou JI "So192 ym pajejndod

-aad aq p|noys suwnjod ,sail|1ded 19Yi0, 943 ‘SUoijedo| youe.aq IABY JOuU OP NOA 4T "pPapasu }40Mm J0 3dA} By} 10} SISO DY) JO SDIRWIISD SpiAosd asedid

popo3N }IOM jJO wn;.g

1 sapioe4 Jo 19quinN



apnjoul AjuQ 'sadin19s Aledqi] Aep-o3-Aep ‘BuloBuo jo uoisinoid ayj J1oddns 03 1ead [easy s,Alelqi] 9y3 Burinp pazijiin pue paAIadaJ saluow ayj dJe ,s53diadad
bupetado,, 's1d1edaa bunjesado o Juswaleys paziway ue apiroad o3 [(9)(e)§9-0€/9T SITI S£ “(6)(T)0T-¥/S SITI S£] 21njeis Aq pasnbai ase saneiqr]

| (TZ°'8 - T°'8) 3DUNOS A8 SLAIIDIY HNILVHEILO|

anl 2039 ‘sjuswaIes ‘syuawibpnl ‘spuoq Buipnpur sappigel) Buipuejsino Aue aney Aleiqy JnoA s20Q 0T°L|

*mojeq UoI30as 8y} ul uonkeLwloul siyl spiaoid asea|d "bujpueisino [|1is
spuoq 40 Buipnpui ‘saniiqey Buipuesino Aue o} se Juawajes e apiaoad 0} [(§)(e)S9-0€/9T SOTI S£ ‘(8)0T-+/S SO1I S£1 @3mels Aq patinbai aae sapielqn

sonijiqery

*sjuawied
yoiym o3 a2jqedijdde ase spuny yaiym uo buipuadap ‘sjunosde
puny J3y31o ay3 Wo.ly Ui pasiajsuely si Junodde siyy ui Asuowt
ayl "Alesql| a4yl Aq panssi siqap 19430 pue s)29ys Buipueisino
0} jenba s| punj 2y} uj Junowe 3yl spuny pied jqap buipiroad
pue s)oay> Buinss] 103 Aj]2]os pasn junodde ybnolyi-ssed e si1 puny
SIYl "96'+I8'TE$ = pund Bunjday) -paisneyxa aie suole|nwnioe
S,pung [2J2uaD 3y} JI pasn AJuo si puny siyl ‘S0°190°'0ZZ$ u_
pund yse) BUNIOAL "spuny |eads ay3 Yiim paul|3no se uosead aules -suonenwnooe
oW LM“.W_MM__M”——_-M.MM:‘HM_NU.MM_MW—MNMMmMOM—“nM"_.M.“M“M”__“Mnn_vm\_uh.“ﬂwwu._mm_h__w_w |easyy ay3 410} (S)uosead ayj pue (s)junowe Jejjop ay3 sjlejap jey) juswajels e apiaoad uayy ‘S3A JI 6°L
ay3 syoeduwi jey) asiie pajradxaun Buyiawos pjnoys ‘Ayjiqeis
|eosiy 4103 paujejuiew Hulaq ale saduejeq 3say L "sasuddxa s,1edh auo
03} juajeainba Ajybnol seouejeq aAey spuny jerads 9sayl "8S°'¥6Z’'6$
= punj Upny ‘pE€'SE€9'85$ = pund JYWI "€E°'£86'9% = pund mc_u__zm_
"97°ST9’09T$ = pung adueansul AMjiqer] *L+°9£Z'Tv$ = pund
vDId "syosload jejided abie] yym asn 10) Buijejnwndde si dyuejeg
‘bG 1LZ'LES = pund 9A19s9Yy asodand pajeubisap e Joj Adeaql) a3
03} uan1b suoljeuop papuadxaun s| dduejeq *9/'€T9'TT$ = pund D|
s £(*239 ‘seouejeq puny BUIpUE]ISINOG ‘SPUN} 9AI9Sal) SUOHEINWNDOE |BISY dAeY AJeiql) 1nok ssoqg 8¢

5¢

*Moj2(q UoOI}23S 3Y3 U] Uoijew.ojul Siy) apinoad ased|d *suoijejnuundoe 3y} 10j suoseal
3y} pue suopeNWNDJE [eIS]y Aue JO JuUnowe ay) 03 sk jJuawajels e apiaoad 03 [(H)(e)59-0E/9T SITI S ‘(£)0T-¥/S SOTI S£]1 diInjels Aq pasinbal aJe salielq]

suonejnwuNOly _mum_u_i

| -paJinboe Ajiodoad ay3 Jo uondidsap |esduab e apinold £/
| - 13410 9'£
_ 8o s°L
|

Adebo v/
aseysind g€'£

(se1dde jey3 9 £-g*£ uondo yoes
J10j Junouwe Jejjop 4133uz) isuondo Buimojjos @2yl ybnoayl paisinboe sem Ajiadoud ayj Jo yonw moy ‘s3A 41

&Iy ~ ¢Ajadoad jeuosiad 10/pue jeas Aue sJinboe Aseiqij ay3 pip ‘1esA |easy 3se| oyl buning z°2
R B ¢(232@ ‘spays ‘sebeieb
Buipnjpu sBujpjing pue puej) sjeisa [ead s,Aleiql] 8y} J0) BNjEA JBNIBW JIB) JUDLIND PRJERWIIS 3y} SI JeyM T°Z

, , 'AmO0[3q UOI}I3S BY3) Ul uonew.IoUl S1Y} piIroid asedld "asimaayilo 10 Yib
aseydand ‘Aoeha) ybnoay) padinboe Ajiadoad 03 se juawaeis e apinoad 03 [(£)(2)S9-0£/9T SOOI SZ (¥)OT-v/S SOOI S2] 21mieys Aq patinbaa ade salieaqi

A wno._n_

*Uo1329s YIed ul uolewloiul paisanbal syl apino.ad asea|d "3dodad [enUUER By} Ul papnpPul 9q 03 [§9-0E£/9T SOOI SZ ‘0T-v/S SOOI



T TETTREN e — - - Ayads aseajd ‘1ay10 J1 TT1°8
ow” § = — B PaAI2224 Spunj |e1apay 12Yylo 0T'8

— -~ paAlada. spunj ajey-3 6°8

. i PaAIadal SPUN} ¥1S1 8'8

vEO'VIS
SE0'8%
*(nobsosji@banqd
‘99T T-§8Z-2T7) Bing 184 19€1U0D oseald ‘spuny 91e}s 10 [eJoPa) D43M SIOUI||T JO B3elS ay3 Y6noJyl paniadad noA spuny ay3 §1 3INsun ase noA J1

*(A1eaqy) AnoA 03 A[3oa41p pied sjyuedb v1s1 ~6°9) sioull|I jJo 2e1S
ay1 Aq paanquiIsIp Asuouw jesapaj Buipnpoul ‘saideaqi] 31jqnd ay3 Aq a1mipuadxa 4oy sapedql] d1jqnd 03 paINqLIISIp SpUNn} JUSLIWISAOD |e19p3y ||e sepnaul SIYL

JUDWIUIDA0N) _m._w_uw"__

ZST'0STS ) [TOE S1d] (5°8 + '8 + £'8 + Z°8) SPUNJ JUSWUISACD D3E3S |EI0L £°8
s|gedi|ddy 10N T- Ayioads aseajd 4930 JI 9'8
0% ) ) POAI2I9] SpUNy JUSWIUIBA0D 23E31S 19Yl0 §'8

8SE'TOTS xe] Juswsde|dss Apadoad euosiad +'8

03| o | jue.b pie uonezijenby ¢'g

v6L'8rs i  ueibeydea sad 7'8

*(nob-sos|1®64nqd ‘89T T-S8/-212) Bing jed 1oejuod ases|d ‘spuny 21e3S JO [RISP3) 3JE SIoul||I JO 3IEIS 3Y) Y6noly)l paAladal hoA spuny ji 3Ins jou ase noA 1

*(se24nos 9jdinw wolj 3q Aew 3NUBAI
ay3 ybnoyyl USA3) SNUDARJ 33B]S Jopun pa)iodad aq p|NOYs aNU3A3L 3Y] ‘uoije|siBa] 91e)s Jo 1{NSaJ BY) SI S9XE) PIIEPIOSU0D Wo.l) dnuaaad Bunesado J1 ;910N

*s3ybu [elBUIW pue ‘S8 BSUDII| ‘sauyy |euad se $924N0S YINS Woly Spuny sapnoul siyl a3e3s ayl Aq paynquisip Asuow |elapay
l1oj 1daosxa ‘sanieaqi} 21iqnd ay3 Aq 4n}puadx? 104 Juawuianob ajels Aq soneaqi] a1gnd 01 painqLIISIp Spuny ||e aJe 3salL

JUSWUIDA0D 35&

S (*sojes puoq wodj sawodui jeyded 3dadxa|

ZT8LED'TS ‘Areaqiq 211qnd ay3 Ag ainjipuadxs s0j ajqejieae pue uoibas 1o ‘JoLIysIp ‘Ajunwiwod Y3 Aq pajeubisap spuny
jJusWWIBA0B [eD0] |je sepndul) 1edA [edsy jualind /6ujwoddn Jo fuinsus ayj 1oj spunj Juwuliaaob jeoo qr°g

oN &[-bas 12 ‘S8T-8T /007 SITI SE ‘meq uonejjury
uoisu93x3 xej Ayiadoad ayy] sded xe} o3 323[qns uoneridoidde jeasiy/An9| xe} jenuue s Aleiq)| Iyl ST eT's

(Ajuo et gt ul papodau

L68'E80/TS$ 29 3snw Yoiym sajes puoq wody awodul [epded 3dooxa ‘Ateaqi o1fqnd syl Aq 31n3puadxs 10j d|qejleae pue uolbal
10 “P1Lsip ‘AJlunwwod 3y} Aq pajeubisap spunj Juawiulaaob edof ||e sapnpul) [00E S1d] Jus3wuadA0b B0 T°8

9jenidoidde se ‘Onuanad Ju2WUIDA06 [e13pPa) 10 DNUDARI JUSWUIDA0G 3B]S YHM spuny 9593 31oday "asn Aleuqi 1o Juswuianob jedo] ybnoayy pessed

spuny Iayjo pue ‘|esapaj ‘ajels apn|aul 30U o *sjuelb 1o ‘saay ‘sauly Aleiql] ‘suoijeuop pue syib Aue Jo anjeA 9Y3 10 SIIIAIDS pUD|-Ul 10 PINQLIIU0d Aue jo
anjeA ay3j apn[oul 30U 0Q "IV Xe] SIDIAISS |BI07 dWOH 3|Iqon 3y} ‘(@po) AemybiH 11) s99) oedw ‘(saxe) Aldeaqi|) saxe) Ayiadoad jedo| :wody sydiodsa apnpoul
‘sldwexa 104 *A1eaq) d1qgnd ay) Aq ain}ipuadx? 10} a)qejieAe pue uoibad 10 ‘Jo113s1p ‘Ajunwiwiod ay) Aq pajeubisap spuny Juswuidaob jedo0) e sepn|oul SIylL

JUDWIU.IDA0D _muo._i

“iejjop 2|0YM IS3JedU Y] 03 SIOMSUR punoy 310N

'sjuesrem uoneddniue xe} pue ‘(1oaocAlled "6'a) saeah
|edsy snoinaad ul Juadsun spuny ‘Aduabe Jayjoue 03 Y6nouay) passed sanuanad ‘SJUSWIMOPUD 0} SUOIINGIIUOD ‘saaniipuadxd jepnded Jofew 10y dNUBADI apn|IX3

-uelb ayj Jo Junowe joym 33 jJou ‘paAiadad juelb ayjl jJo uondod
a9y} Ajuo ji0dau ‘poraad 31odas ayy Bulanp spuny ayj jo Jed paaladadl Ajuo Inq ‘juelb e papieme sem Ale.qi] ay3 JI "polad 340dad ay3 Burinp paAeda4 spuny



Aqeaqi] ay3 .40 Jeyaq uo,, (xe1 Ana| o3 Ajtoyine ayl yim sapuabe juswuaanob) sappuabe buixe)
19430 Aq pied aJe jey] Jje3s 104 SSIIB|ES pUue S}1Jauaq 3pn|dul ‘o|qelieAe S| uoneuliojul 3Yj JI "sallejes pue s3jouaq Jjeis uo uonewiojul s1ayjeb uondas syl

| (€°6-1°6) STUNLIANIdX3I 44VLS|

*1ejjop @|oym }saJeau ayj} 0] slomsue punoy 310N
‘saJnjipuadxe jejided pue ‘s3sod pajewiisa ‘swall 994} JO dnjeA ayj} 34odad jou oq :BpnpPx3

‘papn|dul 9q PINOYS JUBWISINGSIP Jo Juiod 3y3 je (*339 ‘spaod3ad |josAed ‘S1OeIUOD ‘SBDIOAUI se yons)
sjuswinoop a.njpuadxa Aq pajtoddns ade jey) spuny yons AjuQ "Aduobe buniodad sy 03 dqejieae SI uonjew.Iojul 3] §I pPIPNDUL 3G Aew Aseaqi) 9243 10 JjeYydq
uo,, (xe3 Ana| 03 Ajuloyine ay3 yum sapuabe Juawuianob) salpuabe buixe) J1aylo Aq pied ale jey) ‘saliejes pue sjjouaq Ajjeadsa ‘s3sod Jueoiubis :epnjpul

*S9DIAIDS

Aieaqi jo uoisinoad ayy 4oddns 03 A1essadau $3S03 JUSLINIAI pue JUSLIND 3] dJe ,s3ainjipuadxs buietado,, ‘poisad ji0daa 134 |edsly ay) Burinp papuadxa
u92q aAeY SINUBARJ Bunelado Moy 03 se juswalels paziway ue apirodd 03 [(9)(e)59-0£/9T SITI S ‘(2)0T-¥/S SI1I S£] @amels Aq pa4inbaa a4e sauelqil

(T°TT - T°6) AYODILVD A9 STUNLIANIdXI ONILVHIO|

Jainseal| ,:mE_A is| spuny s, Adeaqi] ay3 Jo ueipoisnd pajeubisep oyl 1Z°8
B | ime] Aeaqiy
ym 2oueldwod ul JUIWNIISUL BdUBINSUI 13Y30 J0 Adjjod dueinsul ‘puoq Ajaans ay3 Jo Junowe a3y} s 0T'8

r..,..___
|

ooohocow._ ZjudwWnAsw sdueansul/Adijod adueinsul 8y} YO puoq A324ns aY3 J8YH2 JO JuUnowe 36e42A00 9Y3 S1 1IBYM 6T°8
puog Ajains w>m_...n|_ - o spund AJeiqr Joj S3UBINSUT JO 2IBD1HIMIS) JO Jooid q8T'8
puog A@ins o - éuondo yoiym Buisn spuny sji spienbajes Aleiqi 3yl es1's

,"S4eah |eosyy g Joud ay3 wody puny bunipesado s,3013SIp 24} Jo Junowe
abetane 3y} JO 9,05 01 [enba 3seo| je Junowe ue ul 24 [[eys -, S6BI9A0D S,juaWNIISUL ddURINSU 1330 40 Adjjod sdueansul ayj 10 ,/**1esh |edsyy snolnaad jse|
3y ul PLIISIP 9Y3 AQ PaAISIDL SPUNY [B30] 943 JO 940G JO WNWIUjW e uodn paseq-, 9q puoq ay) jeyy sadinbaa (3)st-0€/9T SIOTI SZ ‘s1PMISIp Adeaqy) dlqnd 104

.'S1eaA Jeosyy € Jolid ay3 woay puny bunesado s,Areiqi| 93 jo Junowe
abeJane ayj Jo 9,05 03 |enbs 3sea| e Junowe ue ul 3q |jeys' ", 96LIAA0D S,jUBWINISU| dDURINSUI 1310 J0 Adjjod aduednsul 243 10 ,“**1edA [edsly 3se| ay}
u1 Aseaqi) 9y} Aq paAIodad spuny |20} 9y} JO 9,05 UBY) SSB] Jou™"", aq puoq 2y} }ey3 sadinbaa 6-1/S §I11 SZ ‘uoniejndod 000‘00S uey) ss9) jo sanyjedpiunuw o4

."P3IU s1 JodaJ [enuue s, Aseaql] 243
Wi} 9Y3 3B douelInsul Jo 93ed131420 s,Alelql] Y3 Jo Adod e Aleuqi] 2jeis sioul||I 3y3 apiaodd [jeys Alelql] ay3,, ‘seiniels asayl o3 buipioddy [(2)sH-0£/9T SI11
SZ pue 6-+/S SIH1I 2] spuny Aleaqi 10} @3ueINSUl JO [9AD] Wnwiuiw palinbai Alojnjels ayj 1@ow sauelqi] 3eY) AJLIaA 03 uosjewiojul sysanbal uoiIas syl

spung Aieuqiq jo buipienbajes|

TES'ZSETS [0€ s1d] (ST°8 + ZT'8 + £'8 + T'8 ) 53d1924 TVLOL £T'8

sydiedey bunesadQ |ejo ]

0% spunj oA19sa1 u) pade|d sadieoads [epded-uou 19Yio 9T1°8
€r8'ses = 22000 [€0€ S1d] ($1°8 + £1°8) s3d19d31 Joy10 jle TvVL0L ST'8|
. mnb@.hwm sainjipuadxs bujjesado 10) pasn aq 0] papuajul mun._uuu._ 19410 ¢.n.m_
SET’'61% . ] suopeuoq pue sy19 Aleouon £1°8|

*suoljeuop pue s}ib Atejauow-uou Aue Jo 3njeA d9Yj 10 SIDIAISS pun|-ui 1o pajnqiijuod Aue jo an|eA 33 Ipn|dul Jou oqg 'siuelb Jo
‘sa2IA19S Adeaq)) 10) S93) ‘sauly Alde.aql] ‘359493U] 1edA Juaddnd ay}
Ul paAI2J23J suoljeuop pue syib Atejauow ‘ejdwexa Joy ‘Opnjou] *spunj |elapaj pue ‘ajels ‘|edo] Japun pajodal jey} uey) 13Yjio 2nuaaad bBunesado |je st syl

awodug 19Y3Q|

m.mo..NNw. [z0€ 51d] (078 + 6’8 + 8'8) SPUNJ JUBWUIBACD |e13pPaY |ej0) zt'8|



aigeonddy 3oN T- B - Aypads eseayd 49430 JI S'TT
T 0% o - o [0t S1d] @nuaaay |e3ideD 930 T

0%
i 0$| - N [zot S1d] JUPWLIBADD |eIapad £°21
0$| - - ~ [10b S7d] 3uswiuIan0 Ajels T'TT
T T1L0°669%] - T ~ [oov s1d] (dT°ZT + eT°TT) JUSWUIBA0D |ed01 [e10L DT-TT
T£0'66%] - - o 13410 :JUSWUIBA0D [@d0] qI°ZT
owm o Sojes puog wo.l) 3wodu] [epde) [JUSWUISA0D [BD0T BT'ZT

Je[|op 3|OYM ISD1edu AY] 0] SIaMsue punoy 310N

‘(1on0AL1eD 6 2) JedA |BOSI) snoiaadd ul Juadsun spuny pue ‘(sauly “6'9) Aduabe Jayjoue 03 ybnouyy passed sawodu; ‘uonepaidde
jended 10 sjuawnsaul ‘sjeidalew Aleaqi| jo aseydind senbad quawdinba pue sbulysiuing Bunsixa jo Jledal 1o0/pue juawaoe|daJ 110} 2huUdAdd 3pN|IX]

*s300[04d Jo[ew BWI-3U0 J2Y}0 10 !S3[21Yyan mau s1onpoad uonjewtojul unt o} 40 ‘s}.1omiau o3 yuij 03} ‘suonyesado Aielqy) J1oddns
01 Pash 24EM]J0S pue aJempJey 19indwod ‘suoeaouat 6ulpjing Jo ‘suonippe buipjing ‘sbuipjing mau 10j SUOIIDI|J0D jeluUl pue Juawdinba ‘sburysiuiny
1sBuIpjing BUnRSIXD Jo suoiEAOUDI 10 0} suonppe {(s)bulpjing mau {suonisinboe ays 1103 poiiad 1odal Jeal jedssiy 3yl BuLInp paAladal spunj spnpul

anuaAdy |ende))

‘pieme juelb a41jud

3y} 10U ‘paniadad spuny ayj Jo Junowe 3y} Ajuo jlodads ‘poriad Jiodaa ayl bulinp spuny sy jo Jed paaiedal Ajuo 3nq ‘quelb e papleme sem Ateaqi aya 41 ‘Ajuo
poiad yi10doa JeaA [e3siy oY Bulinp Juads pue PaA1Sd9J SPUNY 10j UOIJRULIONUI BPIAOI "Sa4n}puadxa pue anuaaad [eyded uo uonewiojul sidyieb uoyoes syl

(£°TT - T°ZT) STUNLIANIdX3I ANV INNIATY TV.LIdVD)

EVT'T62'TS) - [8sE §1d] (T'1T + +°0OT + £'6) seamipuadxs Bupesado 1vioL T'TT
SE0'vIHS [£SE s1d] (*212 'sa2a; jeba| ‘sanyin ‘sapddns) anoqe papnpul Jou sainipuadxa Buneasado Jayjo ||I¥ T'TT

“1e|jop 2|0YMm }S24E2U BY] 0] SIaMmsue punoy :310N

(£ ZT) seanjipuadxe jeyded ul pajyiodal 2q pinoys Ysiym ‘sjasse paxiy Jofew jo saseyssnd apnjdx3
*sainjipuadx3 uonoa||0) pue sainjpuadxy jjeis 103 pariodad asoyl ueys J9yjo sa nypuadxa |je sepnjoul siylL

(T°TT - T°TT) STUNLIANIdXI ONILVEIAO UIH.LO|

N v06'29% [95£ s1d] (£°0T + 2°0T + T°01) sainjipuadx3 uo33||0] TVLOL V0T

sassed B - |

uoijdeajje [eso] ‘s3n ‘soweb oapIAa ‘syooqoipne ‘sAey-nid/sana BE'OT Ul paseydind sjeriaew jo sadAy 3y 351 asesld qE’0T
£0S'STS [ss€ Ss1d] (*03@ ‘saweb 03pIa 'sGAQ ‘SAD) SIEHIEW 19410 BE 0T

T9T'LTS [¥s€ s1d] (*039 ‘seseqejep ‘s)oog-2) s|elddie| d1U04193|3 Z°0T

6ET'0ES [eS€E Ss1d] ("73° ‘siadedsmau ‘s)00q) s|elsdiely pajulid T°0T!

Je[|op 2|0YyMm }sDIeau aYj} 0} SIoMSUe punoy 310N

*A12A1jop JUSWNOOP 104 sa4n}Ipuadxa pue sueo| AlelqijJojul
10} S99} 10 sabieyd apn|ax3 "pasuadl 40 pased] ‘paseydind Jayiaym (d1uo.3d3|d ‘wiojoldiw ‘quiid *6°9) sjew.oj [|e ul S|elid3ew |je 10} saunypuadxd apn|our

(+'0T - T°0T) STANLIANIdX3 NOILDIT10)|

Yoz’ 184 B [zs€ s1d] (2°6 + T°6) S2anypusdxa Je3s |eIol €76
S00’v6TS$ [Ts€ S1d] uoneiidosdde
s, Ajlloyne wum._on_._ou _mmmw_._.h.zwc ayi Jo s, Aleaqy ay3y Jayle wody Joy pied ‘yjeys Aieaqi jje 104 ‘sjyouaq abully ez'6

66T'079% [0S€ S1d] Heas Areiqy |je 10) ssbem pue saleles 1'6

*le[jop 2|oym }Sa1eau ay] 0] SI9MSUE punoy 310N



00'0p S LTS 9316ap s,0[3ydeg B uey) 55| buibojeie)) ._wuo_mumuw

o000t [ OR T4 T 2a4bap s.Jojeydeg e uey) mmw.__ 103291 Adeagiy u:Em_mmS 1030941 u:mum_mme.“
N29M /SANOH |ejoL c.n.mﬁ. ajey AlINOH 6°ET [oA@7 uolyednp3 |w.m.n_ e3aly }IOMm >..m|..:_..n_ h.m.n_ 9|1 uonisod 9°€T| _
00'0v¢ 0 N:m. B B w_ 9 9| Atewwing

*AmO0J JUDLIND BY] Ul paJajud s1 ejep aduo Jeadde Ajjednewolne

(1M MoJ Jayjouy *S30adse |ed1IR]D 10 [EDIURYISW S} WO IDPURSIP S ‘430q 10 Hdom Aledql| Jo S3O9dSE D1J1I3UBIDS 10 |BIIISI03Y) Y} Ul IS pue Bujuien
{euoissajosd sasinbaa Ajjensn jey) ydom pred op YO (sJoulw Jo stofew aouaids Aleiql) alenpesbiapun isaa169p A1eaqy pajipaJtdoe (y1y) uoijeossy Ateiqnr]
uesPWy-uou) uoneanpa Alelql] Jo sadA} 19Ylo 2AeY JaYHS oYM NVIYVHEI] 40 T1LIL 34l yum seaiojdwa apn|pu] ‘sueldelql) 13yjo sapnpul Asobajed siyy

ﬁ q n:o._w_

g sinoy dno.ib uappiy vy n:o‘_w_

- ooT [0sZ s1d] (0¥ / #"E€T) STW-VIV 3.d iV dnois |eoL S'ET

; |e3ol v dnoug)

00°0F 8L'9€$| | 10308110 Adeaan| 1032341Q 2A13NdAXT
}S9M /SANOH |BI0L T'ET 918y Aoy £'€1 o eoay }40Mm Atewnid Z'ET| 911 uonisod T'ET
000 8L9ES| Ll | frewwng

*MOJ JUS1IND BY] Ul PAI3JUD S| elep 3duo Jeadde Ajjedijewolne [|Im mod Jayjouy "sajpnis uopew.ojul
pue Aleiqi jo weiboid @3LIATUIOV (V1V) uonepossy Aleiqr ueddWY UB Woly SIIUDIA S HILSYIW YIM SNVYINVHEIT [Ie sapnpul Atobajed siyl

v n:o._g

"00°T

uey] J9Y3IRI b6 10 SZE6" 2q |IIM Ajjeuoizeu pajtodaa uonendjed J1d4 9yl HIam YoM 3wWl-{|n} B se yaam 1ad sinoy §*'/Z€ s4apisuod jeyy Aledqi| sioul||I ue Joy
‘31dwexa 104 "piepue)s |B30] JNOA uo paseq }a9m 19d sinoy |e303 3y} Hodal 3snw Asedqi] 1noA ‘sasodind uosiiedwod jeuoljeu ao4 314 T (enba 03 uopendjed
6uUI}|NSS4 3Y] 90104 0} JBPJO Ul }IIM HIOM JW}-||Nj B Se SIapisuod Aleiqi] 1NOA sinoy ayj ajepul 10N 04 "s24nb1y asoyi Huisn Jiodal uayl Ham yiom awn
-lIn4 € se }oom Jad sunoy +6E-SE SIOpISuod Aleiqi] InoA JI *pa)yIom sInoy JO Jaquinu 3y} uo paseq }oam J1ad sinoy s, soquidw jjels yoes J1odal pjnoys salelql)
sIoul[|I "oam Jad sinoy Qb Se }oom HJOM dwi}-||ny € 10 piepue)s jeuoiieu JS1d/STIWI 94l sazij1an Jojejndjed (saAojdwa /yusjeainba awil-ny) 314 a3yl

‘suonzedyjenb jeuonieanpa s,09A0jdwa ue uo uey; Jayjes pawdoyiad Bulaq Niom Aleiqi| Jo adA) Y3 uo paseq saliobaed ajelidosdde ayj ul [puuositad Jodoy

*SI29]UNJOA 2pnjoul JON 0Q "s23Aojdw?a pied Ajuo apnjpug
*1e2A |edsyy oY) jo Aep jise| @] Jo se sainbiy uoilisod yio0day *jou 10 pa||i} o4 suonjisod asoyl Jayiaym 96pnq s,Aseaqi] ay3 ul papuny suonisod |je apnoul

(9v'€T - T'ET) TINNOSHAd|

1 [SO0F D81d] seanypuadxy jende) jejoL 22T

~ oTp'scy
“Igj|op @joym }sa.Jeau ayj} 03 sidmsue punoy :J1ON

*(19n0Auaed 679) JeaA |edsiy snoiaadd up Juadsun spunj pue ‘(sauly 6 3) Aouabe Jayjoue o] ybnoayj passed awodul ‘uonenaidde
|ended 405 sjuswyseaul ‘sjeliajew Atelqi] Jo aseydand sejnbaa quawdinba pue sbulysiuiny 6uiysixa jo Jiedad 10 /pue juawadejdad :10j sain}ipuadx apnxy

*s309fload Jofew sw-2U0 I3Y30 10 !S321YDA Mmau {s3onpodd uonipeunioju unt o3 4o ‘s)}Jomiau o3 yuij o3 ‘suonetado Aseiqlj 1oddns
0} POsn 21eM}0S pue dsempley Jandwod isuoizeaouad Buipjing 40 ‘suonippe bulpjing ‘sbuipjing mau 103 Suoj3d3)|03 jeniul pue quawdinba ‘sbulysiuing
{sBuip[ing Bui}sIX® JO SUOI}EACUSI 40 0] suonippe {(s)Bulpjing mau !suoijisinboe ajis 103 poliad }odad Jeah jeosiy ay) Bulinp papuadxa spuny apnjour

sainyipuadx3 |ejide))

_ [vor 51d] (1'ZT + €T + T°TT + 9T°CT) 2nudAsy eyided [eoL 9°ZT

T£0'66$



pouiad j10dad]

Surinp juesep 393 M/SINOH

S)o9M jJO |ejol OE'ET
|1oqWnNN TE'ET

00'02$| 5z'91g| 8 00°0%/ ! H

*MOJ JUILIND DY] Ul POIdIUD SI Blep U0 Jeadde Ajjednjewoline [[IM MO 130Uy "JUBRDBA
poulewaa uoilisod 3y} B]IYM UYDIEIS SAIDE UB SEM 249U} YIIYM 10} JedA |eds|) SIY Jo Aep jse| 9y uo juedea suonisod uelieaqi| pa3abpnq asoyy Ajuo apnpug

wnNWIXep E:E_:.E_
abuey Aiejes oabuey >._m_mm_
Jenuuy €€°€T |BNUUY ZE'ET|

o3
[2A27 uonedNp3 6T'ET ea.y N1oM Alewilid STET| 401504 R..ﬁ

| fsewwing

SaIpuedRA uelielqiy

08°ST| - " [esz s1d] (SZ°€1 + ZT°€T) seaAojdwa pied 314 |PI0L 9T'ET |
088 [zsz s1d] (PT'ET + OT'ET + 9T'ET) 3 pue ‘a /3 sdnoio wouy ssakojdwi pied J9YI0 314 1€I0L ST'ET
oo.ﬁ_ - on / 1Z°€1) seoAojdwa 3 dnosp 314 |2I0L HT'ET|
STLTS B pted Ajjenyoe ajes Anoy wnwixey €T°€T|
00°LTS| pied Ajlenioe s3ed Ajanoy wNWIUIW TT'ET |
00°'0F sasAojdwa 3 dnoan [je Aq y3am |edidA) e ul PXIOM sinoy [ejol TZ'ET

‘soahojdwa uoiesado jue|d Jo A}andas ‘eoueudjuiew Huipjing swi-3ed pue awn-|iny sapnpu; Arobajed sjyL

B - 3 dnoup

(ot / LT°€T) seaAojdwa q dnoaD 31d |PIOL OT'ET|
pied Ajjen3oe a3es Apnoy wnwixew 61 €T/
u.mn >=m:uum 31T >_._=_u_._ E.._E_:._z 8T m.n_

m0w>o_nEu a n...o._w e Aq xoem _mu.nhu B Ul pa)Jom sinoy |20l ZT°ET|

*SI9AIRYS 410 sabed swy-}ed pue sw-||nj sapnul Arobajed sjylL

g dnou Q

08°Z| B - (ov / €1°€1) seakojdwa 3 dnoJo 314 |e30L OT'ET
Oo.h.nw_ pied Ajjenjyoe ajed Alnoy wnwixew ST°ET |
Oo.m.nw_ - pied Ajjenjoe ajed Apinoy wnwivilg b1°'ET
00°Z1Eg ~ seeAojdwa 3 dnodn jje Aq }oom [edidA] B ul paXJom sinoy |e30) ET'ET

*soaAo|dw?d |eo1I9)D
pue [e21Uyd3] J13Yy3o pue (193sewgam ‘1032a41p 11) sjeuoissajold ABojouyday uoipew.iojul ‘(sysijerdads Aledqij-uou Iay3jo ‘suoijelod diqnd ‘Jabeuew ssauishgq
11039241p |]puuos.1ad) sisijeldads Joddns sAneIISIUILPE pue ueliRIgl JO 333 Y] INOYIM Jjels [euoissajoad awn-jied pue swi-jnj sspnjoul Alobajed siyl

o) n:o._&
N oo.n_ - [15Z 57d] [TT'ET + §'ET) suentedqr] 314 [€I0L TT'ET|
00°9| (0/01°€T) sueneaqr] 49430 314 i@ dnody |ejol TTET |

|ejolL @ n:o..g

oo.ow_ mN.wﬂﬂ_ ~ 2albap s,10pydeg e uew ssa| uope|nauD)|  Josiagadng uonenodi|
00°0b| 00°LT$| 82UBI2S AJeJq)| ON :32J63( s,40[3yded| - ~ uopenoup|  Josiasedns uonendlpD)|
00°07| SL LTS 9a1hap s,J0]2y2eg e uey) mmw.l__ ueneIqr Jo 9dAL Jayio| uepeaqi] AlojsiH [e207)

oo.avm lemﬂw_ 3a1bap s,103ydeg e uey) ssa| $32IA19S S \UBIP(IYD] ueneIqI S,US4pIYD)|




*$9119S Y} Ul AJIAIIOE YOED JUNOD ‘SOLI9S @ SB pa.djjo e sIjAIe JI "saijoe; Aaeaqi| asn jey3 sdnoab
19170 Aq paiosuods ssiMARDe apnjIX3 “Ateaqy] 243 Aq padosuods-0d 10 patosuods aJe jey) ‘91S-4J0 J0 -UO PI3Y J2IBYM ‘SDIIAIDER PIIDBIIP-J|SS [|e JUNn0)

539 ‘(dnoJb e jo Jied se suop jou uaym) sjuny Jabuaaeds Aleaqi ‘sip| jew pue e} ‘sUoISSIS Pedd ui-doap
apnppuj sj3uaA3 Jo sadAy asay) Jo sojdwexy *sjuedidnied ayl yim joesajul Apdap jou Aew Jo Aew 1nq ‘ANARDE 2y} Jojuow Aews Jaquuaw jjeys v ‘padinbai jou

s1 uoneJis|bay (dnoib e ym awiy pajeubisap e je Jo peajsul) umo JidYy3 uo ajedpiyied ued uoJied ay3 yoiym 40} Jusaaa pauuejd Aue si AJIAIROE PIIdBIIP-HBS V¥
iSBINANIDY paldalig-IIesS

. SeulPping Bulwelbold [ENMIA,, pue ’,s2131A130Y pue swelbold juno)
01 MOH,, *,,pepl1039Y puE [enMIA 2AI7 ;swelbold 10j 32uepInD,, 103 $Hul| 103 UIDS Uibo] suojuidQ Bununo) ayj 03 134241 asesld ‘uojeuriojul 240w 104 310N

*S3I}IAIRPE BuliojudW pue ‘OdUBISISSE H}IoMmawoy ‘9oue)sisse BunM dWNsSaL ‘punogqawioy 03 SIJIAIBS ‘Bulioinl

Ade193}1] U0-03-3U0 se yons ‘dnoab e 03 uey] Joyjed ‘siseq dU0-03-3UO0 B U0 PIIIAIISP S9ijIALIDR Aiseiql) apn|dx3

‘swelaboud Jyb1o se pajunod 9q pjnoys sxaam Jybi1s 10j )a9m e aduo

pa19j30 saues Wiy e ‘ajdwexs 104 "sa11es ay} ul weiboad yoes Junod ‘salids e se palayo ale swesbold 1 “sanioe) Aleaqi] asn jeyy sdnoib 1ayjo Aq psiosuods
sweJsbo.d apnppx3 "Aieaqi| oy} Aq paiosuods-03 10 palosuods ase jeyy dnoib e se AjjenniA pjay 10 ‘a3IS-}J0 40 -UO PIBY J3YIBYM ‘sweaboad ||e 3uno)

*SUOISSNOSIP )0oq pue sassed diysuazid ‘abenbue| puodas e se ysijbu3 ‘Ade.al|
‘ssnoy A103s ‘seun3o9| ‘sbuimoys wily apnoul swelboad jo sodA} asay) jo sajdwex3 "pasu |eoS aiypads e 393w 0} paubisop usljo ‘uonewrojul jeuorjednpa
10 ‘jeuonealdas ‘jeanynd apinoid osje Aew swelboid "sino} Aleiqi) 10 ‘s9d1A19S Aleaql) ‘Alelqi] 8y} JO 3SN J9A0D Aew sweaboud *sjuedpnied o] uonjewniojul

sopinoid A[3024p Y2Iym 10 SSIIAIIOR 10 SIDIAIRS Aleiql] Jo S6ues peoaq ay3 jo Aue o3 Buipuajje dnoab sy} s2oNpoJUl YIIYM JUDAD pauue|d Aue s] weaboid v
:swelboldd SNoUuoIysuis

(e6€'ST - T'ST) IDNVANILLY B SIILIAILOV 'SWVIDOUJ|

~3unod jenuuy] [e10S S1d] poulew Bunsoday susia Ateaqrl Ty

ZTIT'PIT N B [T0S S1d] Ateiqi 8y3 U @duBpUS)IR/SYSIA [ENUUE [ROL T VT

*pT°Z UOIFIDS WO} JI9MSUR 9y} uo paseq ‘pajjyaid si syl "susia AJelqi] Jo JoqUINU BY} UO UOIIRLLIOUI S1I3]|0D UOI3IDS SIY)

(eT°PT - T'¥T) SLISIA AYVHEI

| | R ] -
pied (1ead /ww)| |
:omww“_m..w_“_m_m Alejes jenuuy pajeunua| v_wmww>\m..:.o_._ |[9AS7 uonyednpa ZHET ealy YJop Atewltd THET
Poasergper orea vyrer 0L EVET

| - _
*MOJ JUSLIND Y3 Ul palajul S| eyep 23uo Jeadde Ajjednjewolne [[IMm mod Iayjouy
*poriad 310dad Jua.Lind ay) 104 326png SY3 Ul JoU sem Ing poliad JeaA jedssyy snojaaad 2yl Burinp 1oy pajebpnqg sem eyl auo si uonisod uelleiqi] pajeulwiR uy

9L
uoilisod ov.m.n_

|f1ewwng

[ SUONISOd UBlIEIqI] pajeurl|
_ _ _ o . ]
(s1qeoydde| pajun i == — |
31 edA/ww)| 10 paj|1d isnje}s| A93M /sInoH 1oA97 uonednp3 9¢g’€T ealy }lom Adewtld SE'ET wonisog ¢M_M_.ﬁ.
— |

lejol nm.mﬁ_
| ) . Krewwng

PaIIld ®3eqQ 6E°ET| jusiiny wm.m.n_

*MOJ JUBLIND BY] Ul paJd3ud
S| ejep 20uo0 Jeadde Ajjedijewolne [|Im mod 19yjouy "poliad Huniodad Jeah [eosy 2yl BuLInp pajeald alam Udiym suonisod ueLieiql] pajeald Ajmau Aue apnpug

SuoIl}isod uelielqil pajea.a) >_>>wz¥

00°0Z$ ST'9T$ 8 000t m.mamum._o_wﬁmmmcmﬁmmm._ S3DIAIBS YNPY ._ouﬂw_.ﬁmwmw




43pun *sa4nypuadxy [BIIBIB W Y0 PUE ‘seinjipuadxg S|eIOIEN 21U04109|T ‘SaunjIpuadx] s|eliale Julld J9pun pajlodad ale saunpuadxe ydiym oy (s=4anjo1d
pue ‘sdew ‘2ISNLU 199YS 9500]| ‘SWI04041W “3°1) S|eld31ew ||e JA03 J0U S0P 1] "S|elaiew Jo sadA} paydalas uo ejep s339||102 ASAINS 9Y3 JO UOIIDSS SIYL

‘poiaad ji0dad Jeald |easly 3y} Jo Aep ise| 9Y) JO se asn 10j d|qejleAe uoljd9]|od s, A1eaqij
3Y3 U1 SWaY JO JIPPEBIBYD pUE JSqUINU dY) 03 SE Judwajels e apinoid 03 [(9)(8)§9-0£/9T SOTI S “(€)0T-¥/S SOTI §£] @3mieys Aq pasinbau ase sajeaqry

L (6'ZT - T'ZT) GINMO S30UNOSTY

- [bos S1d] Ad1jod auid aNpIaAQ JuLIN) 59T
zsieal @a4y) Aden2 awy 3uo Jo wnwiuiw e pabind 3y uosjed/1asn pa4a1siBas s Aselql| 1NoA ST v 9T
- [€0S S1d] (eZ°9T + 1'91) s1@sn pa1a3sibay Jo JoquInN |eIoL £°9T
. _ T ideah |easy,
00°PLT$ 3sed ay) BuINp SpJ4ed JUSPISaI-UOU JO D|BS BY)} WOLy PIIIB]|0d SB2) 3Y] JO JUNOWE [230) DY) SeM JeYM qZ°9T
m £PoNSS| 212Mm Sp1ed SURIDISA pajqesid Auew moy ‘ez 9T ul 2303 943 JO (T) eZ'9T
ZPaNSS] 919M Sp.JED 1Y SPI 10) spie) Auew moy ‘ez’'9T ul |e3o1 24y3 Jo (1) ez 9t

- - SpJe) JUSPISBI-UON paJidxauf JO J2qWNN jel0L BZ'9T
~ spae) juspisay paaidxaun Jo Joquinn jejol 1'9%

£59'9T|

*siedh (g) s94y) i1sed ay) uiyym pabind usaq aaey pinoys s2|i4 ;310N

*$924n0s24 Aleiqi] 49Y3j0 0] SSaddE

uieb pue sjendajew Aleaqi molioq Aew J19sn 3y} Ya1ym Japun Suoi}ipuod paysijqelsa sey jeyy Aleaqi| a1iqnd ay3 WoJlj pIed 10 I2quinuU UOI}EDIJIJUSPI UR PBAIadaL
pue 10j pajjdde sey oym Jasn Aleiql| e S| J1asn paJalsibal y "s1asn Adeiqi] JUSPISII-UOU pUE JUDPISSJ JO JD(LUNU DY3 IN0ge UoIjeWL.IoUl S1I3]|0D UOI3S SIYL

_ (v°9T - 1'9T) Su3ISN GIYILSIOIY|

onl “¢wna3oads wispne sy uo suosied Joj buiwweiboid |eppads Aue apinoad Aieiql) ay3 pid B6E°ST |

B Bulwweabold |e1dads|

umouwjun ._”...M - [0E9 S1d] suonRejussald weibold (JeniiA) SNOUoIYdUASY JO SMBIA [R30L S8E'ST

umouqun T-| [0Z9 S1d] Suonejuasa.d welboid (|eniA) SNOUOIYIUASY JO JISQWINN [BI0L ZE°ST

* (SenIARDY pa303.1a-4I9S JO 19S(NS) suoijejuasald [en}iA Snouolydulsy|

SZo'TT  obg| IesoL
<6 ST| - suo|ssag webold [ENHIA SNOUCIYIUAS
58 m_ suoissag wesboid s)ISyO U0SIad-uj SNoUoIYouhg

me.m_....a.n. NNm_ suo|ssag welbold 8)IsuQ UosIad-uUj SNOUOIYIUASG

@ouepusny weiboldd 0£'ST suoissas wedboid 6Z°ST|

(2dA1 Aq sweiboid dnodn ||y) |[ENHIA pPue 3}SsHO0 ._wu_m_._o_

_ _
sov’s €L STOTT ovs| feroy

Y4 %4 £2 L8S'Y| S|  1seseju jessuag
0 0 T0T'Ee1 | - £TEgy |(19PI0 pue 61) synpy|

v ST| osv 6£|(81-Z1) sunpy Bunoy|
sor b X740 720 I €2To1 (11-9) uaspiyo|
zES 12 £LY'T| 991  ({s-0) uasppya)

sjuedidnied AJanoy paidaaidg 39S b'ST S9IIAIDY Pa3daliq JI9sS £°ST[2duepuany T'ST (9bv Aq sweaboad dnoup ||y) sweibold SNOUCIYOUAS T'ST

, ' Sauleping bBujwweabold [BnjdIA, pue /,sa1AIY pue sweiboad juno)
0} MOH,, ‘,,pep102ay pue |enliiA 9A17 iswelboad 10} 95ueping,, :03 s)yul| 10} uaalds uibo] suojuidg HuizUNO) aY3 0} Jajal asea|d ‘uonjeliojul 210w 104 (910N



WV1dI oY1 10) 56ESn W3l dluoa1oo|3 builiodsy :apinb Buimojjoj oy3 90ud.19ya. ased|d ‘abesn pue UOIIBINDIID JUIJUOD DIU0IFIID Bununod uj ssuepinb 104

"moj2q sadAj je1do3ew oy} Aq ‘'sjemauad buipnjoul ‘uone|ndan 3oday

LYO'TTT| (£°8T + Z'8T + 1'8T) PaUEO| S|ELId}EW JO ISqWNU jejol 'S8T
£EP'9T - " [t1ss S1d] paueo| SjeLIa1EW 5,UB1PjIYd JO JBGWINN £°8T |
TLE'T B paueo| sjeitajew ynpe bunoA jo JoqWNN Z°8T |
ve'ssg ) poueo] S|ELI2jew JNpe 0 19quInNN T'8T |

AV TdT 307 10 5685 W1 U093 HUTUNG) :opinb Buimo||oy 9y3 9oud.1a)04 asea|d ‘abesn waj) 21u013d8|d@ Hununod ul aduepinb 104

raeaA jedsiy a413ud s,Aleaqi] ay3 10) Joday Aleaqy ayy
Aq p218IN2.412 SWBY §O 19)OBIBYD PUB JSQINU BY] 03 SE Juawle]s e apiaoad 03 [(9)(8)S9-0£/9T SITI SL ‘(€)0T-+/S SO §£] 2amess Aq padinbaa ase salie.qry

(£T°8T - T°8T) SAUNOSIA 40 3SN|

- ozel - [8St s1d] (8°£T + £'LT) SuoRD?||0D D1U0.123T [BI0L 6°LT
o1 [zSt S1d] (Aieiqi @1e3s 40 Juawusanohb 23e3s) 93e1S 8°/T
9T - " [9St S1d] sauswaeaabe aapeiadoo) JaYi0/|e207 £ LT

*$S9208 J0 934n0s Aq ‘Juswaaibe [eunio) 1o Jusawied ‘uoneldnd ybnoayy paliinbde suoidaljod d1U0IIdII|D JOo laquunu ay3 Moday
*21do3 paulop € 03 9194 pue Judul Jejndilied B Ylm pa3d||od Ajjensn 34e SpJoJad 10 EjEp 9yl 9J0N

Aleaqi] 8y} ul pajsoy A|jedo] a4e 10 2ujjuo J|qejleAr dle Jey) suoij3da|jod
2IU0JID93 IPN|DUT "SO|}M] |ENPIAIPUL 129]9s Jou Aew Jo Aew Aleaqy] @43 ‘Bojejed s,Adeiqi ay3 ul papnjduy aq Jou Aew 10 Aew SpIodad Jiufn "uoijedjusyne
a4inbaJ Jou Aew J0 ABW UOIIDD|0D BY] 0} SSIDE 3joway “uosijed 3yl Aq paulelal aq Aew pue ‘poriad UOIIRINDAID B BARY 10U OP SUOIIID]|0D D1U011I3|T

‘qom 3y} uo o3 paul| A|9ady pue sanded paiyy Aq papiaoad

a4€ Jey] SUOI}99]|0D JIUOIIIIS SPN|PUI Jou 0@ 'AlRIqi 23e3S BY3 YyBno.y) 4o ‘sapte.qi] 19410 yum juawsalbe aanesadood ybnolyy papiaoad Jo ‘Aseaq) syy Aq
papuny aq AW UOI}ID[[0 DIUOIIDIBS UY *JopudA Ayred paiyz e Aq papinroad aq Aew sjybll 1o ‘Aldeaql) ay3 Aq padeys Ajjeoiuoaide|@ pue pajelnd ‘paziuebio aq Aew
UO13D9]|03 JIUCIIDDD UY "BIEP SYJ JO 9SN pUR [2AD1I3D] DY) 10§ DIBMIJOS PUB IDEBLIS]UI JBSN UOWIWOI B Yim (1239 ‘09pIA “d1shw ‘sydesbojoyd ‘s3xa) ‘sjoedisqe
‘e3ep ojydesbolqiq ‘s1oe)) SPA0D34 HUN JO BIEP Pa403s AJ|EDIUOIIODD JO UOIIID|0D B S| UOIIID]|0D DIUOIIIDD UY *SUOIIDD]|0D DIUCIIOBD JO Jaquinu 33 Hoday

SU01329]|0D d1U0.323]3

[T9t S1d] uonda||0D ul SWa3L [edisAyd 1e3oL P9 LT
zz [T9V §1d1 sweil jedisAyd Buie|ndad J8y3Q 29°LT
1z [SS¥ S1d] 1234 |edsyy 3y} Jo pua je piSH SHUN S|qepeojuMOQ SO3PIA/SAAT 99°LT

| [bSt S1d] 13/ [edsyy BY) Jo pus 3e PleH SHUN [edisAyd :SO9PIA/SAAG B9 LT
6E0'SET| " 5z LESP s1d] 1eak [edsy sy3 o pus je pjaH SHUN dlqepeojumog :sbulpoday opny qs° LT
££9'9] o [2St S7d] 4224 [edsiy au) Jo pua je pIaH sHun [221sAyd isBuipJoday oipny es /T

zZse's [1S¥ S1d] 1eaA |easy 33 Jo pu?d 3e P|oH S}00q-3 t°LT
T90'ss (T°LT+T1°£T) sieajen julid |eI0L €°LT

65| - o suondidsqns [elas Julid Jua4ind LT
zoo’ss) [0S¥ S1d] S|eus1eW Julid T°LT

AUV 1d1 943 105 S[ELa1e Oiuoiioa[g buipuno) :apinb buimoljoy ayj aoua.ajal asea|d ‘sjel1aj3ewl 31uoa3d3]3 Bununod uj asuepinb 104

*youeuq Yysea ]e siaquinu ajedijdnp jou op {|9Ad] AJjuUD SANIRIISIUIWPE BY] e S|elIdjew J1U0d]1D3]d JUN0) "9Sn JI9Y} 10j d|qejieAe

SI }1 248ym poliad uol3e|ndaid 19s e aaey jeyy) sway Ajuo Junod {uodjed ayj Aq pauieiad Apjusuewsad ade jey) swall 2pnjoul Jou o *‘abueyoxs Alejpuow
INOYUM B|qejieae A|9a4) swid)l apn|oul 30U og "paJlinbad jou si 6oje3led ayjy ul uoisnpul {uonedo] Aleiqi [ea1sAyd e je 40 pJaed Aleaqi] pileA B Ym 3jqissadde

2q AJUo 1snw swd3!1 popn|dul *A31I3ud 1o uosiad 43yjo Jo Jouop e ‘Aledql] 93e3S 9y} ‘wnijiosuod e ‘Aleliql] 8yl Aq pasuadl| 10 pasea] ‘paseyd.ind uaaq aAey

eyl syib se pajeuop 1o ‘pasuadi] ‘osed) ‘paseyd.nd 1ayjaym ‘pabojeied pue Uoi3d3}|0d Y3 Jo Jied se pasinboe sey Aleaqij 2y3 swal Ajuo yodas Alobajed siyy



LT9'T| TZ0S S1d] suoioesuUEl] 50U4959Y [ENULY [€}0L T'61

‘JUNOD [ENUUER 3Y3 93eW]}SD 03 & Aq A|di3nw pue 3aam |edidA} e 10995 UaY] ‘Sjqe|IeAR JOU S| JUNOD |[enuue ue JI

+iAdooojoyd e jew sw diay NnoA ued ¢SE09 9y} dle DIYM W00 }Sad aY3 SI 3IBYM {YHWS UesSnS S| dIYM ¢uenelqi]
92U34949. 3Y] S| BI9YM,, ‘OPN|DUl SUCIIDESURI) [RUOIIIBIIP Jo sajdwex] 'Aleiql] 34l Ulylm sainjedy [edisAyd 1o ‘siasn Aleuaqy ‘J4e3s Buijedo] 104 uoionisul
Bujalb SpnpU] SUOIPESURI] [EUOIFIDAIQ "SUOIIDESUEI] 22Ud43)aJ Jo 11odald 3y} ul Suopdesuel) [eUonNdaIp 3pNn|dul Jou op salieaql| 1ey} |ennuassa s) 31 ;310N

‘Suooesue} 35U343jad Se suoiysanb Alosiapy siopeay Juno) ‘(uononiisul pajsisse-1andwod pue sa3is gam Suipnjur)
$924Nn0S uonewojul Buisn Ul 22UR}SISSE PpUR UOIFINIISUI [ENPIAIPUI PAINPSYISUN SE [[9M SE 9DIAISS [B419404 PUR UOIJRWIOJUI SIPN[DU] UolIdesuel) 30uUdLdal ¥

'spoau uonewoul sejndiped 3P3w 03
s194310 dj9y 03 S924N0S3J UOIEWLIOJUI BSN 10 /pue ‘d3en|eAd 4a4d.Iajul ‘pusiwiodad Jjels Adeiqif YoIym ul suojjejnsuod uoijew.iojul 3le suojjoesueld] adualajoy

suojydesued ] wu:w..wmmg

*paisonboaa uonewoUl BY3 UL |1} 9Sed]d "suodled s} 03 sapinosd Alelqi] 9Y] SIIIAIDS UO UOIIELUIONUI S19Y3eD uo130as siylL

(T°6T-1°6T) SADIAYIS NOULVd

€L1'8Z] vz (945 ST1d] S3MeIql] 19410 WOYL POAISDSY Sueo ARIq)iaiul L1°8T|
6E0'SZ| ez [G£S S1d] seiiraql 19410 OL POPIAO SUROT Aleiqiidjul 9T 8T
zse'viy 000000 [95S S1d] (ET°ST+TT'8T+0T'8T) 85N UONDI|0D |€I0L ST'ST |
0es’'sz " [55S S1d] (ET°8T+TT°8T) 25N UIUOD DIUCIIB|T HT°8T |
SO0E‘Z [SS S1d] UONIEWIOJUT D1U0.ID3|T JO [EA31IISY |NYSSIIINS ET°8T
V2T K4 1 - - “[0SS S1d] (TT°ST+0T'8T) S|elsie J0 uoieNaI) [e30L ZT'ST
sze'st - - o [Z5S S1d] s|eu@ie 21u0109)3 Jo asn TT°8T
zzv'ss [£sS S1d] (6'8T-S°8T) UOREINDIID W3 [E2ISAUd OT'8T
985y - [195 S1d] |e215Ayd -SwWalI 1910 68T
S0Z'T ‘|e21sAyd -sjedipoliad /sauizebe 8'8T
96L'E jea1sAyd -(oisnw apnjdul) solpny £'8T
56981 - 1e215Ayd -SAAQ/SOPIA 9°8T

o|¢ﬂqmm_ - |edisAyd -s)oog S'8T



EEY éAJeaqly anoA je Buiuiel) wWsiNe 3A1R334 03 3)I| NOA PINOM G €T
SIA {winapoods wisnne ayj uo suosjed 119y 9AISS 191394 03 JJelS 31qeud o3 bujulely apiaoad Aseuqil] ANoA se0Q v'ET

SL°T89 £1B3A Sy} oA1929. sasAojdwa pip Bulujesy Jo sinoy Auew MoH £'€Z
~ s9) N ésasuadxa [9ARI] 3PN|DUL JUNOWE IA0ge dY] SP0q T'ET
P I {(-ae)10p 2]0YyM 3S31BDU DY) 0} JBMSUE
T6S'L% punoy) ¢1e2A jedsyy siyy Butuiesy pue juawdojaaap yeis uo puads Aseiql] 1noA pip Aauow yonw MOH T'€C

*moj2q uonew.ojul paisanbau ayj apinoad ases|d “6uluiel) pue Judwdo[aASP JJEIS UO SBSND0J UOIIIDS SIYL

(S"€Z - T°€T) DNINIVYL 8 LNIWJOTIAIA J4V1S|

zpowsad Jiodas Jeak [easyy 243 40y popieme sem AJeiqi] INOA 12Y] JUNOWE Je(IOp dY3 SI Jeym ‘S3A 41 qT°ZT
B - £410q 10 T AsoBaie) ‘T AtoBajed doy Ajdde Aseaqy 4noA pIp ‘S3A 31 eT°TT

z1e9A [B2SY B3 10} SIUNODSIP B3ed-T 404 Ajpdalip Ajdde Ateaq)p JnoA pid T'ZZ

"SS9J0€ J2UJ3UT PUE SUOIIEDIUNWIWOID|D} jqRPJOJE UIelqo 0} S93e1S pajiun ayj ul ssiie.ql| pue
S|00YDS 1SISSE 0} SJUN03sIp sapiaold welbold ayl *(DD4) UOISSILILIOD SUOIEDIUNWLIOD [E43P3] SY3 JO UOKDBIIP Y3 49pun (OVsSN) Auedwo) sanelisjuiupy
901A19G |ESIDAIUN 343 Aq PRISISIUIWPE SI YoIYM ‘pund 3DIAIDS |ESIBAIUN U3 JO WRIBOId SaLIRIqI] PUE S|OOYDS dY3 104 DWeu pash Ajuowwod a3 S| a3ey-3

(€'7Z - 1°T2) 3LVu-3

--199135-- 968'EL| oz [£59 S1d] 2315qaM A1eaq)| JN0A 0} SUOISSBS 1O SHSIA B)SQIM JO IPQWINN 6'TZ

saAl £19UI93UT BY3 JO SN 9y3 uo suosjed o3 (sassepd ‘sdoysyiom) uondnssul apiactd Ateaqi) anoh ssoq 8°'1Z

- = ,_ T gs4eandwiod ssaooe oijqnd DU JO ] 40 BUWIOS U0 SI33(Y JOUIAIU] 9Z1 1N Aleiqy] ANoA ss0d £ 1T |
unod _msc:,._.m‘ B ) i B B [eZ59 S1d] SUOISSBS SSOI94IM 103 PoyieW builioday e9-1Z |
LeT'eg ¢z [259 S1d] 1E9A 19d SUOISSS SS3SIIM w.ﬁ_
Juno) [enut _ B [eT59 STd] 4eaA 4ad S121nduio) 12UIBIUT NG JO SISN JO J2GUINN 10§ POYIBH Bunsoday e5 1T
mDN;uﬂ_ [159 S1d] 4eBA J3d si2indwo) 39u4a3u] dljqnd $0 (Suoissas) sasn Jo JlaqunN m..nN_

€€ [059 S1d] 95N 21ANd 10} d|qejieAY S19INdWO) J2UIU] JO JqWINN 1T |

TLLY £559008 1oUIAUI 5,A1R1q1] DY} JO 350D AJyjuow Y3 S 1By £°1Z|

v/N| - Asioads sseaid 45430 41 4TTZ|

aiow 10 sdqi S (3U0 199|9S) {UOIIPPUUOD JDUISIUT S,Aleiql] N4 Jo paads wnwIxew ay3 st IBYM =T 1T

= ssanoe Joulajul aaey Aledqi) snod ssoq T'1T|

‘moj2q uonew.IoUl pajsanbaa ay) opinoad ases|d "Ajj1oe) Aleaqi] 8yl Ul SIIIAIBS }DUIIIUI INOGE UOIIRWIOHUI SO0 UOIDDS SIYL

(6°TZ - T'TZ) LINUILNI]

épadiedw] Buliesy ayy 40} 921A3P BulbeSSaW SUCIIEIUNWWO0D3]3} & aAeY Adelql| 1NOA 5200 S°0T |
 éqom ayj) e1a 91qissadoe Hojejed s, Aseiqi] JnoA ST +°0Z |

ipojewolne bojejed s Ale.aqif 4noA s1 m.oN_
Aﬁm._..."m_lw._._u ul saayndwod ?_n_mmmuwmhw:._wucuuco: pue jauJajul) ISn 2174Nd Jo J3quunu |R30L N.oN_
Aseiqy) 2y3 ul s193ndwod 1TV Jo Aquinu jej0l T°0Z |

*mojaq uojjew.ojul pajsanbad ayj apinold aseajd "Aleiqi] 1noA ul ABojouyosa) uoljewolne Jnogqe uoijewojul Huoa||od S U0IIDBS SIYL

(S°0Z - T°07) NOILVWO.LNV|

umouwyunT-| sjeli03n) 3UQ-Uo-duQ [enuuy jejol Z'6T

*(9n0qe uopulep 99S) SUOIILRINSUOD UOIFRULIOUL 03 PajIW| SJ€ YdIYM ‘Suoijoesued) 2oualajal pue ‘dnolb e 1oy uo ind ade Yoiym ‘swesbo.ad wodj Juadayylp
ade 359Y) jey] ajoN *3oalqns oydads e uo uoajed e Buiydeal 10 HuLIoIN} BWI} JO JUNOWE JJqRIBSPISUOD B Spuads Joquiaw JJe)S B UDLYM dJe S|e1d03n} dUo-Uo-3uQ

sjelioln] duQ-uo-auQ|

1S Maapy (eadAl uo paseg aiew(lsy _m:c_..,...m _mmNom S1d] PoyleIW Buijioday suoljpesue.d] adua.43j3y BT 6T



siy3 Aym Ajjeonewbeld uiejdxa ‘s)d3yd Hpa Jo ased ay) ug *(pa4 ul pajybyybiy aq [[im A3Y)) s323Yd }Pa 40 Spay pa4inbai Aue aAj0S34 pue W0} 3y} M3IIASY 'C
‘usaJds ayj jo doj ayj e pajedo] uoling ,AJISA,, 243 129198 °T

IUOISSIWNS YY1dI 103 sdais asay) mojjod

SUIANIWIY NOISSIWENS UV1d]|

€20Z/0€/80 T - | AIWI0IN est| fieyeioeg

£202/0€/80 T xewo auuea| Juepisaid

€202/0€/80 - . B adiwpljem ejhy| 1030011q Areiqi
ajeqg sameubis 21u0a303(3|

*Adoo 3|1 |e121jJ0 BY3 SE BAJDS ||eys Aieuqi] jels

sioul||I @2Y3 03 pejjiwgns Adod ¥y1dI 21uod3d9]8 3y} Jey) 9a4b6e (g£) ‘pue /uonnjosaa Jusanbasqns Aue pue malns4 10} YV 1dI papuadde ay3 ywsued; () 3294400
pue ajeJndoe A||RIIUISSD S YV 1dI papuadde ayjy jeyy abpajmowyde pue jdadoe (T) :Adeiqu anqnd siyy 103 syuabe paziioyine paubissapun 3yl *(s12113S1P
Aseaqy 211qnd) §9-0€/9T SI1I SZ 10 (saiieiql) jedpiunw) 0T-¥/S SITI SZ YHM 3duepiodde uj pajiy buiaq si (v1dI) Modsy [enuuy Ateiqiy a1iqnd sloul|jI siulL
1jUB WIS

6uimo]|o} oY) yam aa4b6e Aay) Jeyl AJi3i90 03 papirold saxoq ayj ul saweu 419y} 2dA3 Alejaldss pleoq pue juapisald pieoq 1030041p Aieaql| BY) DAeY 9sed|d

NOILVDIJILY3D AV1d]

- pa12]dwod sem ypny s,A1e391095 9y) 91ea §°ST

) upne ay3 bupejdwod taqwaw pieoq puodas H'sT

3pne ay3 buna|dwod Jaqwaw paeoq 3sild €°ST

-sa1pueda.tsip Jo s10119 Aue urejdxa pue 3si| asea|d ‘ON JI Z°ST

- Z91e4ndoE pue 233|dwod 9q 03 Punoj spiodad s,A1e32109s 9y} I9M T°ST

£202/¥2/L0
N10A (Auurn) erdibaip|
Aisnyos saen|

‘uo1193s siy] ul suonsanb e 10} ,21qediddy J0N,, 393]9S pINOYS s3LeIq]] 13430 ||B ‘u01303S Siy3 239|dwod 0} padu saleql| 1DTYLSIA AlUO 310N
*Ajjnj uiejdxa pue 3si] @seajd ‘sapuedatdsIp 10 S10419 Aue JYHVY 24943 JI :J1ON

‘upny s,A1e194395 191431s1g Adeaqi dlqnd 2u3 3wqns 01 [(p)(2)/(1)(e)59-0£/9T SD1I S£] @3meas Aq pa.ainbau aJe s1oi3sia Atedq 2liqnd

ATNO S3TyvYaI1 1O131SIa (S°SZ-1°S7) 11aNV S,AdV.LIAUI3S 1OIULSIA AMVHEEIT OI19Nd|

6T-AIAOD Bunng paubissy-ay JJeis

— 6T-AIAOD Buling paseasour ssedy 41 |BUISIXT
6T-QIAOD Buling pappy Ssa00V I4IM [eula3x]

6T-GIAOD Buling 91a49S 9pISINO

6I-AIAOD Buning 931A19§ 92uUs.49)9Yy

6I-QIAOD BulINg panssT spJe) AJeiqi] 21uo43d9|3

i ) - 6T-AIAOD Buuing sed1A49s dlqnd
. 6T-AIAOD 03 @ng SIINO PISO|D

SNOILS3INO 6T-AIAOD|

‘(dvidI)

sjua -
jusuiluoy oNT 310day jenuuy Aleaqi diqnd SIOUI 3Y3 IN0qe Suldaduod Jo suoilsabbns ‘sjuswwod Aue apiaodd aseald £'veT
SUBWIWo 1 é24EME SN 9)ELW 0] )1 pjnom
3 D ONT noA yaiym jo poisad jiodad ay) Gurinp papinoad Aseaqi] tnoA sa01A13s 10 swesbold anbiun Aue a4ay) 8ay b

SIUBWWOD ONT- éoJeme sn ayew 03 1|
pInom noA ysiym jo ejep podad [enuue s,Aleiqi] 1noA pajiaye aAaey Aew jey) s1030e) 19Yylo Aue 243y} a4y T'vT

“dV1dI 343} JO SUOISI3A 24n1nj anoaduw djay o3 pue AaAans Areaqii o1qnd 3yl 03 eiep 1nod juasasdad 19339q 03 Ajddns noA sjuswwod
2y3 asn [|Im 3 "sso20.4d Yv1dI 243 03 sobueyd 10j suoiysabbins 10 sjuswwod 10 /pue Aieiql| JnoA Jnoqe uoewIoiul J8Yy}iny dpInoid 03 UOIYIBS SIY) DSn asead|d

(€'vT-1°¥Z) SNOILSIOONS ANV SLNIWWOD)]




(£Z2-20-€202-0) *Sse3 oyinads 10j 93ISGOM S,AJR1q)| B3 L0y ABME Diyjel) pajoadlip Aj@Xi| pue saysune| 000 TT 4940 pey yoiym ‘dde sjiqow e Jo asn pajuswsdwl Aieiqrt 6°TC ‘gz
(SZ-£0-£20Z-0) "S921ASp Joud ueyl AjJua1alp SUOISSaS Junod sulod M MaN 9'TZ ‘g,

:

(1£-20-£20Z-0) (SUonaNIISUl UV TdI S,STHI Yiim Juawubije ur) s1esA toud uj ueyl sUWNjod Jualdyip Ing ‘spodad swes pasn £T1°8T ‘e

?

(1€-20-£202-0) (SUOIPNISUL S,STHI Ul PSUIINO SB) UWN|od ,SUORRNAIIP, JO PESISUl UWN|od SWall, s,1oda. pajesauab-suejod syj pasn Ajjejuspiooe Lodal s, 1esh 1se7 9T°8T ‘¢

]

(0T-80-£20Z-0) suonsanb ayy Jo suondidssp uo paseq ,swall [esAyd Bunendad 19y, 03 paAow ,S[er2iew juld, ul papnpul Ajsnoiasid eyed 29°LT 'z,

4

(01-80-£207-0) abed uipe/sonAjeue s,Adouey wody pajind [e103 591313 djqe|ieAe paiepdn 497 LT ‘i,

’

(07-80-£20Z-0) U0IAIB||03 SALIPISAQ UL SOIPNY? Ndd JO UONIPPE SIPNPUL GS°LT ‘g

+

(60-80-£Z0Z-0) “duueWw 1Y) Ul papircid Sem e1ep aU3 JBaA 11l 3U3 SI SIyL ,'(4apjo pue 6T) S)NPY, JO pealsul Alobaied a0, ue pasn podal sesh Jotd [$19 S1d] ‘6;

12

(60-80-£20Z-0) “JsuueL 32y} Ul papiaoid Sem eiep ayj Je2A 1si1) 3U3 SI SIUL " (J9PJ0 PUR 6T) SHNPY, JO peaisul Alobajes ,u3y30, ue pasn podal s.Jedh Jold [$09 S1d] “g;

+

(60-80-£20Z-0) JBuUURW JRY] Ul PapiAcId sem elep ay3 JedA 3sJiy 9y3 sI siyL sdnolb abe om ojut sie3s weuboud s,ualp)iyd jesedss 3,upip Hodad ek Jold [219 STd] '

i

(60-80-£20z-0) “JouuewW ey} U] papiAosd sem e3ep ay3 JeaA sy 343 §I syl ‘sdnolb abe om) ojul s1e3s wedboid s,ualp|iyd s3eledss Jupip Kodal s.deah Jolld [Z09 STd] ‘o

1

(I'T-80-£20Z-0) WD Ul wool 39ddnd jo uoieAoual ‘D4 Ul jlem BUIPIAIP JO UOIIDMIISUOD ‘ueA AIBAISP MBU JO 9seYdINd L°ZT ‘g

4

(9Z-£0-£Z0Z-0) WOOJ 3)eS JUB[IBSSE DA} 10J JOOPp MBN  ‘4¢

1

(92-20-£20Z-0) WwasAs etowed AJUndas MON ‘¢

1

(9z-£0-£20Z-0) sauawade|dal AYA ‘51

1

(92-£0-£20Z-0) J100p >oBq 104 221A8p Jauado JOOp Pa1RWOoINY ‘|

(92-£0-£20Z-0) s91epdn apod pue 101eAB|2 MBN gy

(9z-£0-£20Z-0) s|sued Jejos ‘¢

(92-£0-£20z-0) sipued Jejos ‘g

(9Z-£0-£20Z-0) WalsAs eadwed A}UNdas pue walsAs wdele AJundas Jo uonejeisur /,
(92-£0-£Z0Z-0) S400)) pU0I3S @ UleW USDMIAQ SUIEIS g

(92-£0-£20Z-0) J004 Uo J3|puey dle MBN g

(9z-£0-£20Z-0) susuwiaoe|dal AVA 'y,

(92-£0-£202-0) Pl0 sieaA +0T si Jool Jualing ‘¢

(9Z-£0-£20z-0) ss1epdn pue siiedal jelsusn ’,

(sz
-£0-£202-0) 'SIUdAS Alelql| palosuods-0d jo pedlsul s|ejusd 1eAld se payIsse|d-d SI9M SIUSAS UIBLISD pue A4 3yl ybnoays Ajjleiied pasiaad Aoljod bulwiwesboad Ateigr qz'g 'y

*(nobrsos|i®binqd ‘891 T1-S8£-£1T) Bang jed 10ejuod
asea|d Hpoj/nwqns o} wlaoy ayj 6uil}ab ajgnol) daey NOA JI "uocljBULIOjUl [EUOIIIPPE aJinbad jey) suonsanb ayj Huilsi] US991IS MIIADI B 0} Ud)e) 9q ||Im noA
asSIMJIBYIO0 JJuigns A[|edIu0d}d|3 0} ASAINS BY] 10) J2PJ0 Ul SBI0U SA[JRLIEU UIBJUOD ISNW SHOBYD JPD [|e pUe paltamsue 3q }snw suoiysanb padinbad v :310N

‘abed ayj jo doj ay3 e uUolINg ,3007/31WQNS,, DY} IIB|9S "E
*lamsue s, 1edA snojaaad ayj ueyi aJouw Jo ‘ueyl ssa| ‘o} jenba s| 1omsue s Jedh



Chapter 11 (Youth/Young Adult Services)

Service for youth is the provision of all library services to young people ages 0 through 18 in
the library and the community. Youth services should meet recreation and education needs with
programs, print and digital collections, reader’s advisory, reference, outreach, library space and
furniture, and library scaff.

All THinois public libraries should provide services to youth.

Youth/Young Adult Services Standards

1. All basic services are available to all youth regardless of age, ability, gender, or sexual
orientation when the library is open. For the purpose of this document, basic services
are circulation, reference, reader’s advisory, and computer/Internet access. If services
are provided to youth and adults from two separate points, then the library provides
adequate staffing at both locations at all hours the library is open.

2. 'The library has competently trained staff with thorough knowledge of the various
developmental needs of youth, and offers services including collections and programs to
reflect these needs.

3. 'The library has board-approved policies towards serving youth developed by
administracion and staff who serve children and/or young adults, which is reviewed every
two years.

4. The library actively promotes respect for cultural diversity and creates an inclusive,
welcoming, and respectful library atmosphere that embraces diversity.

5. 'The library strives to provide staff trained in serving youth to meer the needs of patrons
who have challenges with disabilities, language, and literacies, including support for use
of adaptive equipment and software.

6. The library seeks to eliminate barriers to provision of services and information access to
youth and families, including examining content restrictions, library card signup, and
Internet policies.

7. 'The library evaluates its services to youth for popularity, effectiveness, accuracy,
timeliness, and patron ease at least once annually.

8. 'The library provides developmentally-appropriate educational, cultural, recreational,
and entertainment programs for youth that reflect community needs and interests.
Programming is designed to address the diversity within the community. Community
members should be encouraged to offer suggestions.

9. Library programs should strive to be free of charge.

10. Provisions should be made to enable persons with disabilities to participate in programs.
The availability of these provisions is noted with other information about the program.

11. The library considers community demographics, special populations, and the availability
of resources from social, cultural, and recreational organizations in the community
when planning and evaluating library services. Libraries are encouraged to partner with
community organizations to offer programs.

12. The library provides services to instruct youth in research and to develop information
literacy. This may include tours, training sessions, or one-on-one instruction.

Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for lllinois Public Libraries - 31



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.
29.

The library is aware of the importance of accuracy and currency in reference and reader’s
advisory service, including knowledge of popular authors, and relies on information
sources of demonstrated authoriry.

Youth staff has access to a telephone and a computer to receive and respond to requests
for information and materials and to contact other agencies for information, and to
accept and respond to reference requests received in all formats, including electronic,
print, and phone.

Staff responsible for collection management are given access to a variety of reviews and
tools for selecting youth materials.

The library will include at least one current resource for each nonfiction subject area
created and intended for youth. Electronic resources may fulfill this requirement.

The library will provide computer access for all ages, and strives to provide guidance on
digital literacy and technology use by informed, qualified, and trained staff.

The library provides outreach services for youth to increase the awareness and use of
library services, to attract new users, and to better reach underserved populations.

The library is encouraged to partner with and support all schools, teachers, school
libraries, and students of all types in their communities, including private schools and
homeschooling families, to provide multifaceted educational opportunities for children.
The library should strive for direct partnership and coordinarion with school librarians in
providing these services.

Staff members responsible for youth services in their library should attempt o attend as
many workshops or continuing education events as possible to stay current.

The library provides space allocated for use by children and families. Shelving should be
appropriately sized.

The library provides services and programming for children and families focused on carly
literacy skills, including regular storytimes.

The library provides programming to facilitate play and fun, and strives to provide toys
and other interactive materials for use in the library, during programs, and at home.

The library provides a summer reading opportunirty to encourage reading and learning
during the summer.

The library provides a flexible and welcoming environment for young adults both
individually and in groups.

The library provides developmentally appropriate programming and services for young
adults that fosters the development of self-concept, identity, coping mechanisms, and
positive interactions with peers and adults, while also encouraging socialization and
having fun.

The library provides materials produced for a young adult audience that is designated
and intended for young adult use.

The library fosters young adult leadership and civic engagement.

Libraries are encouraged to partner with teens to create and implement teen activities.
This can be done with a young adult volunteer group or advisory board.

32 - Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for Illinois Public Libraries



Youth/Young Adult Services

Youth/Young Adult Services Checklist

(J All basic youth services are available when the library is open.
(] The library provides staff trained in serving youth.

(] The library has policies towards serving youth which it reviews ar least every wwo years,
and youth staff have input in these policy revisions and creations.

(] The library actively promotes respect for diversity and creates an inclusive, welcoming,
and respectful library atmosphere for all patrons.

(] The library provides staff trained in assisting youth with disabilities, language, and
literacy barriers.

(] The library provides staff trained to assist youth with adaptive equipment and software
as needed to for accessibility of resources.

(1 The library strives to eliminate barriers of service for youth, including regularly
reviewing any content restrictions, library card requirements, and Internet policies.

] The library regularly, and ar least annually, evaluates its services for youth with regard
to popularity, effectiveness, accuracy, timeliness, and patron ease. The library seeks
input from staff serving youth—as well as the community—regarding these services.

L] The library provides programming for youth which is developmentally appropriate
and meets the needs of the community.

L] The library’s programming is designed to reflect the needs and interests of youth in
the community.

O

Library programs are provided free of charge or on a cost-recovery basis.

(0 The library makes provisions that enable persons with disabilities to atcend
y P p
programming, and lists these provisions with other programming information.

L] The library considers community demographics, special populations, and the
availability of resources from social, cultural, and recreational organizations in the
community when planning and evaluating library services for youth.

U

The library strives to partner with youth-facing organizations in the community.

[J The library provides youth with research and information literacy instruction through
tours, training sessions, and one-on-one interactions.

[ The library has staff who have knowledge of popular auchors, ritles, and resources to
ry ge ol pop
provide these services.

J Youch scaff have access to a telephone and computer to receive and respond to requests
for information and to contact other agencies.

OJ Youth staff responsible for collection management have access to review journals and
tools specifically targeting youth materials.

Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for lllinois Public Libraries « 33



(] The library includes at least one current resource created and intended for youth for
each subject area. Electronic resources also fulfill this requirement.

O The library provides computer access for all youth, and provides guidance on digital
literacy and technology use to youth.

{1 The library provides outreach services towards youth to increase awareness of services,
attract new users, and reach underserved populations.

L1 The library strives to partner with and support local schools, including private schools
and homeschoolers.

(J Scaff members are encouraged to atrend as many continuing education workshops and
events as possible to stay current on trends and best practices for serving youth.

O] The library provides a space specifically for use by children and families.

(] The shelving used for housing children’s materials is appropriately sized to allow for
easier access.

(] The library provides early literacy programming, including regular story time, for
children and families.

] The library provides programming which facilitates play and fun for children and
families.

L] The library provides toys and interactive materials for use in the library, during
programs, and/or at home that facilitate play, fun, and imagination.

[ The library provides a summer reading opportunity to encourage reading and learning
during the summer.

(] The library provides a welcoming environment for young adults both individually and
in groups.

(] The library provides developmentally appropriate programming for young adults that
encourage self-identity and positive interactions while providing opportunities to
socialize and have fun.

(] The library provides materials both physical and digital for young adults that are
intended for them.

[ The library partners with young adults in the community to provide opportunities for
leadership such as a young adult (or teen) advisory board, volunteer group, or other
formal or informal opportunities.

34 - Serving Our Public 4.0: Standards for lllinois Public Libraries



